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Statement of details of parent law and other
information for an overseas company

Legislation

Please give the legislation under which the accounts have been prepared and,
if apphicable, the legislation under which the accounts have been audited

OThis means the relevant rules or
legislation which regulates the
preparation and, if applicable, the

Legrslatron @ I German Commercial Code audit of accounts.
Accounting principles
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Audited accounts

Audited accounts

Have the accounts been audited in accordance with a set of generally accepted
auditing standards?

Please tick the appropriate box
] No. Go to Part 3 ‘Signature’

Yes. Please enter the name of the organisation or other body which 1ssued
those standards below, and then go to Part 3 *Signature’
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appropnate accounting
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Unaudited accounts

Unaudited accounts
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Part 3 Signature
I | am signing this forp-on be}{alf of tfie overseas company
Signature et naudia Nagke ‘

/
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Director, Secretary, Permanent representative
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E Presenter information

mmponant information
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visible to searchers of the public record
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0207 429 4714
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We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information missing.
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1 The company name and, if appropnate, the
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For further information, please see the guidance notes
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or email enquines@companieshouse govuk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This has been pravided free of charge by Companies House

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 50




F LQ_%S’%’S

DEUTSCHE/HYPO

Member of NORD/LB

Analogue

ACHIEVEMENT THROUGH CHANGE

Annual Report 2014




DEUTSCHE HYPO AT A GLANCE

0101 - 0101~ Change
in € milhons 31122014 31122013 (in %)
New business figures
Commercial real estate finance business 36103 26621 356

Domestic finance 21175 20990 09
Foreign finance 14028 5631 >1000
Funding volume 28522 3,2657 -127
Mortgage Pfandbnefe 16137 2,7250 -408
Unsecured 1,2385 5407 >1000
Change
n € mithons 3112 2014 31122013 (in %)
Portfolio figures
Commercial real estate finance business 12,4098 119317 4G
Domesuic finance 78110 715910 29
Foreign finance 4,5988 43407 39
Loans to local authonties 6,362 2 74125 -142
Secunties 9,254 4 10,1452 -88
Funding capital 283004 25,6269 -45
Mortgage Pfandbnefe 88348 87392 11
Public Pfandbnefe 8,807 3 110226 -201
Unsecured 21721 26241 -172
Other habilities 8,492 2 72410 173
Equity **} 1,336 6 1,346 6 -07
Balance sheet total 30,0549 31,2745 -39

0101 - 0101 - Change
n € milhons 3112 2014 311220137 {in %}
Income figures
Netinterestincame 22213 2098 60
Net commissien income 45 66 -318
Admimstrauve expenses *=*) 702 690 17
Risk result -622 -832 252
Income from secunities and participatory interest -425 65 >-1000
Result from normal operations 41 4 643 -356
Extraordinary result -14 67 >—1000
Interest on investrments by silent partners 34 159 - 472
Prafit before taxes and profit and loss transfer agreement 316 551 -426
n% 3112 2014 31122013
Other information
Cost-income ratig 325 328

) The amounts from the previous year were corrected Reference Is made to the nfarmation in the notes 1n the financal statements with regards to this
*} including funds for general banking nisks joutssance nght caprtal and suboedimated liabil ties
) ncluding write downs and value adjustrments of Intangible assets and tangible fixed assets

The annual report of Deutsche Hypo 1s also available 1n German {n the event of any descrepancy, the
German version shall prevail




WE HAVE A CENTRE OF COMPETENCE:

Benedikt von Abendroth, Carolin Albers, Ingo Albert, Alois Algermissen, Antje Amelsherg,

Anne-Kathrin Apel, Elena Argun, Daniela Ass'ng, Jens Assmann, Hans-Hermann Baltz, Angela Bank,

Philipp Bank Sabine Barthauer, Susie Bassett, Chnistopher Batke, Isabel Bauke, Jurgen Becksvoort,

Michaela Behnsen, Ulnke Behnsen, Andrea Behre, Dana Beitz, Lara Bengsch, Nad)a Bengsch, Alica Bergmann,
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Gudat, Cristina Guilherme, Petra-Ingeharg Haake,
James Robert Atkman Hall, Christian Hansel, Dr Bernd
Jan Hartmann, Tina Hartmann, Ins Hauser, Albrecht
Hellwinket, Birger Helm, Hein Katarnna Hemrmink,
Janos Helscher, Ralf Hinrichs, Dr Peter Hinze, Rene

Raimo Hopfner, Chnstoph Haotzel, Nils Hoffmann,

Momka Hofschulte, Marcel Holk, Karin Harnbaostel, Dano Horst, Simone Huch Klaudia Huskes, Thomas

Hundertmark, Dirk Hunger, Tanja Hufimann, Malte llginms, Axe! Intemann, Peter Jabs, Anna-Dorothea Jager,

Amely Jessop, Thorsteinn Jonsson, Ute Jurges, Frank Junge, Georg Kaisler, Dirk Kallikat, Chnistina Kannming,

Gudrun Karges, Brit Kaufmann, Melame Kautzner, Kerstin Kelm, Cezary Kempisty, Dorothea Kind, Knistina

Kirchner, Andreas Kirschner, Jurgen Klebe Lutz Khnkmann, Flonan Knaul Tobias Knoche, Detlef Koch, Dieter

Koch, Gerald Kolle, Helko Kollmann, Jorg Kopp, Jutta Carola Kopp, Renate Koppitz, Gabriele Kornweih,

Stefanie Kortmann, Anna Carina Kostrzewa, Stefan Kriegs, Ulnch Krogmerer, Sarah Kruger, Regina Kubina,

Elke Kucken, Frank Kuhne, Silke Kues, Marcel Kujawski, Andrea Kuschel, Ralph Kutschki, Eike OQlwer

Laase, Bernd Lademann, Thomas Lang, Corneha Lange, Sascha Langeheme, Katiin Langer,




OUR STAFF

Beata Latoszek, Anmka Leenen, Annemarie Leeuwen,
Teresa Linares Fernandez, Antje Locf, Vet Look, Walzer
Luther, Niels Maire, Dorte Mamber, Ingo Martin,
Andreas Meiser, Uwe Menninger, Kevin-York Merchel,
Dirk Metzner, Bjorn Meyer, Eleonore Meyer, Jens
Christina Mollendorf, Inna Monsler, Marlis Mugge,
Muller-Buhren, Thomas Muser, Simon Munaretto,
Nagel, Dhrk Neugebauer, Evelin Neuhauser, Sophie
Nienhaus Markus Nitsche, Matthias Mittscher, Rico
Christopher Peel, Kornelia Penker, Andreas Peter
Andreas Pchl, Nina Poletschny, Arne PreuR, Martin
Tam Tran Quan, Uwe Radloff, Horst Reffke, Andreas

Dr Pra Lewpertz, Stefan Leise, Claudia Leu, Maria
Love, Alexander Ludwig, Kann Ludwig, Hans-oacthim
Gianluca Martinelh, Edgard Maurette, Desiree McKay,
José Ignacio Merinera Mufioz, Michael Mesenbrink
Meyer, Andreas Michel, Siefan Mikus, Sonja Misch,
Claudia Multer, Frank Muller, Michael Muller, Brigitte
Jurgen Munke, Marion Muth, Claudia Nacke, Andreas
Newman Uwe Niemann, Michael Niemeyer Rebecca
Noack, Raif Obst, Jana Ohver, Jan Chrisioph Paape,
Meike Peter, Anja Pmlipps, Sandra Piehl, Liane Pilz,
Priesmtz, Torben Pschunder, Timothy Pygott,

Rehfus Andrea Remecke, Frank Rekowsk:, Tanjd

Riesenbeck, Stefan Raggelin, Alexander Rollwage, Anja Rosenhagen, Gabniele Rotzien, Vera Ruck-Bekedorf,

Christin Rudolph, Sebasttan Rudotph, fens-Ohver Ruff, Petra Ruff, Annemarie Rumke, Katja Runge, Monika Rust

Stefan Ryll, Amir Saleem, Renate Sasse, Sebastian Schab, Anja Schad, Erich Schasse, Katharina Schauer-Stach, Jan

Schaumburg, Frank Scherr, Alexandra Schild, Adrnan Schleffler, Christian Schlenker, Uwe Schliephacke, Andreas

Schluter, Hans-Jarg Schmallenberg, Martin Schmidi, Melanie Schmidt, Christof Schonefeld, Dirk Schonfeld,

Stefan Schrader, Enk Schramm, Wiebke Schramm, Yanmck Schreiber, Karsten Schroter, Stefan Schroter, Matthias

Schroff, Heke Schunemann, Helke Schutte, Sandra Schuler, Manuela Schult, frank Schulte, Karsten Schulz-

Parth Ralph Schumann, Sabing Schwarz-Mobws, Werner Schwertfeger, Hans-Werner Seidel, Fredrik Serck, Phil
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Thomas Staats, Jana Stephani, Thomas Stoklas,
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Wehrhahn, Juha WelRl, Renate Wels, Aenne Wendeling,
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DEUTSCHE HYPO ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ENGLISH TRANSLATION

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Dear Customers
and Business Partners of Deutsche Hypo,

We are currently expenencing an extraordinary market phase On the one hand, there are many geo-
political cnses that are increasingly impinging on the real economy QOn the other hand, around seven
years after the onset of the financial cnsis, the sovereign debt cnsis 1s still keeping us on tenterhooks
Furthermore, the low interest rate policy, which the European Central Bank has been pursuing for quite
some timen order to counteract the threat of deflation and the weak ecanomic performance, constitutes
a new dimension of fiiscal challenges

It1s not only savers who are suffering from low interest rates Institutional investors, too, are faced with
the question of how they can invest their capital and sull make a profit in this exceptional market environ-
ment Thus, instead of German government bonds, which in the meanwhile are generating only modest
returns, 1t 1s alternative investment opportumties that are increasingly taking centre stage, especially
commercial real estate Demand in the German real estate stronghalds, 1n particular, 1s currently at its
highest level 1n ten years

For about two years now, insurance companies and pension funds have, more and more frequently, been
acting as financers of commeraal real estate Deutsche Hypo spotted this development early on and 1s
relying on cooperation with these new market participants The best example of this 13 the strateqic
framework agreement that the Bank concluded with the Bayensche Versorgungskammer (BVK) 1n autumn
2013 The high point of this cooperation so far has been the Joint financaing for the Mall of Berhin shopming
centre in the amount € 600 milhon The BVK provided the bulk of the financing volume, while Deutsche
Hypo's particular contnbution, 1n addibion to € 80 million, was also 1ts structuring know-how

Another exceptional Deutsche Hypo deal, 1ast year, was the structunng of the first real estate debt fund
with an imitial volume of € 200 milhon Moreover, 1t should be particularly mghhghted that, in this case,
the NORD/LB Group was able to draw on expertise from within its own ranks for the entire process chain
that was centred around the fund Those involved here were NORD/LB Asset Management AG, which set
up the fund and has also assumed the management and risk momtoring, as well as NORDILB AOR as the
custodian Deutsche Hypo provides the fund wath 1ts own real estate financing from new business and
1s responsible for the senncaing Both the above transactions once again demonstrated the strength of
Deutsche Hype's innovative capacity
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The NORD/LB Group 1s pleased to have Deutsche Hypo among its ranks It1s one of the leading financers
of commeroial real estate 1n Germany and, 1n the hght of recent capital market developments, 1t gene-
rated yet another respectable operating result 1am - —_ == - —
conhdent that, in 2015, too, the company will con- ‘l
tnue on 1ts successful course and that together
with you, our valued customers and business part-
ners, we will realise many interesting projects once
again In my capacty as Chairman of the Supervi-
sory Board, | would like to thank you for placing your
trust 1n the Bank | can assure you that Deutsche
Hypo wall do 1ts utmost to ment this trust in the
future, too, by providing excellent services

With best regards,

Al

Dr Gunter Dunkel

Charman of the Board of Management
NORD/LB and Chairman of the Superwvisory
Board of Deutsche Hypo
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DEUTSCHE HYPO ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ENGLISH TRANSLATION

MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD
OF MANAGING DIRECTORS

Dear Customers and Business Partners,

It 1s undoubtedly a remarkable achievement to have been operating successfully 1n the Pfandbnef
market for more than 140 years Yet, even though we look back on our listory wath pnde, our sole focus
15 the future viability of Deutsche Hypo Things that have worked well in the past do not come with the
certainty of success tomorrow That 1s why we regularly evaluate very precisely which features of our busi-
ness model are worth preserving and which ones we should reassess

For us, 2014, particular, was a year that brought in yet more changes The opeming of our representa-
tive office iIn Warsaw gave us direct access to a prormsing new foreign market and we have already been
able to conclude attractve financing deals there Moreover, on the product side we also made conside-
rable progress last year By structuning a € 600 milhon financing transaction for the Malt of Berlin we once
again demonstrated the special know-how that 1s available at Deutsche Hypo - aside from the classic
financing business

The fact that we have chosen “everything new” as the motto for the 2014 annual report 1s related 1n no
small part to the move to our new headquarters 1n Hanover’s ity centre After having been spread out
over two locations in Hanover for years, we are very pleased that, since the end of last year, all Deutsche
Hypo employees have been reunited under one roof The short distances serve to strengthen commu-
mcaticn amaong the staff and lead to even greater work efficiency Furthermore, the new location in the
heart of Hanover, Just a short walk from the aity centre, enhances our attractiveness as an employer

Thus, even though there were many changes for us in 2014, fortunately, one thing did continue, namely,
the pasitive development in our core business area of commeraal real estate finance We succeeded
In generating a significant increase in net interest income as well as a noticeable improvement in the
rnisk result for commercial real estate lending Furthermore, we can be very pleased with the progress of
our efficiency improvement programme, which started 1n 2012 The moderate increase in admimstrative
expenses was due almost exclusively to anather host of regulatory requirements However, on account of
a loan loss prowision that had to be made for an Austnan capital market counterparty., the bottom hine 1s
that the result from normal operations came 1n at € 41 4 milhion

Deutsche Hypo recorded a considerable leap in its new business While, 1n 2013, we had been able to
conclude new financing deals that were worth around € 2 7 billien, last year, this figure was € 3 6 billlon —
an ncrease of more than 35% In the course of this, we registered growth 1n new business volume in
our foreign core markets, in particular, which also reflected our positive assessment of the market
development 1n the UK, France, the Benelux and Poland As investor demand for commeraial real estate
continues to be very ligh and, moreover, our core markets - above all Germany - stll appear to be extre-
mely robust, we assume that the 2015 financial year will be another good one for us
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from left Andreas Rehfus, Andreas Pohl

We will of course be relying here on you, our valued customers, investars and business partners with
whom we have estabhshed close relationships, which in many cases have existed for a number of years
already We would like to express our sincere thanks to you for your cooperation and your trust and,
as your rehiable partner for financing and capital market needs, we would be very happy to continue to
support your projects Moreover, we are committed to providing innovative added value soluttons far you
tn the future, too

Yours faithfully,

e e

Andreas Pohl Andreas Rehfus
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DEUTSCHE HYPO ANNUAL REPORT 2014

2014 AT A GLANCE

16 January 2014

After the previous Chairman of the Board
of Managing Direcars, Thomas S Burkle, left
to join the Board of Managing Directors
of NORDI/LB, 1t was decided that, in future,
Deutsche Hypo will be headed by a mana-
gement duo consisting of Andreas Pohl
and Andreas Rehfus Furthermore, Mr Pohi
assumed the role of Speaker of the Board of
Managing Directors

21 February 2014

Deutsche Hypo was the winner of the immo-
biltenmanager award 2014 n the category
“Financing” The jury honoured the close
cooperation between Deutsche Hypo and
the Bayensche Versorgungskammer {8VK)
in the area of commercial real estate finan-
ang in particular, the jury acknowledged
that with this cooperation Deutsche Hypo
had found “an ihnovative response to the
changesnthe real estate financing market”

20 March 2014

Deutsche Hypo officially opened 1ts new
representative office in Warsaw As part of
the Bank's strategy of focusing more strongly
on the defined core business regions, with
this new office 1t will be better able to take
advantage of the mamifold business oppor-
tumities in Poland

ENGLISH TRANSLATION

2 Apnil 2014

Deutsche Hypo tapped its 5-year Mortgage
Pfandbrief benchmarkissue, with a maturity
now of approx 3 % years, by € 250 milhon
This Pfandbrief was onginally 1ssued on 15
January 2013 with a volume of € 500 millien
and with the current volume of € 750 milhon
1t has sigmficantly enhanced market hqui-
dity The 1ssue price was the equivalent of
4 bhasis points below the ornginal 1ssue
spread, at that time, of 1 basis point above
mid-swap

29 April 2014

Deutsche Hypo presented a record result
for the 2013 financial year The Bank incre-
ased 1ts result from normal operations, year-
on-year, by 276 % to € 64 3 milhon The
main contnibuting factors were a high net
interest inceme, lower loan loss provisions,
improved 1ncome from secunties and par-
ticipatory interest as well as lower adminis-
trative expenses

12 May 2014

Deutsche Hypo presented a study on the
impact of mega trends n the real estate
markets in Germany The study examined
the mega trends of demographic develop-
ments, technical progress and the change in
values According tothe study, inthe coming
decades, the mega trends will bring about
significant changes in the office, retail and
residential markets in Germany Real estate
investors can ensure their medium-term and
long-term success by giving senous atten-
tion to these trends, at an early stage, and
by developing strategies far confronting the
inevitable changes
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22 May 2014

NORD/LB Asset Management, jointly with
Deutsche Hypo, set up 1ts first real estate
debt fund for an nstitutional investor The
fund invests in a diversified portfolio of new
real estate financings that are secured by
high-quality real estate in Deutsche Hypo's
core markets By participating 1n the finan-
cing the investor generates an attractive
return

26 June 2014

Deutsche Hypo published a study on yield
developmentn the core real estate markets
The study findings revealed that the imtiat
level of pnme yields on real estate invest-
menisinthe European coremarkets will con-
tinue to fall for the time being Furthermore,
1t forecasted that the general interest rate
level would go up again at the end of 2016, at
the earhiest, although this could already be a
httle sooner in the United Kingdom It1s only
then that slight upward carrections in yields
can be expected Thus, the pressure to
nvestis pushing up investors' risk appetite

22 July 2014

Deutsche Hypoissued another benchmark
Martgage Pfandbnef 1n the amount of
€ 500 milhon The Pfandbrief has a term of
5 years and a coupon rate of 0 625 per cent
Despite istoncally low yields and against a
fragile geopohtical backdrop, the issue met
very strong demand and generated an arder
book with a very lagh level of granulanity

28 August 2014

Deutsche Hype announced its half-year
results In the first half-year of 2014, the
Bank was able to generate a 99 % increase
nits result to € 34 5 milhon and 1t thus pro-
gressed smoaothly from 1ts good result in
2013 Net interest income and commission
income, 1n particular, saw positive growth
Even though competition had got noticeably
tougher and the regulatory requirements
had seen a further increase, the outlook for
the full year 2014 remained optimistic

15 September 2014

Deutsche Hypo presented a study on the
prospects for the German housing market
While the major cities are increasingly
seeing a housing shortage, many regions
are recording rsing vacancy rates Thus,
there 15 an ever-widening divergence in
price developments between the varous
housing markets

04 December 2014

Deutsche Hypo published a detalled study
about the cffice, retail, logistics, hotal and
residential asset classes 1n the Benelux
states The survey findings underhined the
economic recovery in the Benelux states
A positive stimulus 1s expected for the
retall, logistics and hotel markets 1n the
Benelux states

13
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SUSTAINABILITY

As gne of the oldest Pfandbnief banks in Germany, Deutsche Hypo combines many years of tradition
and experience in the area of real estate financing with responstble corporate governance and a for-
ward-looking strategy The concept of corporate sustainabihity management 1s firmly anchored In
the Banks” pohcies

At the heart of sustainability there s a valuable asset - the Bank’s employees Maotivated and quahfied
employees represent the future of Deutsche Hypo and they ensure sustainable business success There-
fore, it 1s 1mportant to create the conditions for an optimal development process One focal pointis pro-
moting gender equahty n the specialist and leadership functions Furthermere, as a training company,
Deutsche Hypo supports the development of talented young professionals and would ke to retain them
in the long term on the basis of its attractiveness as an employer Moreover, through 1ts information
and continuing training programmes, the Bank promaotes the acquisition of knowledge and enables the
application of these new skills

In addition, Deutsche Hypo places emphasis on actions that promote a sustawnable sogety and the topic
of sustainabihty has heen anchored in 1ts business areas In this way, itis ensured, besides the economic
aspects, the method for managing the business takes into account the sustainabihty perspective, ulo-
mately, far the benefit of the customer

Details about this will be pubhshed 1n a separate sustainability report, which 1s based on the German Sustaina-
biity Code and can be accessed on our website and at http/Mww deutscher-nachhaltigkeitskodex de soon

Price ceremony as of 4 February 2015

{from left) Prof Dr Michael Manns, Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Johann-Georg-Zimmer-
mann-Prize, Andreas Rehfus, Member of the Beard of Managing Directors, PD Dr Daniel Nowak,
racipient of the Johann-Georg-Zimmermann research pnize, Prof Dr rer nat Peter Lichter, recipient
af the Johann-Georg-Zimmermann medal and Prof Dr Christopher Baum, President of the Hannover
Medical University
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Johann Georg Zimmermann Prize

The two pnzes sponsored by Deutsche Hypo — the Johann-Georg-Zimmermann research pnze and the
Johann-Georg-Zimmermann medal — are among the hghest ment awards far cancer research in Germany
This year, once agan, the award ceremony took place n the Hannover Medicat School {MHH}

The Johann-Georg-Zimmermann 2014/2015 research pnze, endowed with €10,0600 — aimed at young
medical practitioners in cancer research for their current scentific work — went to PD Dr Damel Nowak
{Medical Faculty Mannheim at Heidelberg University) For many years, he has focused onresearching hife-
threatening blood diseases and, in particular, myelodysplastic syndromes (MDS) Dr Nowak, together with
Prof Andreas Trumpp, was involved in reahising, for the first time worldwide, the estabhishment of an “MDS
mouse” in the chromc phase of the disease, which enables systematic testing of therapeutic substances
n cases of myeledysplastic syndremes

The Johann-Georg-Zimmermann 2014/2015 medal was awarded to Prof Dr rer nat Peter Lichter, Head
of the Molecular Genetics Dnasion in the German Cancer Research Centre (Heidelberg), in recogmtion of
his hifetime achievement and s ground-breaking findings 1n the fields of molecular cytogenetics and
the structure of genomes, as well as for the development of novel technologies for decipherning the basic
mechanisms of cancer genesis

Christmas Wishing Tree

The chnstmas wishing tree has been orgamsed five times already by Deutsche
Hypo's employees Once again, they made 1t possible to fulfil many Chnstmas
wishes of children and adolescents at the Guldene Sonne therapeutic educa-
tional faclity in Rehburg-Loccum

The Guldene Scnne faohty works closely with the paediatnc and adolescent
psychiatric umit of the Auf der Bult children’s hospital in Hanover The reasons
why children and adolescents have to stay there are, frequently, because they
have expenenced violence 1n their famihes, because of parent-chitd relation-
ship dysfunction or also alcohol and drug abuse

The children’s washes were hung up on the Chnstmas tree in the new Deutsche The chairman of the works council,
Hypo location in the OsterstraBe The wishes were presented by children aged Dirk Metzner, hands over the
from 1-17 and each had a value of € 20 Altogether, 100 presents were donated presents on behalf of the employees
with a total value of € 2,000 The employees raised this amount from their own of the Deutsche Hypo

private means




16 DEUTSCHE HYPO ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ENGLISH TRANSLATION

OUR REFERENCES

3

P |

GERMANY

Name Mall of Berhn

Type of property: Shopping centre and hotel property

Location: Berlin

Customer: Arzb Investments Ltd and High Gain House Investments GmbH (HGHI)
Financing volume € 600 million

THE NETHERLANDS

Name Portfolo of residential
properties

Type of property

Residential properties

Lecation: The Netherlands

Customer Institutional property funds
managed by the PATRIZIA-Group
fFinancing volume € 331 rmillion
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SCOTLAND

Name Quartermile

Type of property Buroimmohihe
Location Edinburgh

Customer: EPIC (Quartermile) Unit Trust
Financing velume GBP 22 miilion

POLAND

Name: Metropohitan
Type of property Office building
/3 Location Warsaw

\% .

Customer RREEF Spezial Invest
GmbH on account of the

SV "RABW Europa”

Financing volume. € 90 million

FRANCE

Name Grand Seine

Type of property Office property
Location: Paris

Customer Primomal REIM
Financing volume € 64 milhon
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NEW LOCATION,
proven service

In Novemnber 2014, the employees moved into Deutsche Hypo's newly constructed headquarters 1n the
heart of Hanover The Bank 15 the main tenant in the new buillding and was, thus, able to have a say in
the design nght from the beginning The impact on teamwark of moving 1n together ail the employees,
who had previously been based 1n two locations 1n Hanover, 1s expected to be positive on account of
the improvements 1n communication and the shorter distances between the individual specialist areas
Thanks to its inner-city location, the new headguarters also improves the employer attractiveness of
Deutsche Hypo

The new building has achieved great improvements in the ecological effictency of the Bank, hence gold
certification 1s being sought from The German Sustainable Bullding Council (Deutsche Gesellschaft fur
Nachhaltiges Bauen e V) Moreover, there was a 15 % improvement with respect to the requirements
set out In the 2011 German Energy Saving Regulation, the year in which the building was designed
Numerous detalls make the new building a location that 1s wable and useful well into the future




Offices and Conference Rooms

All employees have been given the ideal environment 1n
which to perform their work Firstly, the ratio of square
metres per employee 1n the new building has been pro-
perly allocated for a oity centre location Secondly, each
employee has been prownded with a height adjustable
desk via a mator, which meets ergonormcs requirements
10 an optimal way Furthermore, most of the conference
rooms are equipped with modern media technology
Mareover, a ideo conferencing room 1s also available

The fit-out of the offices was 1n accordance with madern
technical standards that have a good cost-benefit ratio
All the rooms have been designed 1n such a way so
that 1t 1s possible to upgrade them at any time All the
offices are equipped with pendant hights with dayhght-
dependent controls as well as energy saving lamps and

bulbs The intensity of illumination 1s automatically kept at 500 iux and depends on the level of dayhght
if there are no people 1n the room then the pendant ighting goes off after a predefined penod of time
Furthermore, the offices have been designed so that they have an optimal indeor chimate, both 1n summer

and winter
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Meeting Points and Cafeteria

There are two newly created meeting points available
for employees on each floor They have been strate-
grcally placed 1n the corndors 1n order to faciitate an
informal exchange of information between the diffe-
rant departments To this end, every meeting point
has a counter and a small seating area Employees can
haold short meetings here, or get together for a quick
coffee brezk

Apart from the positive iImpact on communication, at
the meeting points, basic refreshments are also pro-
vided for the employees Drninking water 15 supphed via free, mains connected water dispensers with
caoling and carbonation functions The cafeteria on the ground floor completes the range on offer
Mareaver, two high-quaity automatc coffee dispensers with fresh milk supply are also available The
cafetena can be used for congenial lunch breaks and for events

The Courtyard

The courtyard of the bullding wn Osterstrae 31 1s one of the biggest inner courtyards of Hannover
located directly in the aty centre A little relaxation zone has been created here for the employees The
ground floor cafetena leads out directly to the courtyard, which means that it 1s possible to go out for
some fresh air dunng tunch and coffee breaks Varnous seating areas are available High quality greenery,
which includes a mature gingko tree and the roof greenery of the surrounding gangways, completes the
charming courtyard
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New Paths to Financing
Strategic cooperation with the Bayensche Versorgungskammer

At the end of 2013, Deutsche Hypo concluded a strateqgic framework agreement with the Bayensche Ver-
sorgungskammer {BVK) for cooperation in commercial real estate financing According to this, the BVK
will participate in loans that have been acquired by Deutsche Hypo The agreement, which was concluded
without a time hmit, was wmtially for 2 target amount of € 500 milhion Deutsche Hypo will be responsible
for the entire servicing required here The focus of the joint lending will be office and retail properties
as well as selected residential portfohos in Germany Standardised procedures ensure quick decision-
making as well as lean and efficient lending The financing of the Mall of Berlin, 1n August 2014, was cne
of the first flagship projects that arose on the basis of this mutual cooperation

This strategic collaboration between a real estate financer and a pension fund constitutes a novel concept
n the market It represents a pilot project that will bnng other innovations 1n 1ts wake Thanks to this

partnership, Deutsche Hypo s now also able to prowde financing with volumes
that are well within the three-digit million range For the BVK, this collaboration
opens up access to commercial real estate finanang

The leading German real estate trade journal immobilienmanager recognised
the strategic cooperation between Deutsche Hypo and the Bayernische Versor- - .
gungskammer with 1ts immaobihenmanager award 2014 1n the financing cate- . ‘\9‘) H"\»’AR[;;(}:;A
gory The jury acknowledged that with this cooperation, in particular, Deutsche
Hypo had found “an nncvative response to the changes 1n the real estate
financing market” Andreas Pohl, speaker of the Board
of Managing Directors accepts
the iImmeobihenmanager award
Debt Fund Structuring on behalf the Bank

NORD/LB Asset Management, Jointly with Deutsche Hypo, set up a real estate debt fund for an institu-
tional investor It was a special fund under German law with an 1imtial volume of € 200 milhon The fund
invests in a diversified portfolio of real estate financings that are secured by the high-quahty real estate
w Deutsche Hypo's core markets The main asset classes are office, residential and retall By parhaipating
1n the financing the investor generates an attractwve return Deutsche Hypo has assumed the servicing
NORD/LB Asset Management AG has assumed the management and nsk monitoring of the fund

As the significance of the classic banking function of pure lending dwindles, 1t 1s becoming more impor-
tant for banks to acquire other investors and to structure the finanang effectively In this way, Deutsche
Hypo has once again demonstrated its innovative potental
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

The figures n the tables and charts in the management report are expressed 1n thousand euros
(€ thousands), milhon euros (€ mihions) or bilhon euros (€ bilhons) 1t should be noted that the amounts
and percentages quoted in the tables, charts and text are rounded figures, resulting 1n rounding
differencesin some cases

Fundamentals of the Bank
Deutsche Hypo's business model

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft), Hanover, (Deutsche Hypo or the Bank) was founded
1n 1872 and 15 one of the mast renowned Pfandbnief banks 1n Germany Since 2008, 1t forms a part of
the Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale (Anstalt des offentichen Rechts}, Hanover, Braunschweig,
Magdeburg, (NORD/LB)} and 1s the cenire of competence for the commeraal real estate finance
business inthe Group

In its capacity as a German real estate bank with a European focus, 1t supports 1ts customers In
the strategic target markets of Germany, the UK, France, Benelux and Poland as a professional and
strategic financing partner The headquarters of Deutsche Hypo are in Hanover It also has offices in
Hamburg, Frankfurt, Munmich as well as Amsterdam, London, Paris and Warsaw

Deutsche Hypo funds its crecht business primanly by 1ssuing mortgage Pfandbriefe and unsecured
bonds The aim s to have the ability to continuously fund at attractive conditions This planis actneved,
on the cne hand, through the guality of the cover pools with the assoctated ratings of the Pfandbniefe
and through the creditrating for unsecured bonds of the Bank

The business activity of Deutsche Hypo can be dwvided into two business areas Commercial real
estate finance forms Deutsche Hypo's core business area This includes all the financing with customers
that primanly generate ther cash flow from real estate or make sigrmificant real estate investments
on a regular basis Commercial real estate finance produces over 80 % of the total net interest and
net commission income of the Bank In the capital market business, Deutsche Hypo has imtiated a
reducton n the pubhic sector finance portfoho for some years now The remaimng new business
primanly serves the purpose of iquidity and cover pool management Furthermore, this business area
handles business in secunties, meney markets, derivatives with banks as well as funding

Deutsche Hypo reacts promptly to numerous external influential factors n its regular business
operations These are primanly economic and sector-specific framework conditions that have a direct
impact an the development of business in the two business areas and thus on the net assets, finan-
c1al and income position Furthermore, a number of customer-specific factors, such as changes in
the redemption or extension behaviour, the holding period of real estate or the time of a sale of a
project development, continue to have a significant influence on the Bank's real estate finance
portfoha that is relevant in particular for the Bank's business performance The funding options are
influenced, among others, by developments on financial markets They also have an influence on the
hiquidity management and the valuation of the public sector finance portfolio Furthermore, regu-
latory framework conditions have to be named as an external influential factor for Deutsche Hypo's
business and 1ncome development
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Group affihation

Deutsche Hypo s a strateqic participatory tnterest of NORD/LB, which holds 100 % of 1ts shares Asan
material subsidiary, Deutsche Hypo 1sincluded in the consalidated financial statements of NORD/LB
NORDfLB’s consohdated financial statements as of 31 December 2013 were published on 31 July 2014
in the federal gazette

Since 1 January 2013, there 1s a control and profit and loss transfer agreement between Deutsche
Hypo and NORD/LB This agreement requires Deutsche Hypo to transferits profits to NORD/LB At the
same time, NORD/LB 15 obligated to compensate for any possible loss ansing at the level of Deutsche
Hypo The coniral and profit and loss transfer agreement creates a fiscal tax umt The contractually
closer linkage of the parent and subsidiary means that a leveraging of the synergies and efficiencies
within the Group 1s pursued By transferring the profits or losses, Deutsche Hypo reports an annual
result of zero Due to this circumstance, the focus 1n this report will be on the result from normal
operations and the profit before taxes and profit and loss transfer

Deutsche Hypo's goals and strateqies

Deutsche Hypo's main corporate goal I1s to secure and increase 1ts corporate value, profitabihty and
returns over the long term In future, the Bank attempts to shift the focus of 1ts two business areas
more towards commercial real estate finance When 1t comes to interesting financings, the aim 1s
that the Bank maintains the reputation as an attractive competitor A selective and risk-appropriate
strengthening of 1ts market position in Germany and abroad i1s pursued The strateqic target markets
of Germany, the UK, France, Benelux and Paland are charactenised by high target customer concen-
tration, a large portfoho of real estate and a long-term positive development The financings in the
home market of Germany also remain the largest share of the commercaial real estate finance portfoho,
whereas the portfolios in the former target regtons of the US and Spain continue to be reduced New
businessis no longer conducted there

In addition to the intensive support of customers on the financing side, the Bank is also pursuing
closer collaboration with institutional investors such as insurance compames and pension funds that
have aninterestin investments involving real estate finance The goal is ta use the existing knowledge
and to achieve an improved integration of the real estate know-how into the structuring and capital
market onentation

In the capital market business, Deutsche Hypo strives to further reduce 1ts public sector finance
portfoho significantly over the next few years New business will be conducted solely restnictively in
this business area and primarily serves as hquidity and cover pool management

It 15 Deutsche Hypo's belief that the Bank’s economic success must go hand tn hand with an intact
natural environment and 1n a society with stable social relatienships For this reason, the Bank
continues o expand 1ts sustainabiity management and will implement additional sustainabi-
ity measures over the next years Details on this will be pubhshed in a stand-alone sustainability
report that 1s based on the German Sustainability Code and can be viewed on the website and at
www deutscher-nachhaltigkeitskodex de
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Controlling system

Onginating from the business and nsk strategy, Deutsche Hypo's controlling system focuses on a
sustainable increase in corporate value This value-oriented controiling philosophy 1s an integral part
of the controlhing and planming processes and 1s reflected in the central operating key performance
indicators that are aimed at the Bank's profitabiity, productwity and risk profile Furthermore, 1t
ensures compliance with the regulatory ratios The controlling system 1s completed by non-financial
performance indicators that mainly act as early ndicators

Deutsche Hypo's controlling methodology includes, on the one hand, the preparation of medium-
term plans, in which the economic development over a five-year period 1s simulated On the other
hand, there are regular plan-actual comparisons as well as projections for the end of each financial
year and beyond For measuring the Bank's nsk, appropnate internal risk management systems have
been set up They evaluate the credit risks, market nsks, iguidity nisks and operational nisks These
analyses are usually included in the regularly recurring reports to the Bank’s decision makers and
supervisory bodies

The financial performance indhcators Return on Risk Adjusted Capital (RoRaC), Return on Equity (RoE)
and Cost-Income-Ratio (CIR) form the central contralling parameters together with the result from
normal operations The CIR 1s defined as the ratio of the adminmistrative expenses {including write-
downs on tangible fixed assets and intangible assets) to the total from the net interest income, net
commission income and other operating income In the calculation of the RoRaC, the proportionahity
of the net profit and the risk capital required for its achevementis assumed The calculation of the RoE
ncludes the income before taxes and the capital pursuant to commercial law (not incl nvestments by
silent partners} On account ofitslarge influence on the Bank's income performance, the development
of new business and the portfolio 1n the core business area of commercial real estate finance 1s used
as the central controlling parameter of the Bank

Economic report
Macroeconomic and sector environment
Economic performance in Germany and Europe

In Germany, real gross domestic product rose by 1 6 % 1n 2014 and was sigrmificantly mgher than in
the two years before The mawn pillar supporting the economy was again private consumption It
expanded by more than 1 0 %, with private consumption contributing roughly 0 6 percentage points
to the growth Public sector consumption also increased by a similar order of magmitude, nsing by
10 % Foreign trade made only a moderate contribution of 04 percentage points to growth The
growth n exports was slowed by the only weak economic momentum 1n the eurczane After two
consecutive years of dechne, gross investments again made a contribution to growth in the past year,
even if investment activity slowed noticeably due to the economic weakness in the eurozone and the
geopohtical conflicts The German economy preved to be guite resihent overall 1n an adverse global
econgmic envircnment
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The economic recovery in the eurozone unfolded only slowly 1n the year under review, as expected
At first glance, the year 2014 may have begun quite well with a growth rate of 03 % n compa-
rison to the previous quarter These positive figures, however, were due pnimanly to the upwardly-
distorted, weather-related growth rate in Germany (+ 0 8 %) With the temporaryloss of Germany as the
economic motor, the eurozone expanded at a rate only shghtly above zero in the next two guarters
However, economic output rose somewhat more rapidly i the last three months of 2014 In full year
2014, real gross domestic product only rose by 09 % in companson to the previous year

Development of real estate markets

Global investmentsin commercial real estate rose by roughly 20 % from financial year 2013 to US$ 710
bilion in 2014 Low interest rates meant a continuatian 1n the overall trend towards high-income real
assets and the related increase 1n glabal capital flows in the asset class real estate

Germany

The German investment market for commercial real estate, as well as the global market, continued to
profit from low interest rates 1n the year under review The transaction volume increased for the fifth
time in a row by rcughly 30 % to €39 8 bilhon The seven real estate stronghaolds— Berhn, Dusseldorf,
Frankfurt, Hamburg, Cologne, Mumch and Stuttgart — produced a total transaction volume of roughly
€ 23 bilhon in 2014, which corresponded to a year-on-year increase of roughly 18 % Investors’ high
demand for the office asset class remaimned unchanged in 2014 The corresponding transaction
volumes totalled roughly € 175 bilhon Accordingly, the share of the total velume amounted to
roughly 44 % Coming 1n a distant second was retail real estate with a transaction volume of roughly
€ 87 billicn or respectively a share of 22 % Logistics real estate accounted for a total of € 3 6 billion,
contributing a share of 9 % to the overall result

The office rental market developed positwely 1n 2014, different from what was expected, with an
increase of roughly 3 % in sales volurne, whereby the last quarter contributed an above average share
of 30 % of total sales Regionally, the earmings vared greatly, however While the sale of space 1n Berhin
ncreased by roughly 36 %, it fell substantially, for example, in Dusseldorf by 22 % The retail rental
market posted a pleasing year-on-yearimprovementin sales during the financial year 2014,increasing
significantly, by roughly 20 %, to 582,400 m? Primanly, large spaces for retailers were in demand so
the share of space above 1,000 m? rose from 5 % t0 17 %

Europe

The European commercial real estate markets achieved a transaction volume 1n the amount of
€ 218 bhlhon e financral year 2014, which meant an increase of 32 % 1n comparison to the previous
year The UK remained the top performer on the European investment market The transaction volume
increased to a total of € 70 lihon and made up just under a third of the total European transaction
volume The last quarter was particularly good with a volume of roughly € 26 8 illion In total, the
trend continued towards investments outside of London, 1n part due to the shortage of supply
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In France, the transaction volume increased to € 22 bithon, of winch the largest share was attributable
to the fourth guarter with roughly € 8 bilhon The office segment continued to dominate as before,
whereby the interest of foreigninvestors increased above all Investors remained focusedn particular
on Panis and the ile-de-France

Amang the Benelux countries, the Netherlands enjoyed a strong perfermance The transaction volume
almost doubled at roughly € 10 billon This 1s due 1n particular to wwvestors’ increasing investment
pressure German nvestors' demand for top locations n Amsterdam was pronounced In Belgium, the
transaction volume of € 3 3 billhon mare than doubled from the previous year The real estate market
in Luxembourg also performed very well The 2014 finantial year was the maost successful year since
2007, but prime yields fell shghtly sn compansonto 2013

In Poland, the transaction volume fell to roughly € 2 7 billion 1n 2014, whereby investment activities
remaned dynamic The office sector clearly dominated with a share of significantly more than 50 % In
compansan to 2013, the share of domestic investors as a percentage of the total transaction volume
rose to over 10 %

Development of international finanaial markets

In the past year, financial markets were greatly affected by the activities of central banks and here in
particular the European Central Bank (ECB) While the US Federal Reserve took the first steps towards
a normahsatien of 1its monetary policy by discontinuing 1ts purchases of government bonds in the
autumn of 2014 as planned, and the financial markets were at least prepared for the first increases in
interest rates1n 2015 through verbal communication, the ECB decided to take vanous additional mea-
sures in the past financial year that were supposed to counter the ongecing drop in the inflation rate 1n
the eurozone by increasing the supply of hquidity Besides lowering the base interest rates two times
to 005 % and introducing negative interest rates of — 0 2 % for the deposit facihty for the first time,
the European Central Bank announced 1n June the addition of so-called targeted long-term funding
operations {TLTRO) and a covered bond purchase programme (CBPP3} at the beginming of September
These measures were supposed to support bank lending to the private economy and help the inflation
rate move back towards the desired targetrange of 2 0 % Through the end of 2014, it was not possible
to speak of any noticeable success as a result of these measures due to the crashn the price of crude
o1l For this reason, financial markets assumed there would be additional unconventional measures
from the ECB, which were also adopted by the ECB in January of the current year in the form of an
extensive bond buying programme

The very expansive monetary pohcy of the ECB and the prospects of additionatl measures in the
current year 2015 caused a further reduction n 1nterest rates across a broad front The yields on
10-year German government bonds fell from just under 2 0 % at the beginning of 2014 to an all-time
low of under 0 6 % at the end of the year 5-year government bonds yielded roughly 00 % at the end
of the year, and shorter maturities already had negative yields The substantial drop 1n yields also
occurred for almost all other European government bonds

29
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Money markets rates also fell in the past financial year The 3-month Euribor dropped from just under
0 3 % at the beginmng of 2014 to below 0 1 % at the end of the year Onforeign exchange markets, the
various prospects with respect to the future monetary pohicy of central banks and varying economic
performances caused a noticeable dechine in the value of the euro against the US dollar, particularly at
the end of the year If the exchange rate was at a good 1 35 EUR/USD at the beginning of the year, 1t fell
to roughly 1 20 EUR/JSD at the end of the year

As far as possible, the high hquidity and the low interest rates ensured a positive underlying sentiment
onnternational financial markets during the finanoial year Negative developments took place solely
in sub-markets, for example on account of gecpohtical developments, and for indmidual compames
due to company-speafic news

Development of the banking sector

Campetition in commercial real estate finance increased significantly in 2014 Thanks to the ongoing
stable situatton on the most important European real estate markets, almost all banks have expanded
their financing activities 1n this business segment Additionally, insurance companies and pension
funds, due to the historically low interest rates, continued to look for alternative investment options
and have now established themselves as financiers of large-volume commercial real estate

In the domestic market, the largest competition in 2014 was seen for so-called core properties in the
seven German real estate strongholds Since the supply of available prime real estate 1s becoming
smaller and smaller, B and C locations as well as B properties wn prime locanions are increasingly
becoming the focus of manyinvestors Deutsche Hypo anticipates that this trend wall also continue 1n
the current year and that competitiocn will also mntensify — both in terms of investors and financing This
15 especially the case because interest rates will remain low in the near future, there continues to be
high liguidity on the market and investors’ willingness 1o take nsk 1s increasing Despite a noticeable
increase in price inindvidual sub-markets or segments, Deutsche Hypo also continues to see no signs
of 3 bubble 1n the real estate markets The number of foreign investors that are involved in the German
real estate market increased sigmficantly in the 1ast year In particular, non-Eurcpean investors have
profited from the advantageous exchange rates Since real estate prices in their preferred metro-
polises such as New York and London rose sigmficantly in 2014, they became more interested 1n
properties at prnime locations in Germany For the year 2015, Deutsche Hypo expects anather expan-
s1on of its activities 1n the domestic market

Besides the gperating business, requlatoryissues alsc defined the 2014 financial year New regulatory
requirements increased again in the year under review First-time comphance with the CRR (Camital
Requirement Regulation) and the regulatory notifications wn accordance with the CoRep (Common
Reporting Framework) signtficantly increased the scope of reporting for banks Among others, new
rules for large exposures and new reporting requirements for the leverage ratio and new hguidity
notifications were implemented
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Course of business ata glance
Significant influential factors and developments in the financial year 2014

The past financial year 2014 was shaped by advantageous external conditions for Deutsche Hypo
despite the large number of new regulatory requirements The high hquidity available on account of
the monetary policy measures and investors’ investment pressure due to low interest rates ensured
an ongoing high level of demand for commercial real estate Despite noliceably intense competition,
there were sufficient new business opportunities at all imes, which Deutsche Hypo was able to take
advantage of, while maintaiming relatively stable margins and giving due regard to the igh quality
requirements of financing The new business volume 1in commercial real estate finance increased
significantly in comparison to the previous year The increase resulted in particular from a significant
nse 1n volume n almost all foreign markets Despite ongoing high premature repayments of loans,
the portfoho of commercial real estate finance rose shghtly in total The somewhat positive econemic
conditions in the target markets and Deutsche Hypo's quahity-onented lending pohicy ensured the
expected ongoing improvement in the quahty of the real estate finance portfolio, which also improved
the nisk result of the core business area, following the trend over the last few years The portfoho of
impaired real estate financings also continued to fall

The ongoing highly expansive monetary policy of the ECB continued to ensure calm on financal
markets for the most part over large portions of the past financial year There was no major external
impact on the capital market business 1n the past financial year The positive earnings development
was, however, counteracted by the decision of the Austrian Financial Market Supervisory Authonity to
declare a debt moratorium for Heta Asset Resotution AG As aresult the Bank had to set up aloan loss
provision of € 58 5 milhon for 1ts ciaims with a nominal volume of € 245 0 milhor, which were secured
n full with a default guarantee from the state of Caninta

Due to the increasing emergence of insurance companies, pension funds and utility companies in the
market of commercial real estate finance, Deutsche Hypo completed financings together with the
aforementioned new market actors in the past financial year Inthese cases, the Bank usually acquires
and structures large volumes of financing and handles the loan management in full for the whole
financing during the entire contractual term Furthermaore, Deutsche Hypo and a capital management
company created their first real estate fund for an institutional investor It has been constructed as a
special fund according to German law and invests in a diversified portfolio of commercial real estate
financing of Deutsche Hypo A portion of this investment 1s intended to hedge lending risks in the
form of a cash-collaterahised guarantee for the assumption of the mezzamine risk in the underlying
portfoho Both the increasing collaboration with insurance compames, pension funds or utilities com-
pames as well as the creation of the real estate fund expand the business and income opporturties
of Deutsche Hypo

In addition, the new representative ofiice in Warsaw was officially opened in the year under review
Deutsche Hypo considers Poland to be ene of the emerging commercial real estate marketsin Europe,
which will offer diverse business opportumties that the Bank can leverage more effectively with an
office n Poland The already significant expansion in the veolume of new business in the past financial
year confirmed the Bank's decision to increase 1ts business activities tn Poland through the opening
of a representative office
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With the implementation of additional measures in the Bank, the efficiency improvement programme
SIGN also moved ahead The cost optimisations that were achieved ensured largely stable administra-
tive expenses from an overall Bank point of view Higher expenses from new regulatory requirements
were almost compensated n full Furthermore, Deutsche Hypo moved wnto new headguarters in
Hanover at the end of the last year The improvement in commumcation and shorter paths between
1indwidual departments should have a positive impact on collaboration and result additional syner-
gies 1n the business processes

The described developments led to a result from normal operations in the amount of € 41 4 milhonin
the past financial year (2013 € 64 3 milhon)

Commercial real estate finance business
New business development

The already described good external framework conditions ensured investors’ ongoing high demand
for real estate n the past year As expected, Deutsche Hypo was able to use this for a significant
year-on-year increase 1n new business volume in commercial real estate finance In total (Germany
and foreign), new commitments contributed € 3,610 3 milhion 1n the past financial year and were thus
356 % above the volume of € 2,662 1 million 1n the previous year The share of new credit commt-
ments shifted somewhat from the home market of Germany towards foreign markets While domestic
commitment volumes totalled € 2,117 5 milhon, roughly corresponding to the high level of € 2,099 0
miihan in the previous year, the foreign new business volumes rose sigmficantly to € 1,492 8 million
(2013 € 563 1 milhon} The share of domestic credit commitments as a percentage of the total com-
mitment volumes fell to 58 7 % accordingly (2013 78 8 %) This shift shows the positive assessment of
the foreign markets While Deutsche Hypo focused on the German market 1n past years primarily due
to the sigmficantly more stable econamic performance, 1t 1s now increasingly considering attractive
new business opportumties in foreign target markets

New real estate finance business by region (2 Domestic M@ Foreign
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The foreign target markets have to be analysed 1n a more differentiated way on account of the different
external framewaork condrtions The still foremost requirement of only pursuing new business with coun-
terparties that meet very high requirements in terms of their nsk profile and profitabihty make 1t neces-
sary to constantly evaluate the current and future developments on {regional) real estate target markets
According to Deutsche Hypo's assessment, the commercial real estate markets 1n the Benelux countnes
count among the more Interesting commeraal real estate markets in Europe on account of the emer-
qing econormc recovery and a mostly moderate pnce level In ine with this assessment, Deutsche Hypo
sigmhcantly expanded 1ts new business in the Benelux countnes to € 658 2 million {2013 € 197 1 mulhion)
In addion, the new business volume 1n the new target market of Poland increased signmificantly to
€ 272 0 milhion in the past financial year (2013 € 20 3 milhon) Here, Deutsche Hypo continues to expect
a positive performance due to the anticipated relatwely high econorme growth

Of total new commitments 1n real estate finance business (Germany and foreign), commeraial credit of
€ 2,841 8 mihon (2013 € 2,236 4 million) accounts for a share of 787 % (2013 840 %) Residental
financing totalled € 769 0 million (2013 € 425 7 milhion) and, as 1n the previous year, made up a some-
what higher share of the total new business volume In commeraal lending, office real estate totalled
€ 1,307 7 mihon and continued to represent almost half of the new business volume

—

Partfoho development

The outhined development of the new business volume led to a nse of 4 0 %, despite the increase 1n
redempticn rates, to € 12,409 8 milhon 1n the real estate finance portfoho as of 31 December 2014
{2013 € 11,931 7 milhon} Furthermore, credit commitments in the amount of € 1,048 7 million (2013
€ 1,067 8 million} had not yet been valued as of balance sheet date and were not included in the port-
folio as a result The quality of the real estate finance portfoho continues to take precedence n Deutsche
Hypo’s core business area Besides the descnbed quality-cniented lending pohcy, which has a corres-
pondingly positive impact on the qualty of the portfolio, the share of financing that 1s assigned to poor
rating categornes continued to dechine For mare detailed information on the quality of the real estate
finance pertfolio, reference 1s made to the descnptions on the analysis of the credit nsk in the expanded
risk report The credit exposure mentioned there 1s not exactly comparable to the balance sheet port-
fohios of the real estate financaings due to the rehance on the nominal volume ncluding the share of
loan commtments

The lending vclume of domestic financings rose shghtly in the past financial year to € 7,811 0 milhon
(2013 € 7,591 0 milhon) and the portfocho of foreign financings grew to € 4,598 8 milhon {2013
€ 4,340 7 million) The share of foreign lending increased shghtly from 36 4 % to 37 1 % of the total real
estate finance portfoho primanly on account of the higher foreign new business transactions 1n compa-
nson to the previous year The increase 1n foreign financing 1s due in particular to an expansion of the
portfolios in the target markets of Benelux, which rose by € 335 2 mifhon to € 1,392 6 milhon, and Poland,
which rose by € 176 7 milhon to € 230 8 milhon This development corresponds with the new business
development 1n the past year Benelux now accounts for the highest real estate finance portfcho in the
foreign target regions of Deutsche Hypo, since the portfolio 1n the UK fell shghtly to € 1,390 6 milhon
(2013 € 1,560 8 mihon} In France, financings 1n the amount of € 854 7 million as of balance sheet date
(2013 €881 2 million} were granted, while the real estate finance portfolios in the non-strategic regions
such as Spain and the US continued to fall, as planned, to € 630 1 rmllion {2013 € 787 3 milhion}
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The wcreases 1n the real estate finance portfoho were distnbuted fairly evenly across all property
classes Office real estate continued ta represent the main type of property, accounting for a volume of
€4,771 3 milhon {2013 € 4,642 6 million}, while the portfoho of retanl real estate rose to € 4,243 4 million
{2013 €3,981 1 millicn) Residential finanaing totalled € 1,542 5 million {2013 € 1,371 7 milhon) and the
financing af other real estate amountedto € 1,852 6 milion (2013 €1,936 4 milhon)
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Portfolic development 1n capital market business

The capital market business was supported by the monetary policy measures of central banks in the past
finanoal year and continued to operate 1n a very calm environment In accordance with its strategic focus,
Deutsche Hypo continued the reduction of 1ts public sector finance portfolio, as planned New business
was conducted solely restnctively and pnmanly for higuidity and cover pool management There were
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also agawn clear reductions in the portfolio, particularly in loans to local authonties, which fell significantly
from previous year, by 14 2 % to € 6,362 2 mulhon (2013 € 7,412 5 milhon), and 1n the portfolio of secun-
ties, which fell by 8 8 % to € 9,254 4 million (2013 € 10,145 2 million)

The funding of the Bank s also assigned to the capital market business In 2014 Deutsche Hypo purchased
1ts own secunties with a volume of € 2,852 2 million (2013 € 3,265 7 mllion) on the market, of which
€ 16137 mibon (2013 € 2,725 0 milhon) are mortgage Pfandbriefe and € 1,238 5 millon {2013
€ 540 7 million) are unsecured bonds The focus of 1ssuance, accounting for 73 7 % of the total volume,
nvolved private placements, as 1n previous years Benchmarkissues made up 26 3 % of the total valume
The Bank 1ssued a 5-year benchmark with a volume of € 500 0 milhen in July 2014 In Apnl, the Bank
tapped a previous 5-year i1ssue, which had a residual term of Just under four years, by € 250 0 millron Both
transactions met wath sohd demand so that the order hook was quickly closed

The market segment of large-volume bands will increase in significance 1n the future - according to Deutsche
Hypo's assessment—partly, but not only supported by the ECB'’s current covered bond buying programme
The Bank will continue to systematically serice this benchmark market segment, which remains an
important source of funding, but will alse take advantage of the opportumities that anse in the private
placement segment The market views Deutsche Hypo as a reliable 1ssuer, and the Bank has always been
able to rely on a long-term neiwork of rehable, nationally and internationally active capital market partners

In 2014 Deutsche Hypo also ensured the long-term secondary market support for the Bank's own 1ssues
and acquired its own secunties with a nominal volume of € 1150 mithon 1n this connection {2013
€ 163 0 million) The hquidity outflows resulting from the purchases were replaced wathout any difficulty
n each case The portiolio of the Bank's own securities totalled a nominal amount of € 67 0 million at the
end of the year (2013 € 25 8 million)

Net assets, financial and i1ncome position

Income position

Presentation of the income position in the past financial year

Total result Commercial real Capital market Qther business
in € millions estate finance business

2014 2013%) 2014 2013%) 2014 2013 2014 20137
Netinterestncome 22213 2058 1804 1742 217 160 202 196
Net commission incame 45 66 55 68 -10 -012 -01 oo
Admimistrative expenses **) 702 690 394 416 54 58 54 216
Other operatingtncome -105 -64 =25 00 00 00 -80 -64
Riskresult***) -622 -B3z -486 -649 -253 -10% 118 ~78
Income from secunties and
participatery interest*~**) -425 65 0o ol -425 11 00 53
Result from normal operations 41 4 643 95 4 746 -525 06 -15 -109
Extraordinary result -14 6?7 00 ao 00 0o -14 67
Interest oninvestment
hy silent partners *****} 84 159 0o ao 090 o0 84 159
Profit before taxes and profit and loss transfer 3146 551 95 4 746 -525 06 =113 -201
CIR 325% 328% 215% 230% 161% B7% >1000% >1000%
RoRaC { RoE 38% T1% 219% 41% -362% 05% <-1000% <-1000%

) The amounts from the prewous year were corrected Reference is made to thenformation 1n the notes in the financial staterments with regards ta this
* YGeneral adm'mstrative expensesncludingwrite downs andvalue adjustments anintangible assetsand tangible fixed assets
“**)Write-down and value adjustments on receivables and specific securities as well as allacat ons to provisions in the credit business
****}ncome from writingup participatory interest sharesin affillated companies and securities treated as fixed assets
**** JInterest on investments by silent partners1s part of the 'ncome statement item Prof t surrendered under parnial surrenderagreements ara
profit and Joss transfer agreement
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The result from normal operations, from an overall Bank point of view, amounted to € 41 4 mifhon as of
balance sheet date {2013 € 64 3 million) The developments in the vancus business areas vaned greatly
The result from normal operations in the core business area of commeraal real estate finance rose
sigmficantly to € 954 million {2013 € 74 & milhon} on account of higher income and a sigmficantly
better rnisk result By contrast, however, the described loan loss provisions in the capital market business
affected the results and led to a decline in income on the level of the overall Bank

From an overall Bank point of view, net interest income totalled € 222 3 rmillion 1n the year under review,
significantly above the previaus year's level of € 209 8 milion This performance continued to be due
to a stable development of margins with simultaneously shightly higher interest-like fee companents n
the commeraial real estate finance business and one-off income from premature loan repayments Net
nterest iIncome in this core business area rose shghtly from the previous year to € 180 4 milhon {2013
€174 2 milhon} Contrary to expectations, the net interest income 1n the capital market business ncre-
ased, nsing to € 21 7 milhon (2013 € 16 0 mihon), despite the continuation of the strategic reduction of
the portfohio, in particular due to premature repayments The net commission income from the overall
Bank point of view fell shghtly, as expected, to € 4 5 milhon (2013 € 6 6 million), pnmanly due to shghtly
higher commssion expenses for the assumption of credit nsks 1n the commeroal real estate finance
business by third parties

Admimstrative expenses totalled € 70 2 million (2013 € 69 0 million) and were mostly stable on the level
of the previous year The performance shows the ongoing success of the active cost management and the
implementation of measures from the efficency improvement programme SIGN These effects were able
to compensate 1n full for the increase 1n administrative expenses particularly due to regulatory require-
ments and the first-time expenses from the move to the new main location 1n Hanover

The other operating income was € — 105 million (2013 € — 6 4 million), which 15 sigmficantly below
the level of the previous year The angoing negatwe result was largely due to the contnbution made to
the restructuning funds for financial institutions (bank levy} In addition, effects from the discounting of
provisions and expenses for third-party managed buldings ensured a further dechne 1n this income item

The nsk result from an overall Bank point of view was € — 62 2 millien (2013 € — 83 2 milhon} The
significant improvement primarnly results from the positive developments 1n commercial real estate
finance business The sk result in the core business area iImproved sigmificantly to € — 48 6 million {2013
€-64 9 million), as a result of which the trend towards a decline in net expenses from the credit business
In past years was continued as expected The development ys pnmanly the result of a qualty-onented
lending policy that led to a successive improvement 1n the quabty of the commercial real estate finance
portfolio By contrast, the nisk result in the capital market business was affected by loan loss provisions
and negative effects from the buy-back of the Bank’s own 1ssues as part of servicing the market

Due to the loan loss provisions 1n the capital market portfolto, the income from secunties and participa-
toryinterest was € - 42 5 milhon, sigmfcantly below the profit of €6 5 million 1n 2013 In the pastfinancial
year, there were no sigmficant effects on the results due to the strategic reduction of the partfoho 1n the
capital market business or from the reduction of the portfolios of nan-strategic business acthaties 1in 2014
as compared to 2013 when there were positive effects from the reduction of the MBS partfolio
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Particularly with regard to the measures 1n connection with the project SIGN, the outcome was an extra-
ordinary result in the amount of € — 1 4 million (2013 € 6 7 million) The substantial decline 1n companson
to the previous year was due to the loss of last year's one off special effect from the sale of the Bank's
own bulding which was the previous headquarters of Deutsche Hypo Interest on investment by silent
partners in the amount of € 8 4 rmllion (2013 € 15 9 rmithon) was taken into account This dechne 1s due
to the loss of interest expenses from an investment by sitent partners, which was converted to capital
reserves in 2013

The Bank reported a profit before taxes and profit and loss transfer, from an overall Bank point of view,
n the amount of € 31 6 milhion (2013 € 55 1 million) Together with the dechine in the profit before taxes
and profit and loss transfer, the Return on Equity (RoE) was 3 8 %, which was sigmficantly below the
level of the previous year (2013 7 2 %) The decline 1s due to the capital market business By cantrast,
the very positive performance 1n the commercial real estate finance business led to an improvement in
the Return on Risk Adjusted Capital (RoRa(Q) in the core business areato 21 9 % {2013 14 1 %) As mea-
sured by the Cost-Income-Ratio (CIR), Deutsche Hypo also distinguished itself in the 2014 financial year
with a high degree of operational efficiency This key performance indicator improved shghtly to 32 5 %
(2013 32 8 %) due to higher income and simultaneously, for the most part, stable administrative expenses

Comparnson of the development of husiness and income with the forecast fram last year

The shghtly positive ecanomic assumptions that formed the basis of last year's forecast for the deve-
lopment of income were met on the whole In particular, the economic development in Germany may
have been less dynamic than expected, but the very accommodating policies of central banks continued
to ensure a high level of hguidity, which in turn brought about high demand for commercial real estate
due to the low interest rates and a3 lack of alternative investment opportunities The expected significant
mncrease In the new business volume n the previous year was acheved with a volume of € 3,610 4 mithon
(2013 € 2,662 1 mihon), and as a consequence of which last year's expectation of a rise in the real estate
finance portfolio as of the reporting date of 31 December 2014 was achieved, despite the ongoing high
redemption rates, with a portfolio of € 12,409 8 milien (2013 € 11,931 7 mithon)

For the financial year 2014, Deutsche Hypo forecasted, from an overall Bank point of wiew, a positive
development of income and the achievement of a result from normal operatrons that would correspond
roughly to the income level of € 64 3 mitlion in the previous year With a result of € 41 4 million, this fore-
cast was not achieved As expected, the development of income was supparted by an angoing improvement
nthe nskresult to €-62 2 milhon {2013 € - 83 2 mllion) due in particular to the quality of the real estate
finance portfolio, but loan loss provisions in the capital market portfolie caused a significant dechne in
the income from secunties and participatory interest The impact of this could not be compensated in full
despite gher than expected net interest income of € 222 3 rmillion from an overall Bank point of view
(2013 € 209 8 mlhon} The expected RoE on the level of the previcus year was also not achheved with
38% (2013 7 2 %) The forecast of a roughly unchanged CIR was achieved with 32 5 % (2013 32 8 %)

The expected shghtly positive development of income 1n the core business area of commeraial real estate
finance was exceeded 1n the past financial year with 2n increase in the result from normal operations
to € 954 million (2013 € 74 6 million), particularly due to the shghtly higher than expected net inte-
rest income of € 180 4 rmilhon (2013 € 174 2 milhon) and the ongoing improvement 1n the nsk result of
€ - 48 6 milhon (2013 € - 64 9 milhon) The RoRaC alsa rose significantly, contrary to expectations, to
219% (2013 14 1 %)
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In capital market business, the Bank was not able to achieve the expected shght impravement in the
result from normal operations despite a sigmficant ncrease, contrary to expectations, 1n net nterest
income to € 21 7 milhon (2013 € 16 0 mlhon} due to the descnbed loan loss provisions The RoRaC was
negative, which was not anticipated 1n Jast year's forecast

Net assets and financial position

Development of the balance sheet

Change
1h € milhons 3112 2014 31122013 {in %)
Recevahles
Martgage loans 12,4098 11,9317 40
Loans to lacal autharities 6,362 2 74125 -142
Other receivables 1,740 5 14030 241
Securities 9,254 4 10,145 2 -88
2880 3821 —-246

QOther assets
Total assets 30,0549 31,274 5 -39

Liabihitres

Mortgage Pfandbniefe 8,8348 87392 11
Public Pfandbnefe 8,8073 11022 6 -201
Unsecured bonds 21721 26241 -172
Qther liabihties 8 492 2 7,241 0 173
Subordinated habilities 3260 3360 -30
Jouwssance right capital 830 830 00
Funds for general banking nsks 144 14 4 00
Equity 9132 9132 oo
Other habilities 4119 3010 68
Total habilitas 30,054 9 31,274 5 -39
Contingent habilites 7910 838 2 -56
Other cbhgations 10487 1,067 8 -18

The Bank's balance sheet total fell overall by € 1,219 6 million or 39 % to € 30,054 9 million in com-
panson to the previcus year The development was again due pnmanly to a reduction of 142 % or
€ 1,050 3 million in the portfolio of loans to local authonties to € 6,362 2 milien and a reduction of 8 8 %
or € 890 8 milhon in the portfolio of secunties to € 9,254 4 milhen This scheduled reduction of the pubhic
sector finance portfolio 15 1n hne with Deutsche Hypao's guiding strategic focus for some years now, with
the goal of shifting the relevance of the Bank in the direction of the core business area of commeraial
real estate finance Accordingly, the portfolio of real estate finance rose shghtly year-on-year, by 4 0 % or
€478 1 million, to € 12,409 8 million For more infarmation about the portfolio of loans, please refer to
the explanations 1n the course of business

In the funding of the credit business, there has been a shift towards 1ssued mortgage Pfandbnefe for
some years now An issue of public Pfandbriefe has not taken place for many years In companson to
the previous year, the partfohio of arculating mortgage Pfandbriefe rose shghtly by € 956 mithon to
€ 8,834 8 mihon The portfohio of circulating Public Pfandbnefe fell agan sigmficantly, by € 2,215 3 million,
to € 8,807 3 millton in comparison to the previous year Unsecured bands also decreased significantly as
of balance sheet date to € 2,172 1 milhion {2013 € 2,624 1 million) For information on the maturities or
the due dates for habilities, please refer to the explanations in the notes to the financial statements For
addional information on Deutsche Hypo's funding activity 1in the past financal year, please refer to the
explanations in the course of business
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The balance sheet equity remained unchanged at £913 2 rmilhion 11 comparison to the previous year Due
to the control and profit and loss transfer agreement, Deutsche Hypo transfers profits in full to NORD/LB
Therefore there are no changes in the profit reserves The total balance sheet equity plus the jouissance
nght capital, subordinated habihties and the funds for general banking risks 1n accordance with Section
340g of the German Commercial Code was € 1,336 6 million and shightly below the amount1n 2013 due to
the scheduled repayment of subordinated habihties {2013 € 1,346 6 milion) For information on the regu-
latory equity, reference 1s made to the explanations in the expanded risk report of this management report

Off-balance sheet obhgations in the form of wrrevocable credit cammitments fell shghtly by € 19 1 million
to € 1,048 7 milhon as compared to the previous year (2013 € 1,067 8 milhon} Contingent habihties
fell by € 47 2 million to € 791 0 milhon (2013 € 838 2 milion) Qther explanations on off-balance sheet
obligations are made 1n the notes to the financial statements

Rating
Mortgage Pubhc Short-term Long-term Finanqial
Pfandbriefe Pfandbriefe habilities liabihities strength
Maody's Aal Aal Prime-2 Baal E+

The negative outlook issued in September 2013 by the rating agency Moedy's for the long-term rating
of Deutsche Hypo continued to apply Moody’s also adjusted its assessment of European banks on
29 May 2014 The reason was the potential impact that the EU’'s adoption of the Bank Recovery and
Resolution Directive (BRRD) and the Single Resolution Mechamsm (SRM) would have In this connection,
a total of 109 European financial institutes recewed a “negative outlook” On 9 September 2014, Moody's
announced an adjustment mnits rating methodology for 2015

General statement on the course of business and the position of the Bank

Deutsche Hypo achieved a result from normal eperations of € 41 4 million in the 2014 financial year
The development of the result was sigmficantly affected by loan loss provisions in the capital market
business They sutweighed the very positive income development in the core business area of com-
merci3l real estate finance, which had already been noticed in the increase in net interest income with
a ssimultaneously very positive development in the rnsk result due to the ligh quahty of the real estate
finance portfoho Despite the additional expenses in particular from new regulatory requirements,
Deutsche Hypo was able to keep admmistrative expenses stable The performance clearly shows the
success of the active cost management and the implementation of measures in the project SIGN

A largely posttive market environment was used to sigmficantly expand the new business volume
n the core business area of commercial real estate finance tn dewiation from the previous years,
the share of new foreign financings rose considerably As a result of this, the portfoho of real estate
finance was higher as of the reporting deadline of 31 December 2014 than in 2013 According to
the strateqic focus, the reductton of the public sector finance portfoho continued concomitantly as
planned The funding of the credit business was ensured through the Bank's own 1ssues at all times
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Report on subsequent events

There were no events of particular sigmficance that eccurred after the end of the financial year and
could have a sustained impact on the Bank's net assets, financial and income position

Forecast, opportunity and risk report
Forecastreport

Development of business and general conditions
Forecast for economic development

Sentiment in terms of economic development in Germany improved significantly at the end of 2014
and the begqinming of 2015 In surveys, above all, econemic expectations rose noticeably The low price
of ol, the devaluation of the euro and the prospect of an ongoing extremely expansive monetary
pohcy by the ECB 1n 2015 should hft the prospects of market participants and companies markedly
Asigmficant driver of growth continues to be domestic demand and here, above all, private consump-
tion Besides the ongoing fow inflaticn and the continuing rse in employment with another shght
decline in unemployment, this 1s also supported hy the ongoing strong increases 1n wages The
German economy s facing a sehd upturn according te the Research/Econcmics Division at NORD/LB
Economic output should increase by 1 9 % year-on-year

In the eurozone, the shght economic recavery 1s also expected to continue n 2015 This forecast
assumes that the pnice advantages in crude ol and further monetary policy stimulus can contribute to
a gradual rise in economec momentum during the year, and that negative (geo)political developments
do not have an impact on the economic performance The differences in growth will remain high,
however, with the German econemy again expanding sigmficantly more strongly than the rest of the
eurozone A reduction in unemployment and budget deficits will bring about minor improvements,
but no far-reaching success 1s expected

Forecast for the development of the target real estate markets

For the full year of 2015, Deutsche Hypo anticipates an ongoing positive development of global
Investments in commercial real estate

Germany

Due to the low interest rates and the associated investment pressure, the Bank anticipates that the
positive trend on German real estate investment markets will continue for the full year of 2015 Real
estate demand should continue to exceed the avallable supply and the transaction volume should
be above the amount from the previous year In particular, foreign investors should contribute here
As compared to 2014, 1t 15 assumed that prime yields wall fall by 10 to 15 basis points again At a level
between 4 0 % and 4 5 %, these now represent the lower hmit for many investors Due to investors’
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increasing risk appetite, 1t can be expected that demand for B cities, B locations and types of use such
as affice and retailwill continue to gain momentum n 2015 Overall, 1t1s expected that the differences
n returns between core and non-core real estate will continue to fall

Europe

The continuation of the shght economic recovery in Europe, connected with low interest rates, shouid
also continue to stimulate demand on European real estate markets Itis also assumed that investors’
sk appetite will continue ta remawn tugh The trend towards investments 1n secondary cities and in
alternative market segments (such as logistics real estate) shouid continue QOwverall, 1t 1s expected
that the difference between rents and capital values (both for core and also non-core properties} wiil
remain high

The UK, particularly London, should remain a strong market for \nvestors Due to the shortage of
supply 1n London, investors' increasing interest in alternative locations should continue Similar to
the UK, high demand in particular in the metropohs of Paris should remain strong due to international
capital inflows In the Benelux countnes, GOP forecasts for 2015 are above the average in the euro-
zone Rents and capital vatues are expected to offer additional opportumities for growth The interest
of investors in markets such as Amsterdam, Brussels and Luxembourg should continue to increase
overall Due toits economic prospecis, there are also signs of growth 1n the Polish commercial real
estate market

Forecast for the development of international financial markets

The developments oninternational financial markets will also be influenced by the actvities of central
banks in 2015 As expected, the ECB announced a massive expansion of 1ts bond purchases with a
monthly volume of € 60 bilhon at its first meeting 1n 2015 Since the measure 1s 1imtially planned until
September 2016, this will result 1n a total sum of more than 1 trillion euros For the development of
capital market returns n the eurozaone, this should remain a ¢ritical muting factor over the course of
all of 2015, with a sharp rise in yields in the eurozone not being expected The high hqudity and the
ongoing low interest rate level will also continue to ensure positive sentiment on international finan-
cal markets However, negative developments on account of anticipated (geo)pohitical developments
or economic performance cannot be ruled out

Forecast for the development of business
Sigmficant assumptions in the forecast

Deutsche Hypo's multi-year plan, which 1s compited annually, provides the basis for the statements
on the income forecast A planming model 1s used that enables Deutsche Hypo to model the results
expected in the future This includes factars such as new business, the development of the portfoho and
the resuiting margins Economic assumptions on the future economic and financial market develop-
ment as well as with regard to regulatory and internal Group requirements are also incorparated into
the planning The value of the planmng s naturally highly dependent on the assumptions Unexpected
develapments in external orinternal factors can have a noticeable impact on the Bank's results This
includes payment difficulties of individual counterparties in the capital market business
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With regard to the macroeconomic framewaork data, the planning assumes largely functional market
mechanisms and a continuation of the positive trend towards the ongoing calming and stabilisation
of international financial markets It 1s assumed that Deutsche Hypo will have access to funding on
a sufficient scale and on the basis of standard market conditions at all imes it1s expected that the
implementation of the developed strategic measures and the good condition of the real estate
markets as well as the ensuing increase in the demand for credit will lead to a nse 1n new potential
business A shght decline in the margin level 15 assumed

The income forecast also takes into account Deutsche Hypo's structural and business policy measures

for strengtheningits position over the long term

* An increase and expansion of the product range, the constant promoting of lucrative, innovative
product offers as a basis for angoing high new business volumes

« Strategic focus on the defined target markets

* Continuation of the project development business and strengthening of the business in real estate
investment banking (special and structured financing)

+ Intensification of syndication to support attractive projects with a comparatively high financing
volume Parallel expansion of the agency function as a service performance for syndication and exit
transactions

» Targeted development of business relatienships to new partners thatinvest in real estate financing

* Run-off of the pubhc sector finance portfoho for a reduction of wdden charges and credit spread
risks in the banking book with solely selective new business activity far liquidity and cover pool
management

= Strengtheming of operating efficiency and disproportionate cost development through the
optirmsation of pracesses and structures as well as the leveraging of synergies

Forecast for the course of businessinthe business areas

Deutsche Hypo seeks to take advantage of the still expected good market environment and achieve a
shghtincrease in the new business volume 1n the core business area of commercial real estate finance
in the 2015 financial year (2014 € 3,610 4 milhon) This should be supported by the implementation of
the mentioned structural and business pohcy measures The Bank anticipates being able to use new
business to overcompensate for the expected ongoing mgh redemption rates For the year end 2015,
a shghtly higher real estate finance portfolio 15 expected in companson to the previous year (2014

€12,409 8 million}

The development of net interest income n the core business area of commercial real estate finance
on the basis of the described assumptions should produce a shght rnise in this position {2014
€180 4 millon) As in the 2014 financial year, the rnisk result1s expected to be at a similarly good level
1n the 2015 financial year due to the continued sigmficant improvement 1n the previous year and on
account of the ongoing high quahity of the real estate finance portfoho (2014 € -48 6 milhon) Due to
the expected significantly higher expenses for the assumption of credit risks by thard parties, the Bank
expects a result from normal operations in the care business area that is shghtly below the very high
income of € 95 4 milhon 1n the 2014 financial year A somewhat lower RoRaC in the core business area
1s expected as a result (2014 21 9 %}
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The camital market business was defined by the loan loss provisions in the year under review and
will continue to be influenced by the strategic goal of reducing the public sector finance portielio in
the 2015 financial year Following the development in the 2014 financial year, solely selective new
business for hquidity and cover pool management will be pursued The total portfohio of securities
andloans to local authorities will again be sigmificantly reduced as compared to the last years' balance
sheet date (2014 € 15,616 6 million) As a result of this, a shght dechne 1n net interest income 15
anticipated in the capital market business (2014 € 21 7 milhon) Negative effects incompanison to the
year under review are only expected to amoderate extent so that a shghtly positiveresult from normal
operations 1n capital market business 1s anticipated in total Thisimplies a positive RoRaC

Result forecast from an overall Bank point of view

The basis for the result forecast is the described planning premises, the forecast for the course of
business 1n the business areas and the expected development of external influential factors in par-
ticular For the overall Bank, Deutsche Hypo expects that it will sigmhicantly exceed the past year's
result from normal operations in the amount of € 41 4 millionin 2015 The rise 1inincome will primanly
be 1n connection with the anticipated sigmficantly lower extent of the negatve effects on income 1n
the capital market business Positive developments will be observed 1n a significantly improved risk
result (2014 €- 62 2 milhon) and a substantial i/mprovementn the income from securities and parti-
cpatory interest (2014 €-42 5 milhon)

The net interest income, which 1s of major importance to Deutsche Hypo, should remain in total
roughly on thelevel of 2014 with €222 3 milhon from an averall Bank point of view, despite the planned
ongoing reduction of the public sector finance portfoho, on account of the expected shght nise in the
netinterestincome 1n the core business area of commercial real estate finance

The income of the overall Bank will be supported again by stable administrative expenses relative
to the previous year {2014 € 70 2 million} Despite the anticipated expenses from new regulatory
requirements, the success from the cost management of Deutsche Hypo will be noticed again

The described developments will lead to a largely unchanged CIR from an overall Bank point of view
(2014 32 5 %) The expected rise in the overall Bank’s result should be reflected n a substantial rise
n the RoE (2014 3 8 %)

Opportumties and risks of future business development

The descnbed forecasts relate to the expected developments in the 2015 financialyear Qpportunities
and risks are primarily seenin Deutsche Hypo's risk result orincome from securities and participatory
interest that deviate positively or negatively from the forecast Both income components are
sigmficantly affected by the developments of external econamic and sector-specific conditions and
developments on internaticnal financial markets These can only be planned to a mited extent
Unexpected developmentsn external factors can have a major impact on the Bank's results

Furthermore, as a result of financial difficulties of individual capital market counterparties, 1t 1s
passible that these will have an unexpected impact on the income of the Bank Uncertainties also
remain due to the possibihty of new legal requirements for the recovery and resolution of banks,
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which provide for the possibility of creditor participation {bail-in) under certain circumstances For
Deutsche Hypo this would possibly be associated with significant effects on the income In this
context, however, there s also the possibility of write-ups onimparred positions from the previous year

Major types of nisks that occur in this connection are counterparty risks, market price risks, hquidity
rsks and operational nisks In the context of Deutsche Hypo's nsk management, the aforementioned
nsk types are monitored The following expanded risk report goes into detal on the goals, strategies,
structures and processes in risk management Furthermore, there s an outlook for all risktypes in the
2015 financial year

With regard to the Bank's income, the scope of the potential positive or negative deviations from the
forecast values 1s considered to be sigmficantly lower Nonetheless, particularly increasing margin
pressure on account of competition and a lower new business volume 1n the core business area of the
Bank than forecast are potentially negative factors for the develapment of income at Deutsche Hypo
In1ts lending pohcy, the Bank will also continue to have high expectations in terms of gquahty and
returns 1n the conclusion of new business, and comphance with the risk principles described below
will also be part of the focus when evaluating borrowersn future

Due to the goal of preventing the types of nsks from having a negative impact on the development
of iIncome at Deutsche Hypo, the nsk management s also automatically combined with apportumties
managementin the form of a possible positive deviation in the forecast nisk result or the income from
secunities and participatory interest

General statement on the forecast report with sigmficant opportumties and risks

For the 2015 financal year, Deutsche Hypo assumes a pleasing development of business and a result
from normal operations that will sigmficantly exceed the level of € 41 4 million 1n the past 2014 finan-
cial yearn particular due to a shghtly better nsk result and a substantial improvement in the income
from secunties and participateory interest The forecastis based on the assumption of ongoing shghtly
positive external general conditions Unexpected developments in external influential factors and
payment difficulties for individual counterparties in capital market business can have a noticeable
impact on the Bank's results

According to the business strategy, the focus wili continue to shift towards the core business area
of commercial real estate finance In expectation of a shght rnise in the new business volume 1n the
core husiness area, it will be possible to continue overcompensating for the high redemption rates
in the real estate finance portfoho From an overall Bank point of view, a stable net interest income1s
expected despite the ongoing strategic reduction of the portfolio in the capital market business
Expanded risk report

Risk management

Fundamentals of nsk management

Due to the use of the waver rule 1n accordance with Art 7 {1) CRR, formerly Section 2a (1) of the
German Banking Act {(KWG}, which was described 1n last year's annual report. Deutsche Hypo s not
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responsible for the regulatory provisions concerning the requirements for equity on the level of the
institute, the requirements for large exposure notification and the calculation and securing of the
nisk-bearing capacity, the specification of strategies and the establishment of processes for the 1den-
tification, evaluation, control, monitoring and commumcation of risks {Section 25a {1) clause 3 no 1
of the KWG} on the level of Deutsche Hypo after providing notification en 7 June 2013 The aforemen-
tioned requirements are transferred to the parent company due to the control of Deutsche Hypo that
NORD/LB has in terms of regulatory law

Despite being released from these responsibilities by exercising the wawver rule, Deutsche Hypo
as a Pfandbrief bank 1s still subject to the rules of the German Pfandbrief Act (PfandBG) 1n terms of
Section | of the PfandBG Section 27 of this Act requires an appropriate nsk management system
for the 1dentiftication, assessment, contral and monitoring of all risks associated with Pfandbnef
business The implementation of existing requirements from the PfandBG 1s an integral part of the
existing risk management and requires the control of the counterparty, market prnice and hquidity
risks an the level of the cover pools

Deutsche Hypo has implemented an inter-divisional nisk management process and is included in the
risk management process of the NORD/LB Group in the regulatory context In this context, the types
of risks that are relevant for Deutsche Hypo (overall sk profile) are 1dentified as part of the strategic
sub-process far nskidentification These nisks then pass through — depending on their materniahty —
the operating sub-processes of nsk assessment, risk reporting and nisk management and monitoring
The sub-processes’ content corresponds to the concrete MaRisk requirements, which are made of
the nsk management and controlling processes in the internal control system {IKS) Deutsche Hypo's
IKS axims not only to meet the external requirements, but also acts as a major compenent of the nsk
management process and contnbutes to systematically rdentifying and reducing process nsks The
rnskmanagement process for the identification, assessment, control and monitoring of risks 1s subject
to continual review and refinement

In observing the previously mentioned requlatory conditions, Deutsche Hypo, as @ matertal subsidiary
of the NORD/LB Group from a risk point of view, implemented a risk organisation that meets the risk
strategy principles an both the level of the \ndividuatinstitute and on the Group level

Risk management - strategies and goals

The strategic orientation of the NORD/LB Group 15 determined wn comphance with Section 25a {1)
of the KWG, among others, on the basis of a consistently developed business and risk strateqy The
business and nsk strategy of the NORD/LB Group is based on all the significant (1n terms of nsk)
subordinate companies of the NORD/LB Group and thus Deutsche Hypo Deutsche Hypo prepares
an institute-specific, concrete and consistent risk strategy for the Group risk strategy and for the
business strategy of the Bank, which 1s onented on the overall nsk profile of Deutsche Hypo In 2014
Deutsche Hypo's nsk strategy was updated as usual

Risk management — structure and orgamsation
The nsk organisation of Deutsche Hypo corresponds to the risk policy objectives and includes an

efficient nsk management process with clearly defined responsibilities and competencies This 1s
supported by an adequate T infrastructure and quahfied employees, ensunng systematic interaction
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between involved divisions and smooth processes The nsk-related orgamsation structure and the
functions, responsibilities and competencies of the divisions invalved in the risk processes are clearly
defined down to the level of individual employees Furthermore, there 15 an established organi-
sational separatron between the market and nsk management functions up to and including the level
of management In 2014 Deutsche Hypo refined the existing committee structure on the level of the
Supervisory Board Besides the Lending and Risk Committee, which advises the Supervisory Board
on the current and future overall preparedness for risk and the nsk strategy, among others, Deutsche
Hypo also has, as permanent committees, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Commttee and
the Appointments Commttee All four committees serve to support the Supervisory Board 1n 1ts
monitoring functions

On the level of NORD/LB as the parent institution, boards have been estabhshed for handling the
rsk management process on the Group level and exercising the consulting, monitoring, control and
coordination functions This involves, among others, the Extended Group Board of Managing Directors,
the Group Control Committee and the Group Risk Committee Due tothe integration of Deutsche Hypo
in the nsk management process on the Group level, the results of the previously mentioned boards
have an impact on Deutsche Hypo Deutsche Hypo s included by sending representatives to these
boards Furthermore, on the level of the Group, there 15 a method board called sk management and
various working groups with the aid of which urmform Group standards are ensured for sigmficant
methads and reports on risk controlhing Deutsche Hypo is also represented in this method board and
inthese working groups

The process-independent review of the effectiveness and appropriateness of the nsk management
15 handled by Deutsche Hypo's Internal Audit Division On account of the outsourcing of sigmficant
responsibilities 1n Internal Audit to NCRD/LB, Deutsche Hypa's lnternal Audit 1s represented by an
audit officer who bears respensibihity for properinternal audit This monitoring 1s handled on the basis
of umform toals

For the purposes of ensuring that regulatory requirements are adhered to 1n relation to activities In
new products or new markets, a ' New Product Process” (NPP) 1s in place throughout Deutsche Hypo
As a standard process, the NPP regulates the development of new products and the approach taken to
new markets, new sales channels and new services The early identification of nsks, the appropriate
evaluation of their impact on the overall risk profile of the Bank and the determination of reascnable
measures to manage the risks take precedence After the successful concdusion of the NPP, 1t 1s pos-
sible to include the productin the running business operations

Over the course of time, the framework conditions considered in the NPP can change and have an
umpact an the proper handling af the product without this leading directly to a case-by-case product
review For this reason, a product review 1s carried out annually, on the basis of the current product
catalogue, for all products permitted for runming business operation
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Management of nsks affecting cover poal

In its capacity as a Pfandbnef bank 1n terms of Section 1 of the PfandBG, Deutsche Hypo 1s also
subject to the rules set outin the PfandBG As a result, the risk managerment system comprises both
the classical responsibilities and the identification, evaluation, controlhing and momtoring of all risks
that are connected with the Pfandbrief business

Deutsche Hypo has also estabhished a risk management system designed for the Pfandbrief business
Counterparty, market price and hawndity nsks are managed at the level of the cover pools in order to
guarantee the high quahty standards of the cover assets used for public Pfandbriefe and the high
quality of the properties serving as collateral in mortgage business The goal 1s to ensure the long-
term value and the earnings power of the Bank with a stable and cost-affordable funding basis 1n
connection with a high quality rating for the Pfandbriefe by rating agencies

Besides permanent complance with the cover pnnciples and the ensuring of sufficient coverage 1n
the cash value analysis (Section 4 {1) of the PfandBG) and the ensuring of the hquidity over the next
180 days {(Section 4 (1a} of the PfandBG), the Bank regularly analyses the quality of the loans used as
the cover portfolic Tmsindudes internal rating processes, the analysis of external ratings and the cash
flow structure and the permanent monitoring of the performance of the real estate serving as collateral

To comply with the requirements of the transparency provision in Section 28 of the PfandBG,
Deutsche Hypo publishes the appropriate information in the notes to the financial statements and —
together with the histoncal values — on the Bank's website

Cover pool of mortgage Pfandbnefe

The proportion of good and very good credit ratings in the mortgage cover pool amounted to 86 6 %
as of 31 December 2014 {2013 81 8 %) In terms of the entire real estate finance portfolio, this share
was 82 2 % (2013 78 0 %} The distnbution of ratings 1n the mortgage cover pool reflects the good
quahty of the Pfandbriefe
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Cover pool for Public Pfandbnefe

The share of loans with a very good rating of AAA or AAn the cover pool of Public Pfandbriefe was
737 % as of 31 December 2014 (2013 68 6 %) The average rating 1n the cover pool amounted to
AA - and signals the high quahty of the cover pool for issued Pfandbriefe
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Risk management - nsk-bearing capaaty

Due to the usage of the waiver rule, the risk-beanng capaaty (RBC) of Deutsche Hypo 1s monitored
on the level of the NORD/LB Group The RTF model of the NORD/LB Group consists of three levels of
analysis the going cancern (authontative monitoning level for an evaluatan of the nsk-bearing
capacity), gone concern {secondary condhition) and regulatory (strict secandary condition) 1n which
the significant risks {nsk potential) are viewed 1n each case i relation to the defined risk capial of
the indmvidual institutes or the Group Deutsche Hypo supplies the required information that 1s
consohidated within the scope of the nsk-bearing capacity calculation of NORD/LB for the Group The
nsk-bearing capacity of the NORD/LB Group 1s met as of 31 December 2014 The securing of the
risk-bearing capacity on the Group level 1s supported by the use of institute hmits for the sigmficant
types of nsk at Deutsche Hypo These imits are set by the NORD/LB Group, and their compliance has
an early warning character from the perspective of the NORD/LB Group Corresponding escalation
mechanisms have been estabhished for the exceeding of hrmits

The monitoring of hmits entails that the nsk potential for the major nisk types 1s calculated quarterly
according to the uniform Group methodology and compared to the respective mits for the Bank The
nsk potential 1s fundamentaily based on a Value-at-Risk approach with a confidence level of 95 % and
a holding period of 250 trading days {going concern) or a confidence level of 999 % and a holding
period of 250 trading days (gone concern)
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Current developments

As 1n the previous year, a shghtly positive sentiment was observed on money and capital markets
in 2014 This led to a further reduction in regard to the midden charges in the banking boak The nsk
potential in the going concern (confidence level of 95 %, time honzon of fundamentally 1 year) from
the sigmficant nsk types 1s as follows an 31 December 2014

Composition of nsk potential from the signmificant nsk types
1n the going concern as of 31 12 2014

B Credit nsk63 3 % (2013 65 6 %)

W Market price nsk 21 2 % (2013 18 7 %)

B Lquiditynsk 124 % (2013 12 8 %)

|

M Operaticnal nsk 3 2 % {2013 29 %)

There were no sigmficant changes from the previous year with regard to the distnibution of the overall
risk across individual types of sk in the going concern

Findings from the AQR

The portfohio of Deutsche Hypo was a part of the Asset Quality Review (AQR) in the Group during the 2014
calendar year Together with the Group-wide stress test, the AQR part of the comprehensive assessment
was a complate balance sheet audit of European banks prior to the start of new Europe-wide bank requla-
tion by the ECB One of the focal points was the real estate portfoho, particularly in Germany, the US, the
Netherlands and in the UK The audit confirmed the quality of the portfolio and did not show any matenal
differences in comparison 10 the Bank’s own evaluation

Counterparty nsk

Deutsche Hypo's counterparty nsk consists of the credit nsk, including the country nsk The financial
investment nsk does not have any strategic meaning and s insigmificant as a result The credit nsk refers
in general to the possibihty that a 1oss may 1ncur that 1s not covered by secunties as a result of an external
counterparty defaulting or suffering a deterioration 1n creditworthiness As well as the classic default
nsk, collateral risk 1s a further component of credit nsk This 1s understood as the nsk that 1t might not be
possible to recover the assumed fair values of loan collateral in the event of realisabion The counterparty
nsk1s also assigned to the credit nsk and includes the risk that if a cantractual party defaults it might no
longer be possible to collect an as yet unrealised gain from pending transactions (replacement nsk} or
that, 1n the case ¢f a transaction requinng contemporaneous performance, the instance of a counterparty
defaulting might mean that the counter-performance can no longer be fulfilled (performance nsk)
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Ancther component of the credit nsk in the case of cross border transactions can be the related sovereign
nsk This 1s the nsk that state-imposed obstacles could prevent repayment despite the individual bor-
rower being able and willing to make a payment (transfer nsk)

Counterparty nsk - goals and strategies

Credit nsks are handled on the basis of the Bank’s nsk strategy for credit nsks which,in turn, 1s part of the
overall risk strategy In accordance wath the part of the nisk strateqgy for credit nsks, the focus 1n the new
credit business 1s on lending to borrowers with a good credit rating, but at leastin rating class 9 and with
securities n the form of semor mortgages for the amount of the finanaing for the property In the capital
market business, Deutsche Hypo also concentrates on doing business with good counterparties with a
mimmum rating of iInvestment grade, but on average "A” or with a comparable rating Deutsche Hypo only
pursues business with customers/counterparties that he outside of the aforesaid credit rating focus after
careful consideration of the opportumties and nisks

Furthermore, no wndvidual credit exposure may reach an order of magnitude that can sigmificantly
compromse the economic stability of the Bank For the early identification and reduction of credit nsks,
all borrowers and counterparties that exhibit an elevated level of nsk will be determined In an early
warning process defined for this

In order to meet the specific requirements for each business area, the Bank has drawn up financing prin-
ciples that take the form of binding guidelines for new business for the Bank in the strategic business
area that was classified as relevant for nsk The risk-related evaluation of the commitments was handled
on the basis of a procedure specifically developed for the business areas (e g rating module)

Deutsche Hypo's aim 1s to achieve a competitive level of profitability and take into account efficiency and
flexibility in terms of active management of the credit nsk items in order to minimise the unanticipated
losses Credit operations and controlling the credht nsks a core competency of Deutsche Hypo, and one
that 1s permanently being further developed and expanded

Counterparty nsk — structure and orgamsation

All the orgamsation structures denved from the framework conditions and the processing procedures are
included in the wntten policy of Deutsche Hypo The credit nisk related crgamsational structure and the
functions, responsibiities and competencies of the divisions nvolved in the nsk processes are clearly
defined down to the level of Individual employees The processes 1n the credit business are charactensed by
a clear structural and organisational separation of the market dwision and the back office division up to and
including the level of management In the back office division, there is a separation between the credit nsk
controlling, the credit nsk management and the special credits management

Credit deasions as defined in MaRisk are all deasions on new loans, loan increases, loan takeovers, loan
extensions and significant changes to nsk-relevant properties of loans Loan decisions are always made by
two authonsed employees or, for speafic sizes of loans, by decision-making committees (e g the full Board
of Managing Directors) One person 1s always assignied from the market dimasion and one person from the
back office dmsion The authonsed employees respensible for making the decision must be on the same
funcbonal or hierarchical level The market division has no authonty to approve credits on 1its own
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Before the loan decisian 1s made by the responsible employee, two additional votes, namely ane vote from
the market dwision and one from the back office division must first be present The responsibility of the
authonsed employees 1s basically based around the total commitment of the borrower or borrower umt
to which the customer is to be allocated and around the rating class as determined n the credit rewiew
for the borrower or borrower umt concerned This ensures that the basis of the loan decision 1s not simply
the amount of the requested loan Rather, the nsk potential inherent 1n the total commitment 1s taken
Into account

Counterparty nsk— controling and momitonng

Deutsche Hypo's credit nsk 1s controlled and monitored pnmanly through the stipulahion of financing
principles, the imit system and the rating system

Financng principles

The financing prinaiples are an instrument 1n the nsk management and must be appled by all the
institutions affihated with the Group The finanang pnnaples are set ex ante by the back office division
and the market division, and should at least meet the expectations for petential business The financing
principles decument the uniform, Bank-internal understanding of the necessary benchmarks for starting
business and contracting in a certain market segment They are intended for effective pre-selection and
do not anticipate defimtive decisions 1n individual cases The annually checked finanang prnnciples are
reviewed by the respective analysts by means of a check Iist

For Deutsche Hypo, the following cntena apply as a mimimum risk standard n the real estate finance
business Approval by the Board of Managing Directors must be obtained 1n the case of non-comphance

= The redemption structures and the loan matunties ensure the redemption of the loans within the
remaiming term of the financed real estate

= The real estate and the overwhelming share of the portfalio 1n the case of mult-fammly home portfolios
are inspected by a Bank employee or an expert hured by the Bank pnor to the credit decision

= The financing must run off within the market values upon the imtial decision with due regard for the
mitigants andfor addihonal secunties

= On the part of the borrower, it 15 usually necessary to contnbute an appropriate amount of equity in the
form of cash andfor indmdual performance of 20 % of the total cost (onentation amount) 1n advance
A substitute in the form of perfect (in terms of credit rating) co-liability condittons/recoverable guaran-
teesfrecoverahle addiional collateral 1s possible

The focus 1s on the property types of office, retail/shopping centre, multi-family homes and properties
with a mix of the afarementioned types of use and selectively set to hotel and logistics real estate

Limit system

Deutsche Hypo 1s included in the imit systems for nsk concentration of the NORD/LB Group as part of
strategic rmting There are hrmits on the concentration of counterparty, country and sector nsks This
system combines, momtors and controls all the counterparty nsk concentrations in the Group The
Group-wide binding mits are considered Deutsche Hypo supplies the information required for this and
will 1n turn inform 1ts own borrowers about Group-wide concentrations of nsks If the hmits are exceeded,
unmform Group rules for the momtoring and reduction of the affected umt will apply In this case, there
are vanous hmits for each business area at Deutsche Hypo The miting of nsk 1s handled on the level of
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the country nsk, sector nsks and on the basis of individual nsk bearers all the way to limiting the nsk on
an indmdual mortgage praperty In order to avord nsk concentrations at the borrower level, mits are
n place for economic units that extend beyond the rules for borrower umts (borrower umt in terms of
Sectron 19 (2} of the KWG and groups of affilated customers in terms of Article 4 of the CRR) and that also
take into account secondary nsks such as e g tenant habities The actual form of the limits for real estate
segments 1s governed 1n the Bank's guidehnes

Rating system

The rating system calculates a rating score for each borrower, expressing the indnadual probabiity of
default over the next 12-month penod This rating score 1s then permanently updated as part of the
annual credit rating assessment and any assessment carned out following a particular occurrence The
rating modules 1n use were developed as part of cooperation projects involving the savings bank group
and the Landesbanks The evaluation of the credit rating of customers 1n combination with a nsk-adjusted
pnang of the loan leads to the compensation of the expected losses

Treatment of conspicuous exposures

The use of sophisticated credit rating evaluation processes cannot prevent the credit ratings of 1ndivi-
dual borrowers fram detenorating over time Exposures with early warming cnitena are included 1n the
early warming hst The early warmng list fundamentally includes all the claims that do not develop 1n
accordance with the plan at the time of the onginal credit decision and represent an elevated nsk that
requires specaial credit monitonng This involves intensively monitored exposures

Exposures in certain nsk classes are transferred to Special Credit Management and can be assumed by
this department {drawing nght) This department 1s responsible for having an influence early on and
introducing a restructuring process n order ta ensure the senvicing of the contractually agreed 1nterest
and caprtal payments or to develop and implement alternative options for action If there 1s no longer
any option to restructure, an effort 1s made to optimise the ncome from the collateral in the case of
unwinding The Special Credit Management s also the centre of competence for nsk prowvisioning and has
to ensure a reascnable measurement of the nsk prowvision at all ttmes In order to ensure the latter, the
Speaial Credit Management Department sets the amount of the risk provisioning within the scope of the
competency rules

The early identification of crists situations forms the basis for the nsk-conscious and effictent cantrol
of credit nsks For this reason, Deutsche Hypo has a series of processes, systems and requirements
that represent a system for the early \dentification of various nisks in combination and facilitates the
systematic controlhng and introduction of measures for their hrmting

Framework conditions for the credit business with the public sector and banks

The general procedures and methods described above for cantrolling and managing credit nsk also apply
to the credit business conducted with public sector and banks In addition to counterparty imits, the
lirit system also comprises imits for business types (capital market, money market, dervatives, repo
transacbion performance risks) and sub-hmits for indwidual countries A mimimum rating of A (or compa-
rable internal rating) remains the general requirement for all new business As a general rule, Deutsche
Hypo only enters into dervative transactions with suitable bank partners that meet the high credit rating
requwrements Deutsche Hypo also enters into collateral arrangements, which secure all or parts of the
counterparty nisk
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Counterparty nsk — collateral

Deutsche Hypo accepts collateral located 1n Germany and abroad in order to reduce 1ts credit nsk With
regard to commercial real estate finance, loans are generally secured by means of a mortgage n the
amaunt of the loan In excephonal cases, mortgage collateral can be omitted A requirement for this1s a
good credit rating and the observance of the lirmit for finanaing not collaterahsed by mortgages

The value of the property and thus the value of the related secunties 1s monitored on a regular basis,
generally at least annually If there have been any influential factors that are of relevance to the value of
the secunty, a revaluation must be carned out Deutsche Hypo's credit guidehnes and lending principles
set out definiions of the basic types of secunty and properties being mortgaged that may be used as
secunty, and the maximum share of the value of the collateral or of the financed property that can be lent
Both the fair value and the lending value calculated 1n accordance with the stnict provisions of the German
Regulation on the Determination of Mortgage Lending Value {BelWertV) are applied The latter hasadirect
impact on the ehigibihty as cover of the loans and thus influences the volume of the caver pool available as
secunty for Pfandbnefe 1ssued by Deutsche Hypo, 1n accordance with the terms of the PfandBG

Mertgages, guarantees and similar collateral, assignments of claims and other rnghts, hens on property,
claims and other nghts and transfers of ownershp as secunty are all basically accepted as loan secunty
Only mortgage hens and guarantees from suitable credit institutes and hquid funds provided as collateral
are taken into account for the purposes of nsk assessment in the loan portfolio and the easing of capital
reguirements as stipulated in the CRR

Counterparty nsk — measurement

The direct quantification of the credit nsk takes place for the Bank on the one hand on the level of the
NORD/LB Group and on the other on the leval of the indwdual institute of Deutsche Hypo The explana-
ticns below on the measurement of the credit sk include the general descniption of the methods and
processes that are used on the level of NORD/LB for the measurement of the credit nsk Credit nisk 15
measured using the risk key figures of expected loss and unexpected loss These are calculated on the
basis of the probability of default that 1s determined from the rating scores and the anticipated loss
amount per loan, taking account of any collateral The expected loss 15 the expected default in the loan
portfolio over the next twelve months To cover expected losses, the Bank collects a nsk premium as part
ofits margin The amount of this prermum for each individual loan depends on the rating or probabihty of
default and on the expected loss ratio The unexpected loss for the credit nskis quantified using an eco-
nomic credit nsk model for different confidence levels and a time honzon of one year The credit nskmodel
used by the NORD/LB Group incorporates correlations and concentrations into the nsk assessment The
credit risk model calculates the unexpected loss at the level of the portfolio as a whole Incorporated into
these calculations are the probability of default (PD) and loss given default (LGD) ratio calculated using
internal ratings and determined for each indmdual transaction taking the secunty situation 1nto account

The credit nsk model can be used to study sub-paortfolios and their share of the unexpected loss Such
analysis also has a direct impact on the fundamental structure of the hrmit system and on the setting of
speafic indmdual limits In this way, 1t1s possible to manage nsk cencentrations in the portfolio approp-
nately Deutsche Hypo uses the internal ratings based approach (IRBA) to calculate the regulatory capital
backing required for credit nsks pursuant to the CRR
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In addition, scenario calculations for the indvidual institute’s portfolio In the form of stress test analyses
are performed The design of the Group-wide stress scenarno and its ongeing momtoning take place with
the inclusion of Deutsche Hypo Authontative stress 15 a senous recession This case s calculated quarterly
by the Group, and the results are then placed at the disposal of Deutsche Hypa for its own analysis on the
level of the individual exposure This makes 1t possible to carry out a nsk-causing assignment of the credit
risk potential to the business areas The sensitity analyses can be used as early warmng instruments

Counterparty nsk — reporting

Deutsche Hypo prepares a nsk report quarterly This provides the Board of Managing Directors and the
Supervisory Board with detalled information on the Bank’s nsk situation This report includes the credit
nsk sub-report, which contains a summary and analysis of all matenal structural charactenstics and
parameters that are of relevance for the controling of the credit portfoho Furthermore, a portfoho report
for the Board of Managing Directors 1s prepared on the portfoho of problematic exposures for the real
estate finanaing and capital market business In addition, there are quarterly repeorts on the momtonng of
project developments and monthly reparts on conspicuous exposures as part of the early warmng system
and on the development of the nsk provisiomng

Counterparty rnisk - analysis of the credit exposure

The credit exposure, a key reference indicator 1n credit nsk controlhing, represents the quantification of
all nsk-encumbered transactions Its calculation 1s based on drawdowns — at nominal value 1n the case of
guarantees or carrying amount In the case of secunties, or on the credit equwvalent amounts of
denvatives, including add-ons and taking account of netting Irrevocable credit agreements are usually
included in the credit exposure at 75 % Irrevocable credit commitments are not taken inte account As
part of the internal reporting process, the Board of Managing Directors and the Supennsory Board are
kept informed at all times of the development and analysis of the credit exposure

Deutsche Hypo's credhit exposure as of 31 December 2014 was € 31,771 6 milhon, down € 1,984 1 milhon
or 59 % as compared to the end of 2013 The volume increased by € 386 7 milhon to € 13,703 4 milhon
in commeraal real estate financing Credit exposure to loans to local authontes fell sigmficantly, by
€ 1,067 6 million, to € 6,377 0 million, in accardance with the reduction of the pertfolie as planned 1n
the strategic focus There was an overall decline of € 1,303 3 million 1n the portfoho of secunties and
dernwvatives and 1n the other financing products This development reflects the business policy of the
Bank, which aims to turn the Bank into a pure real estate finance bank In the capital market business
{loans to local authonties and secunties), basically no new business was pursued so that a corresponding
reduction in the portfolio occurs as a result of running-off matunuies

The focus of the credit exposure continued to be on the very good to good IFD classes This classification
corresponds to the standard IFD ratings scale as agreed on by the banks, Sparkassen and associations
that together form the Imtiative Finanzstandort Deutschland {IFD} The aim of this scale 1s to make 1t
easier to compare the ratings awarded by indwadual credit wnstitutions The rating classes of the 18-
level DSGV rating master scale used throughout Deutsche Hypo can be translated directly into the IFD
classes The proportion of tatal exposures in the rating class “very good to good” was 79 2 %, and again
above the level 1n 2013 (76 7 %) The reason was mamly the ligh shares of exposure to governments,
public authonties and finanaial institutes that have a very good credit rating Likewise, there was an
improvement in the real estate finance area
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The percentage of non-performing loans (NPL) increased, due to the developments in connechon
with Heta Asset Resolution AG, from 12 % to 17 % of total exposure The absolute volume rose by
€122 8 mithon to € 530 8 million

In the following, the breakdown of the credit exposure by rating categones s descnbed 1n table form The
hedging transactions campleted for the purpose of active RWA control in the years 2012 and 2014 were for
the credit portfolios 1n commeraial real estate finance and involved cash-covered guarantees These trans-
actions are notincluded in the pure mezzanine risk of the underlying portfolias because of thewr impact

Breakdown of total credit exposure by rating category

31122014 Real estate Leans Secunties Denvatves Other Total Sharen Lotal
in € milions finance to local exposure exposure
authonties
Very goad to good 8,5663 62733 80133 17150 606 1 25,1739 792 %
Good / satisfactory 27693 04 3287 250 253 3,l487 99%
stll good f sufficient 1,298 6 00 3656 00 594 17236 54%
Elevated nsk 5005 00 3373 0o 00 8378 26%
High nsk 297 532 783 0o 00 611 05%
Very hgh nsk 1956 00 oo a0 oo 1956 6%
Default (=NPL) 343 4 502 1372 00 00 5808 17%
Total 13,703 4 63770 92605 1,740 0 6390 7 31,771 6 1000%
31122013 Real estate Loans Secunties Denvatves Qther Total Share1n totat
in € mihons finance to local exposure exposure
authaonties
Very good to good 73320 73148 87265 16961 8149 258844 767 %
Goed / satisfactory 29325 191 442 4 2197 79 36216 107 %
sull good / sufficient 1,494 7 568 4309 255 6185 2,0697 61 %
Elevated risk 5185 27 462 5 00 00 9836 29%
High nsk 2120 512 106 2 aa 00 369 4 11%
Very high nsk 4189 00 00 04a 00 4189 12%
Default (=NPL} 408 0 00 00 00 00 4080 12%
Total 13,3167 74446 10,1685 19413 8847 337557 100 0%

The Bank's credit exposure in the reat estate finance business amounted to roughly € 13,703 4 milhon at
year end (2013 € 13,316 7 milhon), and 92 2 % of 1t {2013 88 3 %) consisted of financing for customers
that have a rating of at least satisfactory As a result of the ongoing improvement, NPLs totalled 2 5 % of
the total loan exposure, after being 31 %10 2013 The overwhelming majonty of the NPL portfolio was
filled by fereign financing, largely in the Netherlands and Spain In total, the development of the NPL expo-
sure showed that the level had again reached the long-term average that was observed before the cnsis
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Breakdown of credit exposure in real estate finance business by rating and region*

ENGLISH TRANSLATION

3112 2014 Domestic Share in total Foreign Share 1n total Total Share tn total
in € milhons exposure exposure exposude exposure
Very good ta qood 4,7302 34 5% 38362 Z80% 8,566 3 625%
Guood { satisfactory 23571 172% 412 2 30% 2,769 3 202%
Stll good / sufficient 1,1507 84% 1479 11% 1,298 6 95%
Elevated nsk 2881 21% 212 4 15% 5005 37%
High nsk 45 00% 251 02% 297 02%
Very hagh nsk 467 03% 1490 11% 195 6 149%
Default (=NPL] 655 05% 2779 20% 343 4 25%
Total 86428 63 1% 50605 369% 13,703 4 1000 %
31122013 Domestic Sharan total Foreign Share in total Total Share in total
1n € milhons exposure expaosure exposude exposure
Very good to good 43651 328% 296690 223% 73320 551%
Good f satisfactory 2,244 4 169% 6588 1 52% 29325 220%
sull good f sufficient 1,345 4 101 % 149 4 11% 14547 112%
Elevated nisk 4221 32% 964 07% 5185 39%
High rsk 317 02% 180 4 14% 2120 16%
Very mgh risk 1234 09% 2955 22% 4189 31%
Default [=NPL) 695 05% 3385 25% 4080 31%
Total 8,601 5 64 6 % 4,715 1 354% 13,316 7 1000%
Breakdown of the total credit exposure by class and region:
3112 2014 Real estate Leans Secunties Denvatives Other Total Share n total
finance to local exposure exposure
m € milhons authonhes
Eurgzone 11,6211 61982 78718 11368 6037 2743186 863%
of which Germany 8,642 8 47674  3,1405 4388 6036 17,593 2 554 %
Gther EU 1,7304 82 3007 799 0o 21193 67%
Other Eurcpe 0o 1706 158 127 0o 1990 06%
North America 3519 oa 7817 5106 54 16496 52%
Central Amenca 00 oo a0 00 00 [+] 00%
Middie East/ Afrca a0 0o 00 oo 00 00 00%
Asia 00 00 2841 00 QG 2841 09%
Other 00 20 64 00 816 880 03%
Total 12,703 4 63770 9,2605 1,740 0 6907 31,7716 100 0%
3112 2013 Real estate Loans Secunties Denvatives Other Total  Sharein total
finance tajocal expoesure exposure
n € milhons authonties
Eurozone 11,0878 724873 8,5797 1,1621 7706 28848 6 855 %
of which, Germany 86015 57842 3,4401 5268 7571 191097 566 %
Other EU 17178 269 2908 1630 00 2,198 5 65 %
Other Eurape 00 16913 899 140 61 27913 08%
North Amenca 5110 oo 7233 602 3 159 18525 55%
Central Amenca 00 00 60 00 00 &0 0C%
Middle East/ Afnca 00 0aQ oo 00 00 00 00%
Asia oo o0 4787 00 00 4787 14%
Other 00 00 00 00 921 921 03%
Total 133167 74446 10,1685 1,9413 8847 33,7557 1000%

The amounts as of 31 12 2013 were corected
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The breakdown of the total credit exposure by class and region shows that 93 6 % {2013 92 8 %) of the
entire exposure 15 1n Eurape The share of the loan exposure as a percentage of the total exposure In
Germany amaunted to 55 4 % (2013 56 6 %)

The Bank’s exposure to countnes referred to as the PIIGS countries amounted to € 3,052 4 milhon
{2013 € 3,212 5 million) This included the use of credit plus full inclusion of existing payout obhga-
tions The Bank’s afcrementioned exposure to the PIGS countries did not include the existing real estate
finance business 1n these countries with 2 volume of € 2349 million {2013 € 320 4 milhon) The
exposure of € 3,052 4 milhon was distnbuted with € 2,032 5 mithon {2013 € 2,077 6 milhon) for govern-
ments, public authonties and municipalittes, and € 1,019 9 nuihon (2013 € 1,134 9 million) for banks and
other institutions

Portugal accounted for € 2953 mition (2013 € 3225 milhan), Ireland for € 1984 milhon (2013
€ 2397 million}, ltaly for € 1,437 9 milhion (2013 € 1,409 0 million}, Spain for € 1,120 8 million {2013
€ 1.241 3 mihon) In Italy, € 89 9 milhon (2013 € 79 3 milkon) was attributable te corporate loans and
€ 1,348 0 million (2013 € 1,329 7 million} to the public sector In Spain the exposure to companies
{not including real estate finance) totalled € 376 0 milhon (2013 € 376 1 milhon), to the public sector
€ 1908 million (2013 € 261 6 million), to banks € 554 0 milhon {2013 € 603 6 million)

Due to the European support measures and the currently emerging calm in the European sovereign debt
cnsis, Deutsche Hypo does not see any acute risk of default at the present time Nonetheless, the expo-
sure to the PIIGS countries 1s a permanent focus of nsk momitoring The strategic onentation sets forth
thatn advantageous market conditions the sale of secunties will take place if this 1s possible in a way that
largely protects the income statement Through 2018 the portfolio will fall by more than 50 % —f things
develop as planned —and will dechne by € 2,210 6 milhon to € 841 9 milhon over the next ten years

Non-performing toans in real estate finance business

Where there are abjective indications of acute default nsks affecting the balance-sheet credit business,
Deutsche Hypo establishes specific loan loss prowisions The write-down requirement 15 based on an
analysis of the expected nterest and pnincipal payments and the proceeds from the realisation of col-
lateral, and also on the extent to which claims can be senaced Risk provisiomng for off-balance-sheet
business, such as guarantees and credit commitments, 15 carned out by creating a provision for nisks
from the credit business Any claims that cannot be recovered and for which there are no specific loan
loss prowvisions are wnitten off directly tncormng payments towards wntten-down claims are recorded 1n
the income statement

The total loan loss provisions and prowsions for the commercial real estate finance business feil by
€ 21 million as compared to the previous year, totalhing € 149 6 milhon 1n 2014 The overwhelming
majonty was attnbutable to the eurozone with € 143 7 milhon (2013 € 113 1 milhon) The portfolo in
the UK and the USfellto € 0 0 mithan (2013 € 11 9 milhion) and € 5 9 million {2013 € 26 8 million) due to
the processing of impaired credit The amount of loan loss provisions and provisions as a proportion of
the total credit exposure as of 31 December 2014 was 0 47 % (2013 045 %)
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The table below shows a companson of the credit exposure of impaired credit and the total impairments,
consisting of loan loss prowisions and provisions

Credit exposure of impaired loans Portfoho of loan loss provisions
n € mithons and prowisions
31122014 31122013 31122014 3112 2013
Eurozone 2019 2472 1437 1131
Other EU 0o 792 co 119
Narth Amenca 339 436 59 268
Totat 3258 3699 1496 1517

The portfolio of overdue, ummpaired credits also fell year-on-year to € 17 7 million (2013 € 38 1 milhon)
The penod of default for a majonty of this credit exposure (€ 17 1 milhon) was less than 90 days The
overdue or impaired loans are secured by standard collateral, which 15 valued using the applhicable
lending pnnaples

Counterparty nsk - outlook

The positive development an real estate markets also continued 1n 2014 The Bank assumes that this
will also hold true in 2015 Accordingly, Deutsche Hypo does not anticipate an increase in the nisk
prowvisioning required for this business area

In the area of capital market and public sector lending business, a further calming of the cnsis 1n the
eurozone countnes was observed 1in 2014 In particular, the increases 1n spreads observed 1n previous
years and the worsering of credit rabings slowed significantly Nonetheless, 1t 1s necessary to wait for
future developments since it cannot be completely ruled out that indwadual capital market counterparties
will have payment difficulties

Depending on the speafic general conditions of the indmadual countnes and their public authanties, tins
can lead to substantially different developments with regard to country-specific credit nsks Deutsche
Hypo will momitor the performance of real estate and capital markets attentively and take switable
measures, if need be

Market price nsk

Market price nsk refers to the potenbal losses that could incur following changes in the market parameters

Market price nsk ~ goals and strategies

Deutsche Hypo does not currently have a trading book 1n accardance with Article 4 (86) CRR Trading
book actwities will also not take place in future In general, market price risks are not of major strategic
significance for Deutsche Hypo, which 1s reflected in the low share of market price nsks as a percentage of
the total nsk in the going concern analysis In accordance with the Bank's nsk strategy requirement and
its importance and order of magmtude, Deutsche Hypo's positioning in the money, foreign exchange and
capital markets i1s primarily based on the needs of customers and the support of the market dwisions and
overall Bank management A further opportunistic positioning — particularly with the goal of achieving the
short-term realisation of speculative profits —is not pursued and s also not planned
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Market pnce nsk - structure and organisation

Agairst the background of the nsk-related orgamisational structure, diverse divisions are involved 1n
the management of market pnice nsks The contralhng of the strategic market price nsk banking book
positions 15 handled by the Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO} at Deutsche Hypo, and the operative
implementation by Treasury In the context of the requirements laid down by ALCO and in accordance
with the market price nsks and counterparty hmits as well as the nisk strategy requuements, Treasury
deades on and manages the business activities in the capital market business The ensuring of the
correctness of the transaction data 1n the data processing systems and the proper processing of the
financial market business s handled by Treasury Operations in the market price nsk management pro-
cess Controlling and Treasury Operations are funchionally and orgamsationally independent of the
Treasury Controlling s responsible for the tasks involved with nsk evaluation, the controlhing and
monitoring process and the reporting

Market price nsk — controlling and monitoring

A major component of the monitoring pracess 1s the audit of comphance with the pre-set hmits and
early identification of nsks, e g through traffic hght systems or PR&L analyses Escalation processes are
implemented for violations of the hmit In addition to comphance with the already described nstitute
hrmts, other institute-individual limits are used for market price risks that may refer both to economic and
to balance sheet positions The hmits for market price nsks are measured such that the support of the
customer business and the iguidity management are ensured through the business strategy The himits
also cover the nsks resulting from the investment of equity Furthermore, the impact of stress tests s
analysed regularly

The VaR figures are calculated on the basis of a histoncal simulation process The portfolio i1s valued on
the basis of the histonical changes in the market pnce The VaR performance inchcators for the nsk of a
change n interest rates are determmned with due regard for credit spread nisks from securities in current
assets Inaddition, the VaR performance indicators for the nsk of a change in interest rates are calculated
with due regard for credit spread nisks 1n the banking bosk

The management of currency nsks 1s primanly handled by mimmsing currency results in the income
statement 1n accordance with the German Commercial Code To achieve these goals, the open nominal
overhangs per currency are closely controlled Camphance with the aforementioned limits 1s momitored daily

To control or reduce risks, positions are hedged in order to counter the impact of disadvantageous
market movements {e g 1n interest rates ar currency exchange rates) concermng the Bank’s own posi-
tions Primanly denvatives such as interest and currency swaps as well as forwards are used as hedging
instruments Addinonal information 1s prowided 1n the notes to the financal statements

Market price nsk — reporting

The Board of Managing Directors s briefed on a daily basis on interest rate nsks, income fram the Bank's
Interest matunty transformation, and nsk concentrations relating to indmdual currencies and matunties
In addition, there 1s daily reporting on the credit spread risks in the banking book Daily reports on foreign
currency risks are also sent to Treasury The hidden charges in the banking bock are calculated at least
quarterly and reported to the Board of Managing Directors and the Superasory Board 1n a nsk report
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In this connection, Deutsche Hypo also regularly conducts analysis on the institute-speafic impact of ca-
pital market induced stress events on the amount and composition of the lidden charges in the banking
book The first analysis took place as of 31 December 2014

In addion to this, the Board of Managing Dwectors 1s informed weekly about the impact of stress
scenanas as part of the ALCO meeting The results of the backtesting are reported at least guarterly
The Bank's Supervisory Board 1s advised on the market price nsks in a comprehensive quarterly report
Independently of the regular reporting cycles, ad hoc information 15 provided to the full Board of
Managing Directors and the Superwsory Board through a standardised reporting process in the case of
significant events relevant to market price nsk

Market prnice nsk - developments and ocutlook
The development of the nsk of a change innterest rates at Deutsche Hypo was on a moderate level inthe

year under review, as expected The following table shows the development of the Bank’s market price
nsks i companson 1o the previous year

Market pnce nsks 31122014 31122013
1n € thousand
VaR *} Interest rate risk {(Going concern}

portfoho of “entire bank™ 2113 1,341

Standard nsk *=} Interest rate nsks

portfolio operating” 22635 18,280
YConfidence level 85 % 1 day holding penad ==} Parallel shift 100BP

The increase 1n the VaR in the going concern analysis as compared to the previous year is not based on
anncrease n the nsk appetite of Deutsche Hypo, but rather an extension of the investment penod for a
porton of the perpetually available equity, which comes wath an increase in the available limit

The dally calculated VaR for the interest rate nsk fluctuated in the reparting penod between € 1 3 milhon
and € 2 4 milhon in 2014 The average value of € 1 7 millon for the year confirms Deutsche Hypo's low
risk appetite The interest rate nsk1s for the most part related to the investment of perpetual equity The
utiisation of the VaR himit for interest rate risks averaged 61 % over the year (2013 33 %) The Bank did
not exceed this imit at any time

The development of the VaR 1n 2014 (85 % confidence level, 1 day holding penod) 1s shown in the chart
below Credut spread risks in the banking book are not inctuded
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In 2014 the Bank continued the successfully pursued successive reduction in the positions in the
banking book identified as having a credit spread nisk in past years The amount of the exposure totalled
€ 16,297 2 million as of 31 December 2014 (2013 € 18,264 1 millicn) and fell by € 1,966 9 milhion
A declhine in hidden charges in the banking book was deterrmned as compared to 2013

The systematic pursuit of the conservative nsk-strategic goals and the attentive momtoring of the market
developmentsn 2015 are also the focal points of controlling for the market price nsk at Deutsche Hypo
In this context, this includes the strategy for a reduction in the positions that have credit spread nsks in
a way that protects the income statement, among others For 2015, Deutsche Hypo continues to expect
the nisk of a change n interest rates on a moderate level

Deutsche Hypo will continue the ongoing development of the nsk models and the rnisk management
process both on the level of the individual Bank and in the refinement of the integration of Deutsche
Hypo 1n the nsk management process of the NORD/LB Group in 2015

Ligudity nsk

Liguidity nsk encompasses the following nsks being unable to meet payment obligations or unable to
meet them on time {classic hquidity nsk), having to accept a potential negative impact on income due to
a change in the funding conditions on money and capital markets {refinancing nsk) and being forced due
to low liquidity levels to enter into transactions 1n some markets on the basis of conditions that do not
correspond to the fair market value {market iquidity nisk)

Liqguidity nsk - goals and strategies

For the Bank, the secunng of hquidity available at any time, both under normal and stress scenarios 1s
a sirateqic necessity In the funding of the business actmvities of the market dwistons, Deutsche Hypo
fundamentally pursues the strategy of term-congruent funding Involvement in open funding positions
has low strategic significance for Deutsche Hypo Liguidity nsk mits cap the nsk of a negative impact
on income due to a change 1n the hquidity spreads related to an open hquidity nsk position In the
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measurement of the amount of the hquidity nsk imits, the factors of securing sufficient hguidity, the
risk-beanng capacity of the NORD/LB Group and the use of the opportumities are taken into account with
respect to the contnbution to profits from bank-typical hquidity spreads

Global Liguidity Pohcy (GLP) at the Bank descnbes the strategic framework for secunng sufficient iqu-
dity In the cage of a iqudity cnsis, the management of the hguidity nsk 1n accardance wath the GLP
conceptis assumed by an independent team 1n close coordination wath the Board of Managing Directors
and - depending on the type of cnsis —with crisis managers from NGRD/LB

In terms of a complete consideratron of the Bank's liquidity costs, benefits and nisks in the income and
risk management, Deutsche Hypo’s goalis to offset these components internally 1n accordance with their
cause In this context, Deutsche Hypo invested heawily 1n this area in 2014 and refined the existing hqui-
dity transfer pricing system in accordance with the requirements of MaRisk The business policy pnnciples
and the responsibihties ansing with the hquidity transfer prncing system bothn regard to the application
and the refinement of the hquidity transfer price system are formulated 1n the binding Group-wide Group
Transfer Pnang Pobaoy

Liquidity nsk — structure and orgamsation

The process of hquidity nsk management must include the entire Board of Managing Directors and
Treasury and Contrelling In order to ensure cbjectiity and transoarency and to avoid confhcts of interest,
1t1s necessary to ensure the pnncaple of a functional separation between the area to be controlled and the
nsk controlhng function up to and including the management level

The Board of Managing Directors sets framework conditions, junsdictions, processes and nisk tolerance
for the hquidity nsk and 1s responsible for the design of the hguidity nsk strategy and for the effective
implementation of the hquidity nsk management The ALCO at Deutsche Hypo assumes responsibility
for the management of the banking hook positions, which includes in particular the strategic hquidity
posiions Treasury handles the operating ltquidity nsk management It 1s also responsible for the
management of the intraday hquidity posiiens As an independent monitoring unit, Controlling defines
the apphed processes for the measurement, iimiting and monitenng of iquidity nsks and carmes out the
operative momtenng and reporting functions Reporting 1s responsible for the deterrmnation, monito-
nng and reporting of key hquidity indicators to the regulators in accordance with the German Liquidity
Regulation (LiqV) Controlling handles the hquidity notifications in accardance with CRR

Liguidity nsk — contralling and monmiterning

In addition to compliance with the nstitute’s hmat, the Bank also uses volume structure hmits for the
refinanaing nsks to contral and momtor the hquidity nsks The momitonng of the limit vtihsation of the
volume structure himits takes place on the basis of the iguidity outflow statement of the entire posi-
von The calculated balances for the individual matunty bands from one month up to 30 years may
not exceed the approved volume structure hmits If lumits are exceeded, they are reported to the Board of
Managing Directors Furthermore, the refinancaing nisks from sigmficant foreign currencies are
determined and capped through volume structure imits
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The classic hquidity nskis hrmited and controlled by a dynamic stress test scenano The scenano describes
the most hkely cnisis situation from an expert's point of view A difference 1s made between determimstic
payment flows and vanable or unforeseeable payment flows The amount and matunty of the determi-
mstic payment flows 1s known at the time of the report, while the amounts and/or matunties of the van-
able payment flows are unknown and modelied by using suitable stress assumptions Compliance with
the mits 1s monitored daily To assess the matenality of indiwdual foreign curreneies, a standardised
processis used If indmadual foreign currencies are classified as sigmificant, the ciassic hqudity nsk s also
monitored 1n these foreign currencies

In addition, there are further static stress tests They model both the institution's own and the market's
cnsis scenanos The goal 1s to avord hquidity shortages in cases of crises Additional hquidity may be
secured 1n the case of stress by maintaining a hquidity buffer consisting of free, highly hquid secunties in
accordance with the requirements of MaRisk

The market hquidity nsks are implicitly considered according to ther market hquidity by differing between
the secunties in the calculation of the classical iquichty nisk By using the detaled secunty classes
concept, the classification takes place on the basis of the degree of hquidity in the indwidual security, with
assignment to vanous main classes with muttiple sub-classes {depending on e g central bank ehgibility
and rating) In addiion, the market hgquidity in the calculation of the market prnice nsk is considered

Liquidity nsk - reporting

The report on the dynamic stress scenano will be prowvided danly to Treasury and the Board of Managing
Directors The use of the requsred hquidity buffer 1s reported to Treasury on a daily basis The hguidity out-
flow statement and the utiisation of the volume structure mits and the nstitute limit for the cash value
refinancing nsk are provided to the Treasury every day Furthermore, the summary report on the classical
hgudity nsk and the refinancing nsk takes place within the framework of the quarterly nisk report

Liquidity nsk - developments and cuticok

Deutsche Hypo had suffioent access to the money and capital markets at all imes 1n 2014 The total 1ssue
volume was € 2,852 2 milhon {2013 € 3,265 7 milion) and, measured 1n terms of the Bank’s need, made 1t
possible to place suffiaently covered and unsecured issues for an acceptable hquidity adequacy on the market

There was no unsecured funding requirement as of 31 December 2014, as i the previous year, an account
of the forward-locking hquidity management and the largely term-congruent funded new business

The distance to 1lhquidity from the dynamic hquidity stress test (LST) used for internal controiling and
hmiting moved between 183 and 365 days in 2014 As of 31 December 2014, the distance to 1lhguidity
was 316 days The requirement for the green phase 1n the traffic hght system 1s to maintain a mimmum
value of 180 days, which was met over the entire year Likewise, the Bank met the requirements for the
maintained hgquidty buffer in accordance with MaRisk throughout the course of 2014

The active management of hquidity and careful observation of the markets meant that Deutsche Hypo's
hquidity was ensured at all times 1in 2014 The hquidity perfermance indicator in accordance with the
German Liquidity Regulation (LigV) was always significantly above the required regulatory mimmum
amount of 1 00 and amounted to 1 58 as of 31 December 2014
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While Deutsche Hypo increasingly invested resources n the ongoing development of the reporting 1n
accordance with CRR 1n 2014, 1t will focus 1ts efferts in 2015 on the expansion and refinement of the
internal reporting and the fulfilment of the new reguirements in the area of European regulatory
reporting An increase in the hguidity nsks 1s not expected 1n 2015

Operational nsk

Operational nsks are possible events which are not ntended from the Bank's point of view and which
occur an account of the insufficiency or the failure of internal processes, employees and technology or
through external influences and lead to damage or a significant negative consequence for the Bank (e g
breach of law) Legal nsks are included, but strateqic nsks and business nisks are not included According
to this defimtion, legal nsks and the rnisks of changes 1n laws, comphance risks, outsourcing risks, dilution
nsks, fraud nsks and vulnerabiity nsks 1n emergency and cnsis management are included in operational nsk

Operational nsk — goals and strategies

The gundelines for deahing with gperatignal nsks are expressed in Deutsche Hypo's nsk strategy Funda-
mentally, operational nsks should be avoided or transferred if this 1s economically sensible Conscious
inwvolvement in operational nsks has no strategic significance for Deutsche Hypo The Bank protects itself
from operational nsks if the cost of the protection dees not exceed the amount of the expected damage
or if there may be significant reputation effects Furthermore, there are framework conditions 1n the form
of techmcal and organmsational measures, contractual provisions and working instructions to reduce the
operational nsk as much as possible Not only specific contingency plans and appropnate 1nsurance
coverage, but also every employee's sensibility for nsks play a key role here

The causes of nsks and the concentration of nsks should be identified through a continuous analysis
of cases 1nvolving losses and nisk indicators as well as the apphcation of the nsk assessment methods
A functioming IKS prevents operational nsks The appropnateness and effectiveness of the IKS 1s checked
with regard 1o nisk at regular intervals

Deutsche Hypo uses the possibilities of outsourcaing processes with due regard for the regulatory
reguirements n accordance with MaRisk The outsourced functions should continue to meet the Bank's
performance and quality standards The goal 1n this context 1s to increase efficiency, optimise processes,
concentrate on core competences, reduce nsk potential, lower costs and make costs mare flexible
Processes that represent strategic core competencies usuaily remain within Deutsche Hypo The nsk of
outsourcing 15 kept as low as possible by taking suitable measures

Operatignal nsk - structure and orgamisation

The Board of Managing Directors, Controlling and all other departments are included n the process of
managing operational nsks The Board of Managing Directors determines the fundamental treatment of
aperational nsks in ight of the nsk situation on the level of the overall Bank Within the set framework
conditions, responsitnhty for the controlling of the operational risks 1s decentralised and hes with the
indmdual departments Controlhng handles the central tracking of operational nsks and the independent
reparting Some tasks are also assumed by NORD/LB within the scope of outsourcing
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Operational nsk — controlhing and momtornng

Deutsche Hypo 1s closely integrated into the standardised Group methods as a subsichary of NORD/LB
NORD/LBs developed methods and processes for the management of operational nsks are applied to
Deutsche Hypo They are adjusted to the extent that they are appropnate with regard to Deutsche Hypo's
type and scope, siructure and operational nsk situation

The management of operational nsks 1s supported n this context by a methodological framework for nsk
assessment The constantly updated assessment of the nsk situation entails the evaluation of ongoing
extensive information such as cases of loss, nsk indicators and the results of scenano analyses Suitable
measures are taken by the responsible departments if the occasion requires it The plans for continuing
business, the emergency plans and the appropnateness of the insurance coverage are checked at regular
intervals Escalation processes have been set to ensure the prompt intreduction of cauntermeasures

The inclusion of Deutsche Hypo 1n the nsk management on the Group level means that the cperational
Value-at-Risk hmits (OpVaR) for Deutsche Hypo are deterrmned by NORDILB 1n light of the nsk-heanng
capacity on the level of the NORD/LB Group, and comphance with them plays a central role 1n the manage-
ment of operational nsks at Deutsche Hypo

Operational nsk - reporting

In the course of the ongoing nsk management process, the results from the recorded loss events in
terms of nsk indicators and risk assessment are analysed and communicated quarterly to the Board of
Managing Directors The regular reports contain not only the hmit utihsation of the OpVaR hmit set by
the NORD/LB Group, but also, among others, the information from the loss event database on the status
of the nsk indicators, the results of the scenano analyses and the nisk assessment of the ongoing legal
disputes and externally outsourced significant acowvities The Supervisory Board 15 also informed on a
quarterly basis as part of a detalled nsk report on the status of operational nsks facing Deutsche Hypo

Operatronal nsk - developments and cutlook

For the year 2015, the plan s to complete the introduction of the refined methed of the nsk assessment
at Deutsche Hypo Furthermore, the Bank plans to expand the early warming system In this context, the
introduction of additional nskindicators and the overhauhng of exasting onesis planned

Accounting-related internal control system (IKS) and nsk management system

The accounting-related internal control system (IKS)1s a part of Deutsche Hypo's overall [KS concept This
15 based on the requirements of the internationally recogmsed COSO framework for ensuring an appro-
priate and effective IKS Key controls and simple controls have been implemented 1n all the accounting-
relevant processes These cantrals are to be performed penodically or on certain accasions, their results
documented and ther appropnateness checked at regular intervals They include ongoing manua! control
work within the work process and programmed controls within the IT systems In particular, contrals have
been implemented at the interfaces between the dwisions and departments involved 1n the accounting
process and between the Bank's IT systems This ensures that the dearly defined speafications within the
accounting process are iImplemented
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The indwmdual matenal charactenstics of Deutsche Hypo's IKS in relation to the accounting process can be
descnbed as follows

* Deutsche Hypa's Accounting is responsible for the preparation of the annual finangal statements and
the management report The accuracy and completeness of the obiigatory accounting circumstances
from supplying dwisions 1s handled there and subject to adequate controls The functions of the Bank's
dwisions involved 1n the accounting process are separated Areas of responsibility are clearly allocated

« The IT systems and files used 1n the accounting process are protected against unauthonsed access,
manipulaticn and loss by means of reqular data backups and corresponding access restrictions

+ The permanent momtonng of the IT systems by appropnately trained employees of the Bank and
external systems partners reduces the nsk of downtime and ensures high availabihty

* The Bank has implemented an appropnate system of guidelines and instructions in an orgamsational
manual that takes the form of an organmised structure and workflows

= All accounting processes are subject to consistent manual and automated controls according to the
four eyes pnnople

s Bookkeeping files that are recewed or forwarded are checked for completeness and accuracy, for
example by means of random samphng The software used contains speafic plausimhty tests within
1ts programming

* The plausibihty of the data that 1s calculated in the accounting process is regularly checked

« Internal Audit checks the observance of the IKS independently of processes

The control actvities speafied above serve to ensure that transactions are adequately assessed and
entered correctly and promptly The qualified techmcal personnel, appropnate IT systems and legislative
andinternal company specifications form the basis for a proper accounting process Report recipients are
therefore provided with accurate and rehable information

Regulatory equity resources

Due to the exercising of the wawer rule, the obhgations to provide indwdual bank reports and com-
phance with the equity and capital requirements 1 accordance with CRR, part 2 and 3, do not apply
to Deutsche Hypo on the level of the indwiduat institute For the reparts on the eguity resources on
the Group level and for internal controling, Deutsche Hypo calculates and will also continue to calcu-
late, after exercising the wawer rule, the equity and nsk-weighted assets (RWA) that are consohidated in
the reports prepared by NORD/LB for the Group The Bank also calculates the equity ratio, which com-
pares all the existing capital components with the equity requirements calculated in accordance with the
regulatary provisions In accordance with the regulatory requirements, a total of € 1,254 9 million (2013
€ 1,192 6 million) were wncluded for regulatory mmmmum capital reguirements in the Group This meant
a nse of € 62 3 milhon as compared to the end of 2013 At the same time, the RWA feliby 80 % As a
result, the equity ratio improved to 17 1 % (2013 15 0 %)

Summary of the risk position

Independently of the exercised wawver rule, the Bank will also continue 1ts consciously conservative risk
policy An authontative factor in the regulatory context 1s both the risk imits provided by the NORD/LB
Group and other nsk-strategic objectives that Deutsche Hypo must comply with Besides the Group stra-
tegy specafications, the requirements contained i the rules of the German Pfandbnef Act (PfandBG),
which are binding for the Bank, were also met at all tmes
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QOverall, a slight economic recovery was noticed on real estate markets in the year under review This
supporied the clear decrease n the credit exposure to impaired loans The portfolio of loan loss provi-
s10ns and prowisions in the credit business also fell shghtly The trend towards recovery was also seenin
the ongoing improvement in the quahty of the loan portfolioc The noticeable positive basic sentiment
on money and capital markets in recent years also had a beneficial effect on the general nsk situaton in
the area of capital market business 1n 2014 However, this was obscured by the loan loss provisians 1n
connection with Heta Asset Resolution AG The hidden charges in the banking book fellin 2014

Due to the ongoing development and the default guarantee of the state of Carinthia, there 15 also the
latent nsk of additional nsk provisioming measures in 2015

Independently of this, Deutsche Hypo will continue to reduce the public sector finance portfoho 1n a way
that protects the income statement, in part due toa the background of the current paohitical discussion with
regard to the high level of debt 1n some EU countnes Deutsche Hypo will be abie to reduce the risksin
the banking book as a resuit

Hanover, 11 March 2015

The Board of Managing Directors

Pohi Rehfus




anbiun Jqes [endesg

jueq pue Jawoisnd
U33M13g puoq I|gels e JO SIUBIAE 5103 IR YIlym Jo || — AJ[iq
-BI[3J puUe MDY-MOUY Uno 0] Jxau 51anpoid buieadde apuaoid o1

3|qe a4z am ‘ABM SIY| J31IRW 3|GIX3J B UL SIIYS 134.BW 0] 1983 O} suoljdoesued) a2.ndes 10y
AI[IGe 3y} Se ||3m Se S194Iew 312152 (2a) AU JO UOLIEAISS]D JUe)
juawdo|anap Jeinbay

-su03 B saydwi ssausng o3 yaeoudde 216azesis sodAy aydsineg




INTRODUCTION MANAGEMENT REPORT ELRITIRINECTAIYRS (Y JIIL0ER AUDITOR'S REPORT ORGANISATION 71

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance sheet as of 31 December 2014

Income statement for the period
from 1 January to 31 December 2014

Statement of changes in equity
Cash flow statement

Notes




72

DEUTSCHE HYPO ANNUAL REPORT 2014

ENGLISH TRANSLATION

BALANCE SHEET
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2014

ASSETS

31 Dezember 2013

€ € € {in € thousand}
1 Cash reserve
a) Cash on hand 000 1]
b) Credit wath central banks 418831369 14 64347
of which
with the Deutsche Bundesbank
€ 41 883 369 14 {PY € 64 347 thousand)
41 883 369 14 64 347
2 Recervables from financial institutions
a) Morigage loans 2138626700 25,891
b) Loans te local autharities 1 299 495 B94 45 1742 388
¢) Cther recewables of which 1 633504287 25 1262 646
due datly
€ 1 329,865 948 31 {PY € 829 397 thousand)
2954 386 443 70 3,030,925
3 Recelvables from customers
a) Marigage loans 12 388,419 707 23 11 905 859
b Loans te local authanues 5,062,691 74595 5 670,066
c) Other recewvables 106957 526 84 140344
17 558 068 980 02 17,716,269
4 Bonds and other fixed nterest secunties
b) Bends and debentures
ba} from pubhcissuers 402547470975 4449633
of which ehgible 25 collateral at the
Deutsche Bundesbank™
€2 140831 652 03 (PY €2 781 707 thousand)
bb) from other 1ssuers 522894573232 5695 268
of which ehgible as collateral at the
"Deutsche Bundesbank™
€4 475,244 444 60 {PY € 5 085 908 thausand)
9254 42044207
¢} Own bonds 66925828 85 27169
Nomnal amount
€67 018 000 00 (PY € 25 761 thousznd)
9 321 346 270 96 10172,370
S Participatory interest 76,949 43 77
6 Shares n affilated companmies 5113741 51
7 Intangible Assets
B} Purchased hcenses industnal property as
well as licenses to those nghts and assets 369 42100 424
d) Payments made on account 488 387 90 416
857,808 90 840
8 Tangible assets 2 396 069 35 11186
9 Other assets 98,988,187 18 180 420
10 Accrued and deferred items
a) from the 1ssue and loan transaction 57658 98074 87619
bl others 19200 358 43 20,494
76,859 33917 108,113
Total assets 30054914 555 26 31274528
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LIABILITIES

31 Dezember 2012

€ € € {in € thausand)
1 Labilities to finanual institutions
al Issued registered martgage Pfandbnele 17398204619 176 367
b) Issued registered public Pfandbrefe 537 036,319 86 563774
¢} Other habiliies 6831 740272 50 5,925 640
of which due daily
€512 474,351 06 (PY € 623 256 thousand)
7542 808,638 55 6 665781
2 Liatilities to customers
a) lssued registered mortgage Pfandbnefe 844 107 670 40 859373
b} Issued registered public Pfandbnefe 6,61537124478 7091067
d) Other habihues 1 66¢ 501 902 00 1315388
with which due daity
€12,815,107 42 {PY € 34 419 thousand)
9119,980,817 18 9 267 828
3 Securniised liabihitres
a) Assigned bonds
a2) morgage Plandbnefe 7316703312 4% 7701 482
ab) public Pfandbnefe 1654881 109 16 3365743
ac) othe bonds 2172,129 407 19 1,624,142
T 1164371432884
11,643,714 32834 13 693,367
4  Other habihtes 279 051 906 95 149 413
5 Accrued and deferred items
a) from the 1ssue and lcan transaction 60754 141 09 76 705
b) ather 12 8311992] 14 289
73,585 340 30 90,994
6 Provisions
3l Provisions fram pensions and
sirmlar gbhgations 3363593799 300l
bl Tax provisions 4328207 4% 7980
¢) Other prowvisians 2123775441 22,602
59,201,900 25 60 573
7 Subaordinated habhties 326,000,000 00 336,000
8 Jowssance nght capial €3 000,000 00 83 000
9 Funds for general banking risks 14 400 000 00 14 400
10 Eguuty
a) Subscrbed capital 80 640000 09 80,640
Capual held by silent partners. 75000000 0O 73000
b} Capitai reserves 48131387723 481 314
c) Profit reserves
ca) statutory reserves 18917 793 &0 18918
cd) other profit reserves 257 295 946 36 257300
276217 745 96
913171,62319 913172

Total habilties

30,054,914,555 26

31,274,528

1 Contingent habilities
b} Liabihties ansing from sureties

and guarantee agreements 760999155 41 838183
790,999,155 41 838,183

2 Other abligations
¢} irrevocabie credit commitments 1048 711 898 56 1 067 841

1,048 711 898 56

1,067 841
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INCOME STATEMENT

FORTHE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY TO 31 DECEMBER 2014

1 January 2013 -
31 December 2013

€ € € {in € thousand)
1 Interestincome from
a) Credit and money market transactions 6794995 742 59 751 424
b} Fixed interest bearing securities and
book entry securit es 27601017750 302114
$56 905 920 0% 1053538
2 Interest expenses 734 654 970 28 843 769
232250999 81 209 769
3 Currentincome from
b} Part’cipatory interests oot 1
o0 oo 1
4 Commissionincome 15297 50003 13740
S Commssion expenses 10835 111 B 71la
4458 38822 & 626
6 Otheroperalingincome 315849301 3208
7 General admimstrative expenses
2} Persennel expenses
aa) wages and salanes 36 180,885 92 36,555
ab) social security and expenses for
pension plans and for suppart 684370040 6649
cf which

for pension plans
€1 567 716 10{PY € 2,671 thousand)
43024 586 32

bj Other admimstrative expenses 263519825876 24885
69,544,413 08 68 089

8 Write-downs and value adjustments of
intangible assets and tangible fixed assets 635 832 58 860
9 Othet operating expenses 13 650 653 8% 9 645

10 Write downs and value adjustments on
receivables and specific securities as well as
allecations to previsions mn credit business 62,168 050 85 83,038
- T 6216869085 83238

11 Write-downs and value adjustments on
participatory interest sharesinaffihated
companies and on securites treated as
Fixed assets 4247255512 0
- 4247255512 ]

tZ tncome from wnung up participatoryinterest
sharesin agffihated companies and securities

treated as fixed assets 000 6529
000 6529
13 Resultfrom nermal operations 41 385 685 56 64 301
14 Extraordinaryincome a00 13856
15 Extraardinary expenses 135230915 71i1
16 Extraordnary result -135230915% 6745
17 Taxesanincome 2,766,782 64 5564
18 Othertaxes notincluded
underitem 9 15827 51 i6
28156101% 5380

19 Profit surrendered under partial
surrender agreements of a profitand

loss transferagreement 37217 766 26 65 466
20 Profitfor the penod aoo 0
21 Transferto profit reserves 0400 o]

22 Balance sheet profit 000 0
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

in € thousands Subscnbed Capital held Capital Profit Balance Total
capital by silent reserves reserves sheet profit equity
partners

As of 1 January 2014 80,640 75,000 481,314 276,218 0 913,172
Capital increases 0 0 ) 0 0 0
Dwndend payments 0 4] a 0 0 0
Gther changes

Allocations to the profit reserves 0 4] O 0 0 o

Conversion of capital held

by silent partners 8] 0 ¢ 4] 0 0
Profit for the penod 0 0 Q 0 0 0
As of 31 December 2014 80,640 75,000 481,314 276,218 1] 913,172
n € thousands Subscnbed Capital held Capntal Profit Balance Total

caputal by silent reserves reserves sheet profit equity
partnars

As of 1 January 2013 80,640 150,000 406,314 260996 15,222 913172
Capital increases 0 o ] 0 0 0
Diwidend payments 0 0 0 o} a a
Other changes

Allacations ta the profit reserves 0 0 1] 15222 -15,222 0

Canversion of capital held

by silent partners 0 -75000 75 000 0 4] 0
Profit for the pernod ] 0 0 0 0

As of 31 December 2013 80,640 75,000 481,314 276,218 0 913,172
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ENGLISH TRANSLATION

n € thousands 3014 2013
1 Net result before extraordinary 1tems 1,352 - 6,745

Non-cash items contained in the net result and transfer to the cash flow

from current operations
2 Wnte-downs, value adjustments and write-ups to recewvables, fixed and finanaal assets 108,213 77,443
3 Increasefdecrease in reserves 911 -1746
4 Qther non-cash espenses/income 0 0
5 Profit/loss from the disposal of inancial assets ~348 -6464
6  Profit to be surrendered under a profit and lass transfer agreement 28818 49,600
7 Other adjustments (batance) - 207989 -186,011
8  Subtotal -69,043 -73923

Change in assets and habilities from current operations
9  Recelvables

a from financial institutions 33243 1,415,39¢C

b from custamers 75720 1254517
10 Secuntities Of not finanaal assets) —-39,862 131,406
i1 Other assets fram current operations 69913 -27,637
12 Labilues

a to financial insttutions 937873 -1,728,243

b to customers ~-135964 -435151
13 Secuntsed habihties —-2,020284 -924,482
14 Dther habilitites from current operations 157416 — 78,946
15  Interest and dvidends received 989,037 1136643
16 Interest paid -753382 - 875,998
17  Extraordinary deposits 0 0
18 Extraordinary disbursements -4 —164
19  Income tax payments -5382 -6,194
20 Cash flow from current operations -760,719 -212,782
21  Proceeds from thsposals of

a financial assets 1,195,832 1,294,430

b tangible fixed assets 55 16,191
12 Dishursements for invesiments in

a finanaal assets —356855 -999,493

b tangible fixed assets -1,780 _59
23 Proceeds from the disposal of consohdated campames and other business units [t} 4]
24  Dhsbursements far the acquisition of consolidated companies and other business units 0 0
25 Changesin funds from otherinvestment activities (balance) -190 6,771
26 Cash flow from investment activities 837,062 317,840
27 Proceeds from equity allocatans {capital increases, disposal of own shares, etc) 0 0
28 Dishursements to company owners

a diwvidend payments 0 0

b other disbursements -39,207 - 40998

¢ profitansloss transfer — 49,600 1]
29 Changesin funds from other capital (balance) -10,000 —-32,000
30 Cash flow from financing activities -98,807 -72,998
31 Cash changenfinance funds -22,464 32060
32 Exchange-rate and valuation-related changes in hinance funds 0 0
33 Pinancefunds at the start of the penod 64347 32,287
34 Finance funds at the end of the penod 41,883 64,347
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NOTES

The figures in the tables in the notes are expressed in thousand euros (€ thousands) or million euros
(€ milhans) It should be noted that the amounts quoted n the tables and text are rounded figures,
resulting in rounding differences in some cases

General information on annual financial statements
and accounting and valuation principles

1. Accounting regulations

The annual financial statements of Deutsche Hypothekenbank {Actien-Gesellschaft), Hanover,
{Deutsche Hypo or the Bank) for the 2014 finanaial year have been prepared in accordance with
the prowvisions of the German Commercial Code (HGB) wn comunction with the German Ordinance
Regulating the Financial Reporting of Banks and Credit Institutes (RechKredV) and with due adhe-
rence to the provistons of the German loint Stock Compames Act {AktG) and the German Pfandbrief
Act (PfandBG) The annual financial statements compnse the balance sheet, the income statement,
the cash flow statement, the statement of equity, and the notes The breakdown of the balance sheet
and the income statement 15 based on forms 1 and 3 of the RechKredV

Since 1 January 2013, there 1s a profit transfer agreement between Deutsche Hypo and Norddeutsche
Landesbank Girozentrale (Anstalt offentlichen Rechts), Hanover, Braunschweig and Magdeburg
(NORD/LB) This also results in a fiscal tax urit For this reason, solely the disclosure of the income
taxes that relate to previous years and foreign branches are reported on the level of Deutsche Hypo
They are calculated on the basis of the taxable result at the apphcable income tax rate

2 Adjustment of the figures from the previous year due to reporting changes

In comparison to the previous year, minor changes were made in the disclosure of certain interest-
Iike fee components 1n the credit business and 1n a portion of the expenses from the discounting of
pension provisions The following adjustments to the figures from the previous year were made for
the described reasons

1n € thousands hefore adjustment adjustment after adjustment
1 Interest income 1,054,168 - 630 1,053,538
4 Commssion income 13,110 630 13,740
7 General admimistrativ expenses 69,060 -971 68,089

9 Other operating expenses 8674 971 9 645
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3. Accounting and valuation prinaples

Recewables from financial institutions and customers are reparted at thewr nominal value (Section
340e (2) of the German Commercial Code) Any differences between the nominal value and the pay-
out value are reported under accrued and deferred items, which are released on a straight-hine basis

Appropniate loan loss provisions and provisions according to cautious criteria stand 1n relation to
identifiable nsks in the credit business Uncollectable receivables are wntten down Account s taken
of contingent credit nsks in the form of a general loan loss provisions The calculation of the general
loan lass provisions s handled inaccordance with the requirements of the Federal Mimistry of Finance
Circular dated 10 January 1994

Debenture bonds and other fixed interest securities are reparted at amortised mstorical cost if
they involve securnities held as fixed assets With a sustained impairment considered Tikely, unsche-
duled write-downs are reported 1n accordance with Section 253 (3) of the German Commeraal Code
Write-ups are performed pursuant to Section 253 (5) of the German Commercial Code in cases where
the reasons for an unscheduled write-down cease to apply Secunties from the hquidity reserve are
valued 1n accordance with the lower-of-cost-or-market principle in accordance with Section 253 (4)
of the German Commercial Code There continues to be no trading portfoho If there are securities
transferred under repurchase agreements, this will take place as part of real securities repurchase
transactions which are reported 1n accordance with the requirements of Section 340b (4) of the
German Commerciat Code

Participatory interest and sharesin affihated compares are measured at the lower-of-cost-or-market
value Write-ups will be performed pursuant to Section 253 (5} of the German Commercial Code in
cases where the reasons for a wnite-down cease to apply

Applying Section 340c (2) of the German Commercial Code, the expenses arising from wnte-downs on
participatory interest, shares in affiliated companies and securities treated as fixed assets are offset
againstwrite-ups on these assets, and the resulting income or expense 1s reported under income from
financial assets onthe income statement There 1s nondividual table of write-ups and write-downs in
the notes to the financial statements due to the application of Section 34 (3) of the RechKredV

Tangible assets and intangible fixed assets are carried at their acquisition cost less the straight-hne,
scheduled depreciation aver their ordinary useful life Minor-value assets are depreciated for reasons
of matenahty in accordance with Section 6 (2a) of the German Income Tax Act {(EStG)

Deutsche Hypo does not recognise deferred taxes on account of the existing fiscal tax unit

The tax claim from the amendment to Section 37 of the German Corporate Tax Act (Korperschafts-
steuergesetz) 1s reported at 1ts net present value applying a discount rate of 39 % The pay-out
commenced in 2008 consisting of ten equal annual instalments

Liabihties, as a general rule, are reported at their settlement amount Any difference between the
nominal value and pay-out amount i1s reported under accruals and deferrats, which are wnitten back
on 3 scheduled basis
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The pension provisions are calculated by ndependent actuanes using an expectancy cash-value
method, the projected umit credit methed, applying the provisions of the BiMoG In this process, the
pensions being paid on the reporting date and the portion of the expectancies accruing {or earned)
during the service period at the reporting date are evaluated Allowance 1s also made forincreases ex-
pectedin the future as a result of pay nises or pension adjustments The cash value of the obligations
caiculated by discounting the expected future benefits (settlement value pursuant to Sectwon 253 (1),
clause 2 of the German Commercial Code) in accordance with Section 253 (2}, clause 1 of the German
Commeraial Code at the average market rate of interest over the past seven years reflecting thesr
residual term Use1s made of the ssimphfication rule set outin Section 253 (2}, clause 2 of the German
Commercial Code, in that the average market interest rate 1s applied on a flat-rate basis for a3 residual
term of fifteen years The calculations of the pension provisions for the period to 31 December 2014
are based on the fellowing actuanal assumptions

31122014 3112 2013
Actuanal 1nterest*) 454 % 488 %
Mortality Heuback RT 2005 G Heubeck RT 2005 G
Expectancy 200%pa 200%pa
Pension dynamics 275%/287%/100% 275%/287%/100%

*) In contract’ng the appraisal calculation an interest rate of 4 54 % was assumed for 31 December 2014 which shghtly dewiates from the market nterest
rate of 453 % as published by Deutsche Bundesbank for the remaiing term of 15 years

For a small portion of the calculated obligation, thereis a fund assetnthe amount of € 4,526 thousand
{2013 € 4,479 thousand) that1s netted with the pension provisions under apphcation of Section 248
{2) of the German Commercial Code

The higher obhgation cash value arising from the application of the German Accounting Law Moder-
nisation Act (BilMoG) compared with the rules under commercial law 1s to be collected 1n apphcation
of Section 67 (1) of the Introduciory Act to the German Commercial Code by no later than 31 December
2024 ininstalments of at least one fifteenth each financial year (€ 570 thousand) This 1s reported
In the income statement under extraordinary expenses The measurement of pension provisions
produced a shortfall of € 8,551 thousand at the time of the imtial apphcation of the German Accounting
Law Modermsation Act {BilMoG) As of 31 December 2014, the shortfall was € 5,701 thousand (2013
€ 6,271 thousand)

The other provisions, which are mainly provisions in human resources, and tax provisions are set at
the level of the settiement amount that1s required on the basis of a reasonable commercial assess-
ment Pursuant to Section 253 (2) clause 1 of the German Commercial Code, with a residual term of
more than one year, they are discounted at the average market rate of interest for the past seven
financial years reflecting their residual term The apphcable discount interest rate 1s determined by
the "Deutsche Bundesbank™ 1n accordance with the German Provision Discounting Ordinance (Ruck-
AbzinsV) and announced monthly The disclosure of expenses and income from the compounding or
discounting of provisions takes place in the netinterest income for provisions from the credit business
and in other operating income for provisions frem the non-bank business

Contingent habihties and other habihties are reported at their nominal amounts 1n the balance sheet
Contingent habiities will lead to possible disbursements in future, albeit based on events in the past
These obhigations will be brought about by the occurrence of uncertain events in the future The
amount which will have to be settled cannot be estimated with any adequate degree of rehability No
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provision has been set aside for obhgations stated at normnal values because the loss 1s considered
less likely to occur The assessment of probability 1s based on the estimated creditworthiness of the
1ssuers of reference (credit default swaps) or of the borrowers (guarantees in mortgage business) on
the reporting date

4 Currency conversion

The assets, debts and off-balance-sheet transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted
1n hine with the prninciples stipulated 1n Sections 256a and 340h of the German Commercial Code

The following deferral critena apply to the special cover

The nisk associated with changes in the exchange rate s ehminated in full or in part within the scope of
all the transactions conducted 1n one currency The assessment of whether there 1s a sk ansing from
changesinthe exchange rate 1s determined by the overall pesition for each currency,1 e the combina-
tion of all the transactions in a particular currency which do and do not have an effect on the balance
sheet As a general rule, there 1s special caver for all transactions in foreign currencies Excesses are
generally insigmficant and have a term of up tc one year

If an assetin a foreign currencys at acute nisk of default, it will be reduced by the amount in question,
so that 1t1s no langer taken into consideration in the special cover

When comparing the receivables and the habihities in a particular currency irrespective of the dates on
which the respective transactions mature, it 1s ensured that a lack of matched maturities can be reme-
died by appropriate follow-up transactions Assets and habihties in a foreign currency are converted
at the mean spot exchange rate on the reporting date Forward transactions are valued using the
spht forward price method {swap price and forward margin), as they are concluded to hedge interest-
hearing items All foreign exchange rates are calculated by and taken from the European System of
Central Banks

The adjusting items created from valuing swap and forward exchange transactions at currentrates are
reported separately under other assets or other habilities as appropriate Expenses arising from cur-
rency conversion are included in the income statement Income arising from the currency conversion
15 taken nto consideration insofar asit1s based on specially covered transactions, or if the assets and
habihties being converted have a residual term of one year orless These expenses and thisincome are
reported either under other operating expenses or under other operatingincome Inthe pastfinancial
year, there was other operating income fram currency conversion in the amount of € 194 thousand
{2013 € 241 thousand) The amount of net assets denominated in foreign currency totalled € 3964 5
milhon as of the reporting date (2013 € 4,263 3 milhion), the amount of the hamhties denominated in
the foreign currency was € 689 9 milhon (2013 €914 4 milhon)
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5 Dernwvatives

The Bank uses derwative financial instruments to manage the general interest rate risk {overall bank
management} In addition, the Bank holds derwvative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency
risks, as well as credit denvatives 1n the portfolio All derivatives are assigned to the non-trading
portfoho Dervatives from the non-trading portfoho are governed by the pnnaiple of non-accounting
of pending transactions The Bank checks the requirement for provisions for contingent losses with
regard to the banking book on the respective reporting date There was no creation of balance sheet
valuation units

Accrued or deferred interest from denvatives 1s reported mainly under recevables from financial
nstitutions or habilittes to financial institutions Upfronts from derivatives are reported under
accrued and deferred items

Deutsche Hypo provides the secunty for the credit default swaps (CDS} contained in the portfoho
The issuers of reference are European states as well as a US federal state The naminal volume of the
CDS1s reported under contingent habilities Deutsche Hypo provides the secunty for the total return
swaps (TRS) contained 1n the partfoho The issuers of reference are US regional authorities TRS are
notreported as pending transactions

6 Loss-free valuation of interest-related transactions for the banking book

In accordance with the requirements of IDW RS BFA 3 “Individual questions on the loss-free measu-
rement of interest-related transactions for the banking book {interest book)”, a calculation from the
Income statement point of view venfies that the creation of a provision 1n accordance with Section
340a1n con) with Section 249 (1) clause 1 alternative 2 of the German Commercial Code1s notrequired
for excess lability from the business with interest-related financial instruments 1n the banking book
as of the reporting deadhine The entire banking book was included in the caleulation for the balancing
—1n accordance with the context of funding 1In the calculation, future results of the banking book for
subsequent periods are determined from the contributions to income by the closed and open fixed-
incame positions, taking 1nto account the anticipated sk and admimistrative costs still to be incurred
The periodic iImpact on income from the open fixed-interest positions was calculated via fictitious
closing transactions on the basis of the current money and capital market interest rates In the
process, Deutsche Hypo's individual funding surcharge 1s taken into account
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Notes on the balance sheet

7. Receivables from finanaal institutions and customers

1n € thousands 31122014 3112 2013
Receivables from finanaal institutions
Breakdown of residual maturibes

- due daily 1,329 866 829 397
- up to three month 156,663 185,324
- mare than three months and up to ane year 153354 180,059
- mare than ane year and up to five yeats 727,024 1,116,089
- more than five years 250,704 339,984
- proportionate interest in total 336,775 380,072
Balance sheet item 2,954,386 3,030,925
of which fram affihated compares 75,404 195,321

Recevables from customers
Breakdown of residuat matunties

up to three months 580,287 700,468
more than three months and up to cne year 1,754,466 2,240,943

- more than one year and up to five years 7,239,396 6,900,975

- more than five years 7,854 271 7.732 282

- proportionate 1nterest in total 129 646 141,601
Balance sheet 1tem 17,558,069 17,716,269
of which from investors and investees 1649 2,215

8 Bonds and other fixed interest secunties

n € thousands 31122014 31122013
Balance sheetitem 9,321,347 10,172,370
of which from affiliated compames 1,241 856 1,241 074
due 1n the following year 2248575 1159194
of which exchange-eligible and listed on exchanges 8,223,641 9,120,716
of which exchange-eligibie and not listed on exchanges 1,097,706 1,051,654

Far secunties in fixed assets with a carrying value of € 1,200 4 million (2013 € 2,646 2 million) and a fair
value of € 1,133 8 milhon {2013 € 2,445 5 milhon), @ write-down to the lower value of € 66 6 million (2013
€ 2007 milhon) was not applhed In these cases, the Bank does nat anticipate a long-term impairment,
since a review of the credit rating of the 1ssuer in question wn the individual case did not reveal any signs
that 2 long-term impairment was justified

9. Participatory interest and shares in affiliated companies

Participatory interest and shares in affiliated compames continued not to contain any marketable
secunties as of balance sheet date There are no disclosures 1n accordance with Section 285 clause 11
of the German Commercizl Code on account of the application of Section 286 (3} clause 1 number 1 of
the German Commercial Code
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10. Fixed asset schedule

Histoncal casts Depreaation Book value on Book value on
1n € thousands 0101 2014 Additons Disposals Accumulated 2014 31122014 31122013
Intangible assets 8,125 190 - 7457 173 858 840
Tangble assets*) 4,240 1,780 550 3,074 463 2,396 1,116
Secuntiesn fixed assets 9,254,421 10,145,202
Parucipatory interest 77 77
Shares in affihated
compames 51 51

1 Tangible assets solely compnse of bus ness and office equipment.

11 Other assets

Other assets totalled € 98,988 thousand (2013 € 180,420 thousand) and primanly included adjust-
ment 1tems from fareign currencies 1n the amount of € 88,289 thousand (2013 € 162,393 thousand)

12 Accrued and deferred items

in € thousands 31122014 31122013

Assets
Issuing discount fram bonds 20,682 23,108
Prermum an claims 36,977 64,511
Swap upfront payments 19,020 20405
Other 180 89
Balance sheetitern 76,859 108,113

Liabihties
Discount frem claims 14 428 17785
Premium on bonds 24,177 37,319
Pracessing fees and interest compensation 22,149 21,601
Swap upfront payments 12,816 14,289
Other 15 0
Balance sheet item 73,585 90,994
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13 Liabihities to finanaal instituttons or customers as well as secuntised habihities

in € thousands 31122014 3112 2013

Liabihties to finanaal insttutions
Breakdown of residual matunties

- due datly 512474 623,256
- up to three months 3972434 2,789,626
- more than three months and up to one year 1,192,206 903,819
- more than one year and up to five years 1307555 1,686,901
- more than five years 254,489 318 459
- proportionate interest in total 303,651 343720
Balance sheetitem 7,542,809 6,665 781
of which from affihated companies 2091 485 1,971,334

Liabihihes to customers
Breakdown of residual matunties

- due daily 12 815 314 419
- up to three months 647,111 129,618
- more than three manths and up ta ane year 304,927 468 999
- more than one year and up to five years 2,326,114 2,042,300
- more than five years 5,637 442 6,389,038
- proportionate interest in total 191 572 203,454
Balance sheet item 9,119,981 9,267,828
of which from affihated companies 812 603
Secuntised habihties
due in the following year 3,059,124 4103 274
of which to affilliated compames 1,533 588 1916 863

14 Other habilities

Otherliabihties totalled € 279,052 thousand (2013 € 149,413 thousand) and primarily included adjust-
ment 1tems from foreign currencies in the amount of € 255,616 thousand (2013 € 113,164 thousand)
and pro-rata interest on subordinated habilities and capital held by silent partners in the amount of
€ 15,202 thousand (2013 € 23,143 thousand)}

15 Subordinated habilities

Subordinated habihties fell during the year under review from € 336 0 million to € 326 0 miilion They are
subject to nomnal interest rates from 4 G % to 6 75 % and fall due from 2015 to 2027 Early repayments
and conversions are excluded One subordinated liability exceeds 10 0 % of the total amount reported
it 1s a habihty of € 90 0 miflion subject to an interest rate of 6 12 % and due on 27 January 2020 Early
repayment will only be possible in the event of additional payments to the lender orits legal successor
due to changes in taxation The disclosed habhities comply with the requirements for additional capital in
accordance with Aruicle 63 of the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR)

Subordinated habihties of € 6 0 millhon {2013 € 16 0 milhon) shall fall due within the next two years
Interest expenses in the year under review amounted to € 18 3 imllion {2013 €19 4 million) As of balance
sheet date, there were subordinated liabshites to affihated comparnies n the amount of € 90 0 milhon
{2013 €900 milhon}
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16 Jouissance right capital

Reported Jouissance right capital totalled a nominal amount of € 83 0 milhon (2013 € 83 0 mullon)
The jouissance rnights meet the requirements for additional capital in accordance with Article 63 of
the Capital Requirements Regulation {CRR) The terms run to 31 December 2015 (€ 23 0 mlhon),
31 December 2016 (€ 40 0 milhon} and 31 December 2017 (€ 20 0 milhon) Jowssance nghts of
€ 63 0 million (2013 € 23 0 milhon} will fall due within the next two years There continues to be no
approved jouissance right capial

17 Notes on the development of equity

Deutsche Hypo held subscnibed capital of € 80 6 milhon on 31 December 2014, which 1s divided
into 13,440,000 indwidual shares and 1s the same as 1n 2013 The Board of Managing Directors was
authorsed, until 19 January 2014 and with the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase the
Bank’s share capital on one or more occasions but by no more than a total of €40 2 milhon by 1ssuing
up to 6,700,000 new bearer shares in exchange for cash deposits in accordance with Section 202 et
seq of the Joint Stock Companies Act (AktG) The rnight was not exercised There was no approved
capital as of 31 December 2014

There was still a contract about an investment held by silent partners in the amount of € 75 0 milhion
subject to aninterest rate of 11 2 % and with anindefimite term as of balance sheet date Inaccordance
with Article 62 of the Capital Reguirement Regulation {CRR), existing investments by silent partners
are allocated to the Bank's hable equity

18 Contingent hablhities and other obligations

n € thousands 3112 2014 3112 2013
Liabhhtes ansing from sureties and guarantee agreements 790,999 838,183
of which credit default swaps 595033 573,245
of which sureties 1n the mortgage business 195 966 264,938

Other abhgations consists only of irrevocable credit commitments from mortgage loans € 1,048 7 million
{2013 €1,067 8 mithon}
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19 Transactions notincluded on the balance sheet and other financial obhigations

Deutsche Hypo1s a member of the security reserve of Landesbanks and giro centres The membership
amounts are measured on the basis of the nisk-oriented principles in accordance with the Articles
of Association Reserve liabilties of roughly € 16 7 million resulted an the reporting date (2013
€ 220 millon} If 2 case of support occurs, the reserve lability can be requested Deutsche Hypo
concluded rental and lease agreements for bulldings the Bank uses and the fleet of vehicles and
certain business and office equipment There are no significant risks with an impact on the assess-
ment of the Bank's financial position All agreements concluded by the Bank in this form fall within the
norm both indwidually and collectively

20 Secunties repurchase transactions

As of the reporting date, the Bank concluded 47 (2013 50) repo transactions where securities with a
book value of € 2,528 4 mllion {2013 € 2,602 1 millon} were transferred The secunties were used to
hedge habihities to financial institutions

21 Qpen markettransactions

As of 31 December 2014, secunties with a nominal value of € 1,490 8 milhon (2013 € 724 6 rmlhon)
for overdraft facihties and open market transactions were blocked with the Deutsche Bundesbank, of
which €51 0 milhon {2013 €0 0 rmllion) s attributable to own bonds They were used to hedge habili-
ties to financial institutions As of the reporting date, use had been made of open market loans worth
atotal of €1,200 0 million (2013 €0 0 milhion)

Notes on the income statement
22. Other operating income

Other operatingincome totalled € 3,159 thousand {2013 € 3,208 thousand}andincluded income from
the release of provisions of € 1,056 thousand (2013 € 2,008 thousand), ongoing income from leases
n the amount of € 919 thousand (2013 € 210 thousand), and cost reimbursements of € 586 thousand
(2013 €382 thousand}
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23 Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses of € 13,661 thousand (2013 € 9,645 thousand) mainly included the
contribution to the restructuring funds for financial institutions (bank levy) of € 5,360 thousand
{2013 € 6,204 thousand), expenses 1n connection with the discounting of provisions in the amount
of € 4,488 thousand (2013 € 3,122 thousand) and expenses for third-party managed buildings n the
amount of € 2,631 thousand (2013 € 0 thousand}

24. Extraordinary income

Deviating from last year, extraordinary income as the sale of a building for own use (2013
€ 13,856 thousand) did not occur Interms of income taxes, this income does not have any 1mpact on
account of the fiscal tax unit

25 Extraordinary expenses

Extraordinary expenses of € 1,352 thousand {2013 € 7,111 thousand) were due to the implementation
of measures \n connection with the efficiency improvement programme SIGN as well as allocations
to pension provisions in accordance with Art 67 (1) clause 1 EGHGB wn the amount of € 570 thousand
(2013 €570 thousand) In terms of income taxes, these expenses do not have any impact on account
of the fiscal tax unit

26 Profitsurrendered under partial surrender agreements or a profit
and loss transfer agreement

As of 31 December 2014, the profit surrendered under partial surrender agreements or a profit and
loss transfer agreement totalled € 37 2 milhon (2013 € 65 5 million) Due to the profit and loss transfer
agreement, € 28 8 milhon (2013 € 49 6 milhon} was transferred 1o NORD/LB In addition, interest on
the capital held by sitent partners in the amount of € 8 4 million {2013 € 15 9 million) was taken into
accountin this result

Other disclosures
27 Services rendered to third parties
Deutsche Hypo rendered services 1n particular in connection with the management of the real estate

financings in the portfolio of NORD/L8 For this, the Bank receved service fees that were included in
the commission income
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28. Cover analysis (in accordance with Section 28 of the PfandBG)

ENGLISH TRANSLATION

Revolving Pfandbniefe and the cover assets used with disclosure of the matunty structure

{Section 28 (1) PfandBG)

Mgrtgage Pfandbnefe

Namunal Net present value Risk net present value*)

n € millions 31122014 31122013 31122014 31122013 31122014 31122013
Mortgage Pfandbnefe 8,744 8,648 9,276 9037 9,008 8734

of which denvatives - - a7 25 14 -28
Caver pool 85,988 9,366 9,996 10153 9,588 9729

of which denvatives - - 12 25 36 70
Excess cover 244 718 720 1116 580 995
*] For the calew'at on of the nsk net present value the dynamic approach n azcordance with PfandBarwertV s used

31122014 3112 2013

Pfandbnefe  Cover poal

Pfandbnefe Cover pool

n € milhons 11 arculation 1n arculation
up to 05 years 1.207 1028 549 1033
more than 0 5 years up to 1 year 705 1057 950 969
mare than 1 year upto 15 years 1,763 588 1207 470
mare than 1 5 years up to 2 years 227 062 706 980
more than 2 years up to 3 years 1,185 1,104 1,690 1,204
more than 3 years up to 4 years 1,333 1,092 1,060 980
more than 4 years up to 5 years 1,261 983 775 1025
more than 5 years up 10 years 766 2142 1 440 2377
mare than 19 years 297 332 271 328
Total B, 744 8,988 8,648 9,366
Pubhc Pfandbnefe
Nominal Net present value Risk net present value*)

in € millions 31122014 31122013 31122014 31122013 31122014 31122013
Public Pfandbnefe 8,633 10,813 10,608 12,302 10,026 11,698

of which denvatives - - 13 5 5 -3
LCover pool 9146 11,487 11,194 13,097 10376 12 307

of which denvatives - - 1 7 ] 12
Excess cover 513 674 586 795 350 609
} For the calculat an of the nsk net present value the dynamic approach n 2ccordance wath the PfancBarwertV s used

3112 2014 31122013

Pfandbriefe  Cover pool

Pfandbnefe Cover poal

n € mllions n arculaton n arculation

up to 0§ years 562 1,016 1.672 1,156
more than 05 years up 1o 1 year 742 521 476 672
more than 1yearupto 1 5years 478 983 561 1,153
more than 15 years up to 2 years 581 349 740 694
more than 2 years up to 3 years 899 1,145 1,068 1,343
more than 3 years up to 4 years 539 970 909 1,235
mare than 4 years up to 5 years 575 544 534 888
maore than 5 years up 10 years 1,880 1,831 2,104 2,010
more than 10 years 2,377 1,785 2,719 2336
Total 8,633 9,146 10,813 11,487
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Other caver assets for mortgage Pfandbnefe (Section 28 (1) clauses 4 to 6 of the PfandBG n
conjunction with Section 19 (1) clauses 1 to 3 of the PfandBG}

i € millions Germany Belgium Eur Umon France

{as of each 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Equahsation claims in terms

of Section 19 (1) clause 1

of the PfandBG - - - - - - - -

Claimsn terms of Section 15 (1)

clause 2 of the PfandBG - - - - 19 18 - -
of which uncovered debt
secunties 1n terms of Art 129 of
QOrdinance (EU) Ne 575/2013 - - - - - - - -

Claims in terms of Section 19 (1)

clause 3 of the PfandBG 327 477 75 - - - - 25
Total 327 477 75 - 19 18 - 25
in € milhons Italy Japan Netherlands Austna

(as of each 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Equahsation claimsn terms
of Section 19 (1) clause 1
of the PfandBG - - - - - - - -
Claimsin terms of Section 19 (1)
clause 2 of the PfandBG 127 202 - - - - - -
of which uncovered debt
secunhes in terms of Art 129 of
Ordwnance (EU) No 575/2013 - - - - - - - -

Claims i terms of Section 19 (1)

clause 3 of the PfandBG 31 40 149 229 25 - 150 275
Total 158 242 149 229 25 - 150 275
1n € miliens Portugal Spain USA Other®)

{as of each 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Equalhsation claims in terms
of Section 19 {1) clause 1
of the PfandBG - - - - — - - _

Claimsn terms of Section 19 (1)
clause 2 of the PfandBG - 20 - 50 - - 13 60
of which uncovered debt
sacunities in terms of Art 129 of
Ordinance (EU) No 575/2013 - - - - - - - -
Claims n terms of Section 19 (1)
clause 3 of the PfandBG - - 53 54 74 - - -
Total - 20 53 104 74 - 66 60

} Other supranauonal organisanions

Other cover assets for pubhc Pfandbnefe (Section 28 {1) clauses 4 and 5 of the PfandBG1n conjunction
with Section 20 (2) clause 1 and 2 of the PfandBG) were not available in either the previous year or as of
31 December 2014
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Disclosures in connection with recervables used as cover for mortgage Pfandbhnefe (Section 28 (2)

clause 1 of the PfandBG}

Breakdown by size groups

n € mlhons 31122014 31122013
up to and induding € 300 000 36 53
between € 300,000 and including € 1 mithon 114 144
between € 1 milhion and including € 10 mithon 2219 2455
more than € 10 million 5523 5,264
Total 7,892 7.916
Breakdown of receivables by area and type of use

n € milhons Germany Belgium France

{as of each 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2011

Apartments 12 16 - - 1 -

Detached family homes 15 29 - - - -

Multifamily homes 620 647 - - 177 108

Office bulldings 1,231 1,303 18 12 358 355

Cammeraal buldings 2,113 1969 - - 235 244

Industnal builldings 12 13 - - - -

Other commeraially used building 517 486 - - -~ -

New builldings not yet completed

or not yet a souce of income 363 267 - - - 10

Bunlding sites 26 52 - - — -

Total 4,909 4,782 18 12 771 717

n € milhons UK Netherlands Austna

{as of each 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Apartments - - 23 31 - -

Detached family homes - - 64 64 - -

Multfamily homes - 1 a1 63 - -

Office bulldings 630 656 304 312 - -

Commeraal buiidings 275 261 161 174 12 12

Industnal buldings - - - - - -

Other commeraally used building 13 104 130 142 — -

New buildings, nat yet completed

or not yet a souce of Income - 43 - - - -
Butlding sites 21 15 - - - -
Total 939 1,080 763 786 12 12

n €milhons Poland Spain USA

{as of each 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Apartments - - - - - -

Detached family homes - - - - - -

Multfarmly homes - - - - 34 49

Office buildings 103 6 20 20 154 210

Commeraal tuldings 33 - 85 158 13 21

Industral bulldings - - - - - -

Other commeraally used buitding - - 19 20 19 33

New buildings, not yet completed

or not yet a souce of income - - - - - -

Building sites - - - - - 9

Total 136 6 124 199 220 322
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Total amount of payments overdue by atleast 90 days (Section 28 (2) Clause 2 PfandBG)

3112 2014

Total amount of Total amount of these
payments overdue by  clatmsf the overdue
atleast 90 days amount totals at least

atleast 50

3112 2013

Total amount of Total amount of these
payments overdue by  claimsf the overdue

days amount totals at least

1n € milhons 5 % of the claim 5 % of the claim
Spain 30 70 29 70
France 14 60 - -
Germany 04 17 - 01
Netherlands - - 03 1p
USA - - 04 84
Total 48 147 36 191

Foreclosure f sequestration {Section 28 {2) (lause 4 PfandBG)

As of 31 December

Foreclosures pending

Sequestration pending

Forclosures executed

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Praperties used
for ving 3 5 - 1 3 -
Properties used
for commercial purposes 3 5 1 3 2 5
Total 6 10 1 4 5 5

In the financial year 2014, Deutsche Hypo did not acquire any property to save existing mortgages, as

n the prior year

Total overdue interest (Section 28 (2) Clause 4 PfandBQ)

1n € milhions

31122014 3112 2013

Properties used for hwing
Properties used for commercial purposes

63 93

Total

63 93
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Disclosures 1n connection with recevables used as cover for public Pfandbnefe {(Section 28 (3)

Clause 1 PfandBG)

n € milions Germany Belgium Eur Umon Finland

{as of 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Central state 151 221 - - 79 121 - -
Regional authonty 2733 3,160 105 266 - - 14 59
Local authonty 57 150 - - - - - -
Other 2004 2,993 140 140 EXDS 313 - -
Total 4,945 6,524 245 406 390 434 14 59
1n € milhans France UK Italy Japan

{as of 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Central state - - - - 317 336 - -
Regional authanty 8% 89 - - 520 503 10 90
Local authonty - - - - - - - -
Other 50 125 64 60 90 79 - 21
Total 139 214 64 60 927 918 10 111
in € milhons Canada Latwia Netherlands Austna

{as of 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Central state - - - - - 659 654
Regianal authonty 151 134 18 19 130 160 44 45
Local authanty - - - - - - - -
Other 74 65 - - 290 290 222 382
Total 225 199 18 19 420 450 925 1,081
n € mlltons Poland Sweden Swatzerland Slavema

{as of 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Central state 86 85 - - - - - 30
Regional authonty - - 16 17 70 69 - -
Lacal authornty - -~ - - - - - -
Other - — - - 100 100 - 25
Total 86 8BS 16 17 170 169 - 55
in € mithons Spain Hungary UsA Other*)

{(as of 31 December) 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Central state - - 44 44 - - — -
Regional authority 65 159 - - 256 293 - -
Local authonty - - - - - - - -
Other 48 48 - - - - 139 142
Total 113 207 44 44 256 293 139 142

) Other supranatonal orgamsat ons

As of 31 December 2014, payments for public sector recevables that were overdue by at least 90 days
amounted to € 0 {2013 €1 thousand)
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Key figures about the Pfandbriefe in circulation and the cover assets used

Mortgage Pfandbriefe

31122014 31122013

Pfandbnefe in circulatien n €mithans 8744 8,648
af which share of fixed-rate Plandbnefe (Section 28 (1) dause § of the PfandBG) % 7761 7303
Caver pool n € millions 8,988 Q366
of which tatal amount of claims that exceed the lirmits in accordance with
Section 13 {1} of the PfandBG {Section 28 {1} clause 7 of the PfandBG) 1 € milhons - -
of which total amount of claims that exceed the imits of Section 19 {1}
clause 2 of the PfandBG {Section 28 (1) clause 8 of the PfandBG) 1n € milhons - -
of which total amount of claims that exceed the mits of Section 19 {1}
clause 3 of the PfandBG {Section 28 (1) clause 8 of the PfandBG) in € millions - -
of which share of fixed-rate cover pool (Sectron 28 (1) dause 9 of the PfandBG) % 6054 5668
AUD - -
Net cash value 1n accordance with Section & of the German Pfandhrief Net CAD - -
Present Value Regulation {Pfandbrief-Barwertverordnung) for each foreign CHF 353 920
currency (in € millions) GBP 4552 5713
JPY 240 262
Section 28 (1] clause 10 of the PfandBG (net of assets and habilities) SEK - -
usb 1513 883
Volume-weighted average of age of claims (past term since credit award
seasoming) Secton 28 (1) dlause 11 of the PfandBG ‘fears 48 48
Average weighted loan-to-value ratio (Sechion 28 {2} clause 3 of the PfandBG} % 5750 5777
Average weighted loan-to-value ratio on a market basis Y 44 85 45 61
Public Pfandbnefe

31122014 31122013

Pfandbnefe 1n arculation 1n € milhons 8633 10,813
of which share of fixed-rate Pfandbnefe (Section 28 (1) clause 9 of the PfandBG) % 9278 97 40
Cover pool n € milhons 9,146 11 487
of which tetal amount of daims that exceed the mits of Section 20 (2}
of the PfandBG (Section 28 (1) clause 8 of the PfandBG) n € milhons - -
of which share of fixed-rate cover pool (Section 28 (1) clause 9 of the PfandBG) % 79 15 7750
AUD 167 167
Net cash value in accordance with Section 6 of the German Pfandbrief Net CAD 1803 1669
Present Vzlue Regulation {Pfandbnef-Barwertverardnung) for each foreign CHF 353 -1631
currency (in € rmithons) GBP 2129 1911
JPY -192 13
Section 28 (1) clause 10 of the PfandBG (net of assets and habshties) SEK 85 93

usD 1,1057 1,000 6
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29 Cover analysis 1n accordance wath Section 35 (1) Clause 7 RechKredV

Cover for bonds 1n circulation

Mortgage Pfandbnefe Public Pfandbnefe
1 € milhiens 31122014 31122013 31122014 31122013
Ordinary cover
Recewvables from financial institutions
Mortgage loans 1 1 - -
Publc sector loans - - 1,266 1,702
Recervables from customers
Mortgage loans 7891 7615 - -
Public sector loans - - 5109 5708
Bonds of public sector 1ssuers - - 2,771 4,077
7,892 7,916 9,146 11,487
Substitute cover
Other receivables fram finanaal institutians 461 780 - -
Bands and other fixed income secunties 635 570 - -
1096 1450 - -
Total value of cover 8,988 9,366 9,146 11,487
Total amount 1n airculation requirnng cover 8,744 8,648 8,633 10,813
Surpius caver 244 718 513 674

30 Denvatives

The nomnal valume of the different types of forward transactions in the portfoho as of 31 December
201415 shown 1n the tables below in accordance with Section 36 of the RechKredV

Forward translations include forward exchange transactions used to hedge against positions in GBP,
UsD, JPY and CHF and due to expire on 22 August 2016 at the latest The remaining positions shown
are all OTC products used to hedge against interest rate and currency risks and to improve andfor

safeguard margins in credit business and investments in foreign securities

Market values represent the current value of the derwvatives at market conditions (yield curves,
forex rates, etc } including accrued interest The book values are compnised of pro-rata interest and
upfronts The figures determined 1n this way are summansed 1n the following tables by product
group This s in hne with the requirements of Section 285, clause 19 of the German Cemmercial Code
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31122014 Nominal amount / Residual term
in € milons <=1year 1-5years >5years Total Fairvalue Bookvalue Balance sheetitem
Currency-ralated
transactions
Forward exchange 1,189 23 - 1,212 -22 1 Assets2 Lablines1
transactions
Cross-currency-Swaps 590 1,012 923 2525 -370 9 Assets 2und 10,
Liabihties 1 und 5
Interest rate-related
transactions
Interest rate swaps 4403 13,842 14,845 33,090 -425 -32 Assets 2 und 10,
Liabihities 1 und 5
Credit denvatives
Total return swaps 18 78 329 425 -10 -7 Assets 2, Lizbilges 1
Crediy defauli swaps - 595 - 545 -9 a
31122013 Nominal amount / Residual term
1n € mllions <=1year l-Syears >5years Total Fairvalue Bookvalue Balance sheetitem
Currency-related
transactons
Forward exchange 1,136 23 - 1,159 -2 1 Assets 2, tiabihities 1
transaclions
Cross-currency-Swaps 494 1,583 955 3032 -85 7 Assets 2 und 10,
Liabihttes 1 und 5
{nterest rate-related
transactions
Interest rate swaps 5416 14,117 15515 35,048 - 80 -30 Assets 2 und 10,
Liabihties 1 und 5
Credit denvatives
Total return swaps - 94 422 516 -14 — 8 Assets 2, Liabiliies 1
Credit default swaps - 573 - 573 -28 0

The netted fair values of € — 8357 million (2013 € — 208 7 million) gave rise to positive fair values
of € 2,671 5 rmihon {2013 € 2,066 6 million} and negative market values of € 3,507 2 milhon (2013

€ 2,275 3 mlhon}

To hedge the default nsks of counterparties after netting, Deutsche Hypa has entered into secunty
agreements with most of 1ts business partners As of 31 December 2014, the Bank provided secunity of
€1,286 0 mlhion (2013 € 801 9milhon), and recewed secunty of € 460 3 million (2013 € 536 8 million)
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31 Members of the Board of Managing Directors

ANDREAS POHL
— Speaker of the Board of Managing Directors since 1 January 2014 -

ANDREAS REHFUS

The members of the Board of Maraging Directors have not held any mandates in supervisory boards
of corporations

32 Members of the Supervisory Board

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

Hanover

Chairman of the Board of Managing Directors of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale
— Chaiwrman of the Supervisory Board —

ECKHARD FORST

Hanover

Member of the Board of Managing Directors of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girezentrale
= Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board ~

DR JOHANNES-JORG RIEGLER

Hanover

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Managing Directors of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale
{untit 28 February 2014}

THOMAS KRUGER
Hanover
Member of the Board of Managing Directors of VGH Versicherungen

DIRK METZNER
Hanover
Bank employee

FRANK WOLFF
Hanover
Bank employee {until 11 June 2014}

ANDREA BEHRE
Hanover
Bank employee (since 11 June 2014)
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33. Emoluments of the Board of Managing Directors and Supervisory Board

The emoluments paid to the Board of Managing Directors for the 2014 financial year totalled
€ 892 thousand (2013 € 1,263 thousand) Former members of the Board of Managing Directors and
their surviving dependants received € 1,516 thousand {2013 € 1,484 thousand) Frowisions for pension
oblhgations owed to this group of pecople totalled € 11,826 thousand as cof 31 December 2014 (2013
€ 11,454 thousand) The measurement of pension provisians produced a shortfall of € 2,020 thousand
at the time of the imtial apphcation of the BilMoG The shortfall will be made up by the contribution of
one-fifteenth of the amount {€ 135 thousand) every year until 2024 1n accordance with Art 67 {1} dause 1
of the EGHGB As of 31 December 2014, the shortfall was € 1,346 thousand (2013 € 1,481 thousand) The

Supervisory Board recewved a net fixed payment of € 111 thousand (2013 € 108 thousand)

34. 51ze of workforce an average over the year

2014 2013
Fernale employees 165 173
Male employees 223 237
Total 388 410
35 Auditor's faes
1n € thousands 2014 2013
Audit finanoal statements 667 629
Cther confirmations 236 2438
Other services 36 0
Total 939 ’77

36 Group affibation

According to Section 271 (2) of the German Commercial Code, Deutsche Hypo 1s a company affil-
ated with NORD/LB and 15 included 1n the consolidated financial statements of NORD/ILB NORD/LB's
conschdated finanaal statements as of 31 December 2013 were pubhshed 1n the federal gazette on

31 July 2014

Hanover, 11 March 2015

The Board of Managing Directors

Pohl Rehfus
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

“We affirm that, to the best of our knowledge and pursuant to the applicable accounting principles,
the annual financial statements provide a true and fair view of net assets, financial and income
position of the Bank and that the management report presents the business development, in¢cluding
the Bank’s results and position, such that an accurate picture 1s presented, with a suitable description
of the oppartunities and nsks linked to future development of the Bank ™

Hanover, 11 March 2015

The Board of Managing Directors

Pohl Rehfus
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the annual financial statements — comprnising the balance sheet, the income state-
ment and the notes to the financal statements, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes
n equity — together with the bookkeeping system, and the management report of the Deutsche
Hypothekenbank {Actien-Gesellschaft), Hannover, for the business year from January 1 to December 31,
2014 The maintenance of the books and records and the preparation of the annual financial state-
ments and management report in accordance with German commercial law are the responsibihity of
the Company's management Ourresponsibihtyis to express an opinion on the annual financial state-
ments, together with the bookkeeping system, and the management report based on our audit

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements 1n accordance with § 317 HGB ["Handels-
gesetzbuch” “German Commercial Code”] and German generally accepted standards for the audit of
financial statements promuigated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprufer [Institute of Public Auditorsin
Germany] (IDW) Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements
materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations
in the annual finanial statements 1n accordance with [German] principles of proper accounting
and in the management report are detected with reasonable assurance Knowledge of the business
activities and the economic and jegal environment of the Company and expectations as to possible
misstatementsare takeninto accountinthe determination of audit procedures The effectivenessofthe
accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the books
and records, the annual finanaial statements and the management report are exarmined pnmanly on
a test basis within the framework of the audit The auditincludes assessing the accounting principles
used and sigmficant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the annual financial statements and management report We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opimon

Our audit has not led to any reservations

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the annual financial statements comply with the
legal requirements and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations of the Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) 1n accordance with [German]
principles of proper accounting The management report 1s consistent with the annual finanaal
statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the Company's position and suitably presents
the opportunmties and risks of future development

Hanover, 11 March 2015

KPMG AG
Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft

Leitz Ehlers
Wirtschaftsprufer Wirtschaftsprufer
{German Public Auditor} {German Publhc Auditar)
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PERSONNEL REPORT

{n the year under review, the general conditions for personnel work were charactenised, in particular,
by the Bank’s ambitious profit targets and, at the same, the need for a high level of cost disciphne, as
well as by the increase inregulatory requirements This challenging trio1s embedded in the personnel
department’s commitment to ensuring that staffing levels at Deutsche Hypo are appropriate, at all
times, 1n terms of numbers and qualty That1s why one of the persannel department's key strategic
premises 1s to guide the development of all employeesn terms of employee numbers and personnel
costs and to ensure that 1t 1s ongoing, structured and tallored to requirements

After all, behind everything that the Bank provides forits chents 1s its most important resource — the
people who work there Therefore, for the personnel function, an obvious imperative 1s to manage the
balance between the interests of the company and those of the employees Deutsche Hypo warks at
this day after day in order to enhance its attractiveness as an employer

Remuneration system

Deutsche Hypo's remuneration system 1s ahgned with 1ts business and nsk strategies and also
supports them Its objectives are sustanabihty and continuity 1n order to instil responsible and risk-
conscious behaviour among employees and to ensure long-term business success Moreover, the
design of the remuneration system should ensure that staffing levels are appropnate »n terms of
numbers and guality and, \n particular, enhance employer attractiveness An important aim of
Deutsche Hypo's remuneration system Is to constitute a framework for creating remuneration-based
incentives that are strategy-consistent

In the year under review, the bank became a systermically important institution according to the Bank
Remuneration Ordinance Forthe firsttime, therefore, the Bank identified so-called nsk takers on the
basis of an own risk analysis Moreover, the Bank had to comply with other rules applicable to system-
cally importantinstitutions under the Bank Remuneration Ordinance

Deutsche Hypo, as a member of the {German) Private Banking Employers’ Assocation, 1s bound by a
collective bargaining agreement and thus, the collective bargaining agreements for both the private
banking as well as the pubhc banking sectors are apphcable That 1s why, besides a fixed salary that
1s pand In twelve equal instalments, employees under the collective bargaining agreement receive a
special paymentin the amount of an additional month’s salary Employees not bound by the collective
bargaiming agreement receive a fixed basic annual salary that1s paid wn twelve equal instalments

Vanable remuneration for all employees 1s determined on the basis of a formal and transparent pro-
cess Inthe course of this, the following are taken into consideraticn the Bank'’s overall result from a
risk-onented perspective, the profit contribution from the orgamsational umits and the sndividual’s
own contribution to the performance

The level of the variable component of the remuneration1s hmited to 100% of the fixed remuneration

Personnel Development

“He who stops being better stops being good " This guote from Oliver Cromwell elucidates the guiding
principle of personnel development at Deutsche Hypa In 2014, 1n order to reinforce more intenselyin
the Bank the principle of ifelong learning, as well as the importance of personnel development as a
management responsibility, the works agreement pertaining to the “annual performance appraisal”
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was extended to include the “annual development appraisal” The annual development appraisal
facihtates a targeted discussion between the manager and the member of staff about strengths, areas
that need some work and the next development steps for the member of staff

Furthermore, within the scope of technical quahfications, the personnel development concept for
the lending business was extended to include the areas of credit nsk management and special loans
management The concept thus covers all the front and back office areas that are relevant for the
credit process

Besides training sessions and seminars as well as numerous development measures as part of ope-
ratienal practice, 1n-service traning canstitutes an important eiement of personnel development at
Deutsche Hypo For thisreason, Deutsche Hypo supports employees who undergo in-service training
n specialist, or bank-specific subjects In order to have rules that are 1n the interests of both the Bank
and its employees and which can also be applied n times when the cost pressure 1s mare intense, 1n
2014, the Bank and the Works Council concluded a works agreement pertaining to the promation of
n-service training

in the year under review, within the scope of supporting and developing high potential talent,
Deutsche Hypo carried out an onientation centre for the first time The orientation centre has replaced
the earlier personnel development AC and focuses both on leadership potential as well as on potential
for an advanced specialist career Subject to certain conditions, onentation centre participants have
the passibiity of being admitted to the Bank's “individual development support” programme Within
the framework of this, over the course of three years, they are provided with additional indwvidual
assistance and support in their development by the personnel department

Furthermore, in 2014, the series of management development mocules, which started 1n 1n 2013,
continued successfully In the year under review, a total of five modules, with varying emphases,
took place

Promoting and Recruiting Young Talent

During the 2014 financial year, Deutsche Hypo also provided training for the classic profession of
gualified German bankers (Bankkaufleute) This training has been expanded to include an internati-
onal course of study leading to a Bachelor of Arts (B A ), which 1s offered n cooperation with Letbmz
Unmversity of Applied Sciences (Fachhochschule) In the year under review, the number of trainees
and dual-track students was 12 altogether On account of its targeted campaign for recruiing young
talent, Deutsche Hypo was able to increase both the quality as well as the number of apphcations,
which was 1n contrast to the overall trend 1n the sector

in the year under review, the traiming cooperatian project with NORD/LB continued successfully and
was optimised  Firstly, trainees from the parent company were assigned to real estate banking n
Deutsche Hypo in Hanover Furthermore, trainees from Deutsche Hypo were given the opportumty to
observe the workings of different specialist depariments at NORD/LB

Besides traditional vocational training, Deutsche Hypo also offers quahfied university graduates the
opportumty of participating in graduate traimng programmes The Bank hopes that, in this way, 1t 15
able to provide an even more attractive offer foryoeungtalent and to introduce them, in a targeted and
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practical way, to challenging tasks Inthe year under review, the appropriate graduate trainee concept
was revised and will serve as a basis for Deutsche Hypo for filling simmlar trainee positions regularly in
the future, too, with quahfied graduates

The Bank, i addition, offers interested students the opportumity of gaiming an imtial insight 1nte the
business field of a real estate and Pfandbrief bank through work placements Cooperations for disser-
tations are possible but are subject to certain conditions Inthe year under review, the Bank provided
a total of sixwork placements

Work/Life Balance and Social Welfare

The compatibility of family and careeris a igh prionty for Deutsche Hypo 1t 15 also the title of a works
agreement that underpins this Since 2008, the Bank, together with an external service provider, has
offered 1ts employees nursery places, holiday childcare, emergency care facilities and elder care

In the year under review, alternating telework was developed further as another step towards sup-
porting work/hfe balance Qwverall, thus, 23 employees make use of the possibility to perform part of
their work from hame

Besides the compatibihty of family and career, for the Bank the health of its employees 1s alsc impor-
tant Within the scope of health promotion, Deutsche Hypo offers, for example, occupational welfare
counselling, which 1s carned out by an external provider In addition, alt employees aged 45 years and
above are offered, by the Bank, a medical check-up tn comunction with health coaching, every three
years Furthermore, in the year under review, the Bank laid the foundation for a stronger, needs-based
orgamsation of occupational health management Moreover, 1t also promoted "healthy” leadership by
raising awareness among managers and providing the appropnate skills

Cooperation with the Works Council

Within the framewark of a constructive cooperation with the Works Council based on trust, we were
always able to find good solutions and responses to the manifold challenges We would hike to extend
our sincere gratitude and appreciation for this to our employer and employee representatives

31122014 31122013 31122012

Employees 387 410 420
of which male 220 237 242
of which female 167 173 178

Employee structure
Trainees 12 11 i3
Average age 44 4 435 430

Other
fness rate 3103 449 317
10-year service anmiversary 6 7 11
25-year service annwersary 4 4 7

40-year service anniversary 4 2 3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

For Deutsche Hypo, transparent and responsible corporate governance 1s of great importance
Against this backdrop, the Bank supports the objectives and purpose of the German Corporate Gover-
nance Code and keeps 1n view the modifications and amendments that are made by the Government
Commission of the German Corporate Governance Code

In 2014, apart from clanfications in model tables, there were no changes to the Corporate Governance
Code The Government Commission confirmed this inits press release from 25 June 2014 Moreover,
n this release 1t announced that, i future, it would focus less on developing new recommendations
and suggestions but, instead, on analysing and commenting on new third party regulatory imtiatives
In principle, according to the press release, before 1ssuing any regulations cr recommendations, the
Commission should bear in mind that every regulation limits freedoms and restricts the individual
accountabihity and self-requlation of citizens and of businesses

It s 1n the interests both of the Government Commissicn as well as of Deutsche Hypo's Supervisory
Board to take greater account of women when seeking to fill positions on the Supervisory Board That
15 why, 1n 2014, the Board exphcitly welcomed the appointment of Ms Andrea Behre to the Supervisory
Board as employee representative

The Supervisary Board regularly reviews the efficiency of its work and that of the Board of Managing
Dwrectors For this purpose a standardised group questionnaire 1s used The Chairman of the Super-
visary Board presented the results of the 2014 efficiency review at the meetings of the Appointments
Committee and the Supervisory Board, on 5 December 2014, and had an in-depth discussion about
them with the members of the respective committees Inthe course of this, no measures were identi-
fied as being necessary for enhancing efficiency, nor far improving the work of the Supervisory Board
and the cooperation between the Supervisory Board and the Board of Managing Directors

In 2014, the apphcable version of the German Corporate Governance Code was the one from 10 June
2013 and, after marginal modifications, the versian from 24 June 2014 On 5 December 2014, Deutsche
Hyno's Board of Managing Directors and Supervisery Boards adopted the 'Declaration of Conformity’,
which has to be submitted annually The Declaration of Conformity has been published on Deutsche
Hypo's website The text s worded as follows

Declaration of Conformity 2014
on the part of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) Hanover in respect of the recom-
mendations of the Government Commission on the German Corporate Governance Code

In accordance with Article 161 of the German Stock Corparation Act {Aktiengesetz), the Board of
Managing Directors and the Supervisory Board of Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft)
Hanover herewith declare the foilowing

Since the last Declaration of Conformity dated 4 December 2013, Deutsche Hypothekenbank {Actien-
Gesellschaft), Hanover hasimplemented the recommendations of the Government Commission an the
German Corporate Governance Code dated 24 June 2014 with the following exceptions

The Code's recommendations on the topics of invitation to the Annual General Meeting, postal votes
and proxies have not been implemented (Code section 2 3},
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The members of the Supervisory Board were covered by D&Q wnsurance without an appropnate
deductible {Code section 3 8},

Regarding the granting of pension commitments (for members of the Board of Managing Directors),
the Supervisory Board has not specified any conditions for the pension level, including length of
service gn the Board of Managing Dwrectors, and the resulting annual and long-term expense for the
company {Code section 4 2 3},

The remuneration of the members of the Board of Managing Directors and of the Supervisory Board as
well as the essential content of commitments of benefits to be granted 1n the event of termination of
the function of the members of the Board of Managing Directors are not disclosed on anindwiduahised
basis in the annex to the consohdated financial statements The remuneration components are also
not disclosed on anindividualised basis for financial years cammencing after 31 December 2013 using
the model tables provided {Code sections 4 24,4 2 5and 5 4 6),

The financial statements for the financial year 2013 were pubhshed on 30 April 2014, the haif-year
financial report 2014 was pubhshed on 29 August 2014 This meant that the respectively recommended
pertods of 90 days from the end of the financial year and 45 days from the end of the reporting period
{Code section 71 2) were not met However, the pubhcation of said reports teok place in comphance
with the statutery deadhnes stipulated 1n Section 325 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and
Articles 37v and 37w of the German Secunities Trading Act (WpHG)

Deutsche Hypothekenbank (Actien-Gesellschaft) Hanover herewith declares that st wall in future fulfil
the recommendations of the Government Commssion on the German Corporate Government Code in
their version dated 24 June 2014, doing so with the exception of the aforementioned instances under
1altote)

Explanations

Codes section 2 3

The shares in Deutsche Hypo are held in ther entirety {100 per cent) by NORD/LB, with the conse-
quence that there are no “free” shareholders The recommendations set downin Code section 2 3 are
based on the holding of Annual General Meetings of stock corporations which have vanous different
sharehoiders This 15 not the case where Deutsche Mypo 1s concerned, and for this reason the said
recommendations will not be implemented

Codes section 3 8

As in the past, Deutsche Hypo will not be implementing this recommendation

In accordance with the principles of equal treatment, a deductible ought to be 1dentical for all mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board wn terms of 1ts economic effects The Code recommends that the
regulation on deductibles for the Board of Managing Directors 1n accordance with Article 93 (2) of
the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) be correspondingly apphed in respect of the members of
the Supervisory Board However, this would affect the members of the Supervisory Board to varying
degrees, depending on their personal economic circumstances In extreme cases, 1t could be, for
example, that less well financially situated members of the Supervisory Board might find themselves
In exaistential difficulties With account being taken of the equal degrees of responsibility concerned,
this regulation does not therefore appear fair
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Codessection4 2 3

Pension commitments are basically granted to members of the Board of Managing Directors taking
nto account the specific individual circumstances The Supervisory Board will seek a pension level
which takes into account these circumstances {including area of responsibility, position on the Board
of Managing Directors and length of service on the Board of Managing Directors) and 1s also 1n rea-
sonable proportion with other existing pension commitments The assessment of the individual case
15 influenced by various factors which are difficult to define within a standard framework The Super-
visory Board has therefore not defined standard framework conditions

Codesections4 24,42 5and546

The compensation of the members of the Board of Managing Directors and of the Superwisory Board
has not been disclosed en anindividuahsed basis 1n the past, and Deutsche Hypothekenbank will not
do son the future either

The Extracrdinary General Meeting of Deutsche Hypothekenbank held on 13 November 2006 adopted
a resolution with the requisite majority as per Section 286 (5) of the German Commercial Code
{HGB} to the effect that indiiduahised disclosure of the compensation of members of the Board of
Maraging Directors would not be undertaken At the Annual General Meeting of Deutsche Hypothe-
kenbank held on 25 May 2011, a resolution was adopted to the effect that the details an the compen-
sation of each individual member of the Board of Managing Directors as required by section 4 2 4 of
the German Corporate Governance Code will not be disclosed 1n the company's annual financial and
consolidated statements

In accordance with Deutsche Hypothekenbank's articles of association, the Annual General Meeting
passes resolutions on the compensation of the members of the Supervisory Board The Supervisory
Board's cverall compensation s reported in the annual report There1s no further identifiable benefit
frem any individualised disclosure by name of said compensation

Codes section71 2

As result of its affihation to the NORD/LB Group, Deutsche Hypo 1s incorporated into the group proce-
dure 1n terms of the publication of intenm reports, financial reports and annual accounts, this group
procedure)s in accordance with the statutory time imits

Hanover, 5 December 2014

The Supervisory Board The Board of Managing Directors

Emoluments for the members of the Board of Managing Directors
The emoluments paid to the Board of Managing Directors for the 2014 finangal year totalled € 892
thousand (2013 € 1,263 thousand) Deutsche Hypathekenbank does not have a stock option programme

Emoluments for the members of the Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board recewved a fixed payment of € 111 thousand (2013 € 108 thousand) including VAT
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

In 2014, the Supervisory Board and the committees 1t has created performed the duties required of
them by law, under the Bank’s Articles of Association and the German Corporate Governance Code
The Board of Managing Directors provided the Supervisory Board with regular, timely and compre-
henswe information about the bustness performance, the nsk situation, as well as about the strategic
alignment and the Bank’s business situation The reqular reports included quarterly nisk reports
prepared n accordance with the provisions of MaRisk as well as monthly reports on the Bank's busi-
ness performance and income situation Moreover, fundamental 1ssues, such as adjustments to the
business and risk strategies, were thoroughly discussed with the Board of Managing Directors

The Supervisory Board and the committees advised and momtored management and passed resoltu-
tions on the 1ssues which were presented to them and which, according to the Articles of Asscaiation
and the rules stipulated within their framework, required a decision by these committees The
respective resolutions were always submitted to the Supervisory Board within the appropriate perod
of natice Insofar as a resolution was required between meetings, the respective resolutions were
made using a written circulation procedure

In accordance with the provisions of the German CRD IV-Transpasition Act, the Supervisory Board
reargamsed 1ts committees with effect from 1 January 2014 Thus, within Deutsche Hypo there now
extst a Lending and Risk Committee, an Audit Committee, an Appointments Committee as well as a
Remuneration Committee The purpose of the committees 1s to enhance the efficiency of the work
of the Supervisory Board They deal with complex 1ssues and usually prepare the resolutions of the
Supervisory Board

In 2014, the Superwvisory Board held four ordinary meetings and one constitutive meeting, each
of which was attended by all of the members, with the exception of four separate absences At the
meetings, the respective chairs of the committees, in turn, reported to the Supervisory Board on the
workn the commitiees In between the meetings, too, information was shared on an angoing basis Thus,
the Speaker of the Board of Managing Directors was 1n regular and close contact with the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board in order to discuss important 1ssues and decisions with im personally

As of 28 February 2014, after the resignation of Dr Johannes-Jorg Riegler, the Supervisory Board con-
sisted of only five members for the rest of the year On 11 June 2014, the Annual General Meeting
appointed Thamas S Burkle as a new Supervisory Board Member with effect from 1 January 2015 The
term of the Supervisory Board mandate of the employee representative, Mr Frank Walff, expired as
scheduled at the Annual General Meeting Ms Andrea Behre took over his position in the Board

The Lending and Risk Committee, which dealt mainly with the development of the loan portfolio and
1ts nisks, met four times during the past year The Audit Committee met twice, with its meetings focu-
sing especially on the annual financial statement and half-yearly financizl report as well as the resuits
of the internal and external audits Furthermore, the Remuneration Commttee had two meetings and
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the Appointments Committee had one meeting While the Remuneration Committee focuses manly
on monitoring the appropriateness of the organization of the remuneration systems for managers as
well as for employees, the Appointments Committee, in particular, submits nominations for suitable
Supervisory Board candidates about whom the Annual General Meeting ultimately decides

The auditor KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprufungsgeselischaft, Hanover, which was elected by the Annual
General Meeting and engaged by the Supervisory Board, audited the financial statements for the 2014
financial year andssued an unqualified audit certificate It confirms that the bookkeeping and annual
financial statements comply with the statutory requirements The audit did notlead to any objections

The auditor was available for the members of the Supervisory Board and of the Audit Committee to
take questions and provide additionalinformation The auditor took partin the meetings of the Super-
visory Board held to discuss the annual financial statements and in the Audit Committee's meetings
and reported on the findings of the audit

The audit report was discussed i full by the members of the Supervisory Board The Supervisory
Board agreed to the findings of the auditor's report Atits meeting or 20 March 2015, the Supervisary
Board approved the management report and the annual financial statements as of 31 December 2014
The 2014 annual financial statements have thus been adopted

Pursuant to Section 312 of the Joint Stock Companies Act (AktG), the Board of Managing Directors pre-
pared a report on relations with affihated compamies that was ikewise audited by the auditor and also
awarded an unqualified audit certificate The dependency report and auditar's report on the latter
were approved by the Supervisory Board Furthermore, the Supervisory Board confirmed that there
were no objections to the declaration by the Board of Managing Directors at the end of this report

The Supervisory Board would like to expressits gratitude to the Board of Managing Directors and all
_the employees for their siccessful work and great commitment 1n 2014

Hanover, 20 March 2015

The Supervisary Board

A

Dr Gunter Dunkel
Charrman of the Supervisory Board
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CORPORATE BODIES

Supervisory Board

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

Hanover

Chairman of the Board of Managing Directors of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale
= Chairman -

ECKHARD FORST

Hanover

Member of the Board of Managing Directors of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale
-Vice Charman -

BR JOHANNES-JORG RIEGLER
Hanover

Vice chairman of the Board of Managing Directors of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale
until 28 02 2014

THOMAS S BURKLE

Hanover

Member of the Board of Managing Directors of Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale
since 01 01 2015

THOMAS KRUGER
Hanover
Member of the Board of Managing Directors of VGH Versicherungen

DIRK METZNER
Hanover
Bank employee

FRANK WOLFF
Hanover

Bank employee
until 11 06 2014

ANDREA BEHRE
Hanover

Bank employee
since 11 06 2014
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Committees of the Supervisory Board from 01.01. to 28.02.2014
Lending and risk committee

DR JOHANNES-JORG RIEGLER
— Charrman -

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

ECKHARD FORST

THOMAS KRUGER
- Substitute Member -
Audit committee

DR JOHANNES-JORG RIEGLER
— Chairman—

FRANK WOLFF

THOMAS KRUGER

ECKHARD FORST
— Substitute Member -
Appointments committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
= Chairman —

ECKHARD FORST

DR JOHANNES-JORG RIEGLER

Renumeration committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
- Chairman —

ECKHARD FORST

DR JOHANNES-JORG RIEGLER

DIRK METZNER
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Committees of the Supervisory Board from 01.03. to 11.06.2014
Lending and risk committee

ECKHARD FORST
- Chairman -

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

THOMAS KRUGER

Audit committee

ECKHARD FORST
— Chairman —

FRANK WOLFF

THOMAS KRUGER

Appointments committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
—Chairman —

ECKHARD FORST

THOMAS KRUGER

Renumeration committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
- Chairman -

ECKHARD FORST

THOMAS KRUGER

DIRK METZNER
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Committees of the Supervisory Board from 11.06. to 31.12.2014
Lending and risk committee

ECKHARD FORST
—Chairrman —

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

THOMAS KRUGER

Audit committee

ECKHARD FORST
—Chairman —

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

THOMAS KRUGER

Appointments committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
—~Chairman —

ECKHARD FORST

THOMAS KRUGER

Renumeration committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
—Chairman —

ECKHARD FORST

THOMAS KRUGER

DIRK METZNER




116

DEUTSCHE HYPO ANNUAL REPORT 2014

ENGLISH TRANSLATION

Committees of the Supervisory Board from 01.01.2015

Lending and risk committee

THOMAS S BURKLE
- Chairman -

ECKHARD FORST

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

THOMAS KRUGER
~Substitute Member —
Audit committee

ECKHARD FORST
— Chairman -

DR GUNTER DUNKEL

THOMAS KRUGER

THOMAS S BURKLE
—Substitute Member —
Appointments committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
—Chairman —

ECKHARD FORST

THOMAS S BURKLE

Renumeration committee

DR GUNTER DUNKEL
— Chairman ~

ECKHARD FORST

THOMAS S BURKLE

DIRK METZNER




INTRODUCTION MANAGEMENT REPORT ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDITOR’S REPORT elXcRUILE (o] 117

Personnel Report | Corpoerate Governance Report | Report of the Supervisory Board | Corporate bodies |
Crgamisahonal structure | Addressesin Germany and abroad | Glossary

Board of Managing Directors

ANDREAS POHL
Hanover
—Speaker of the Board of Managing Directors —

ANDREAS REHFUS
Hanover

Executive manager

Michael Muller

Departmental managers

Sabne Barthauer Carsten Dickhut
Raimund Ferley Arabell Foth

Markus Hetnzel Dr Peter Hinze

Dirk Hunger Dieter Koch

Stefan Leise Uwe Menninger
Dirk Neugebauer Dirk Schonfeld
Stefan Schrader Thomas Staats

Ralf Vogel Dr Wulfgar Wagener
Public trustees

WOLFDIETRICH KUHNE

Hanover

Degree in business, auditor, tax advisor
—Trustee -

BURKHARD SCHERRER

Hanover

Retired lawyer and notary pubhc

— Deputy trustee until 31 05 2014 —

ANDREAS WOLFF

Ronnenberg

Lawyer

— Deputy trustees since 01 06 2014 —
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Andreas Pohl
Business Area 1

Domestic Property
Finance 1
Ralf Vogel

Domestic Property
Finance 2
Michael Muller

International Acguisition
and London Branch
Thomas Staats

Real Estate Structured Finance and

International Property Finance
Sabine Barthauer

Real Estate
Investment Banking
Dieter Koch

Market Analysis
Prof Dr Gunter Vornholz

Treasury
Dirk Schonfeld

Communmcations and
Board Staff
Carsten Dickhut

Corporate Development
Dirk Hunger

Andreas Rehfus
Business Area 2

Treasury Operations
Dirk Neugebauer

Credit Risk Management
Raimund Ferley

Credit Risk Controlhing
Uwe Menninger

Special Credit Management
Stefan Schrader

Credit Department and
Property Valuation
Markus Heinzel

Accounting Department
Stefan Leise

Controlling
Arabell Foth

Human Resources and Legal
Dr Peter Hinze

Organisation and IT
Dr Wulfgar Wagener

Audit Officer
Axel Harms
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ADRESSES IN GERMANY AND ABROAD

Management
30159 Hanover
Osterstralle 31 Tel +495113045-0 Fax +49511 3045-459 www Deutsche-Hypo de

Domestic locations
60311 Frankfurt/Main
Goetheplatz2 Tel +49692193518-13 Fax +49 69 2193518-15

20457 Hamburg
Brodschrangen 4 Tel +494037655-310 Fax +49 40 37655-305

30159 Hanover
Osterstrae 31 Tel +49511 3045-591 Fax +49 511 3045-599

80538 Munich
WidenmayerstraBe 15 Tel +4989 512667-0 Fax +49 89 512667-25

Foreignlocations
UK London EC2V 7WT
One Wood Street Tel +44 207 4294700 Fax +44 207 4294701

France 75002 Panis
23,ruedelaPaix Tel +331550484-85 Fax +33 1 550484-89

The Netherlands 1077 XX Amsterdam
Strawinskylaan 625 TowerB, Level 6 Tel +31 206914551 Fax +31 20 6919811

Poland 00-021 Warszawa
Ul Chrmielna 25 Tel +48 228280253 Fax +48 22 6924428

Supervisory body
European Central Bank {ECB) KaiserstraBe 29 60311 Frankfurt am Main

Bundesanstalt fur Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht Graurheindorfer Strafe 108 53117 Bonn
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GLOSSARY

Backtesting
Process to monitor the quality of value-at-risk models, which retrospectively compares losses
calculated using the value-at-nsk approach with the losses actually recorded

Cost-income ratio (CIR)

Ratio that puts administrative expenses in relation to net interest and commission income The
cost-income ratio provides quantitative infermation regarding the efficiency in the operative banking
business In principle, the lower the value of the cost-income ratio, the more efficient the Bank's
economic management

Credit Default Swap (CDS)
CDSs belong te the group of credit derivatives In this case, the secured party transfers only the
1solated credit default risk to the party granting security

Credrt spread sk
The nsk of potential changes in value that anses if the indwvtdual credit spread of the 1ssuer, borrower
or debtor, which 15 used in the context of a market assessment of the position, changes

Derivative or derivative financialinstrument

Derwvatives or denvative financial instruments are financial assets and habihities the value of which
changes depending on a defined underlying asset (interest, currency, share, etc ) Derivatives require
no or very httle imtial investment and wili be discharged in the future

Expected Loss {EL)

Calculated loss of a financing or a customer within one year The EL1s an expected value that results
from exposure at default (EAD}, probabihity of default (PD} and loss given default {LGD) calculated, and
specifies the standard risk costs of aloan

IFD risk class default (Non performing loans — NPL)
This refers to loans for which the debtors have already fallen into arrears in fulfilling their contractual
obhgations

Confidence level
Within the context of the value-at-risk model, the confidence level describes the likehhood that a
potential loss will not exceed the loss threshold defined by the value-at-risk

Deferred taxes

If the amounts stated 1n the tax balance sheet differ from the baok values for the assets and habihties
inthe balance sheet pursuant to the Code of Commercial Law and these differences are not permanent
from a fiscal perspective, Income taxes to be pawd or obtained n future will be apphed as deferred
taxes

PfandBarwertV

Pfandbrief Net Present Value Regulation Regulation on the safeguarding at all times of the cover for
Mortgage Pfandbriefe, Pubhic Pfandbriefe and Ship Pfandbriefe according to the net present value and
the calculation of the same in the case of Pfandbrief Banks

Rating
Standardised assessment of the credit-worthiness of a secunty or debtor by means of a detailed
internal nsk assessment (internal rating) or by independent rating agencies {(external rating)
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Risk-bearing capacity
Teo safeguard the nsk-beanng capacity within a creditinstitution, all sigmficant nsks must be covered
at all times by the nsk coverage potential (capital that s actually available)

Scoring procedure
Deutsche Hypo's internal rating procedure to determine the credit-worthiness of a debtor 1n the
capital market business

Hedginginstrument

Derwvative or non-derivative financial instruments where 1t 1s expected that their fair value or cash
flows will offset changes to the fair value or cash flow of a designated basic transactionin an effective
hedging relationship

“Using Synergies in the Group” (SIGN)
An efficiency improvement programme launched at Deutsche Hypo1n 2012 As well as cost optimi-
sations, closer ties to NORD/LB are envisaged through procedural and methodological adjustments

Spread
In exchange and off-exchange trading, a spread (also known as bid-ask spread) 1s defined as the mar-
gin between the bid price {market demand} and the offer price (market supply)

Stress testing
Future analysis that institutions apply 1n addition te the regular nisk contro! mechanmsms and with
which they simulate the impact of unusual but potentially possible events

Swap
In economics, a swap 1s an agreement between two contracting parties that provides for the future
exchange of payment flows

Total Return Swap (TRS)
In a Total (Rate of) Return Swap (TRORS or TRS), the return from the underlying finanoial instrumentas
exchanged for a different return Thisis a credit denvative

Unexpected Loss
Quantification of the credit risk as the potential difference between the actual and expected loss

Vatue-at-risk (VaR)
The value-at-risk designates the potential future loss that will not be exceeded within a certain period
and with a certan probatility

Watver provision

Exceptional provision pursuant to section 2a German Banking Act {(KWG), old version, that enables
banks affihated to the group to be exempted from the minimum capital requirements, the require-
ments relating to large exposure reports as well as the requirements for proper business arganisation
pursuant to section 25a {1} KWG, provided the requirements set out 1n the law are satisfied The
responsibiity for these requirements then passes to the upstream institute
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